Consolidated Financial Reports

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

ANZ ONEANSWER INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

AND OTHER RETAIL TRUSTS



ANZ OneAnswer Investment Portfolio and other Retail Trusts

You have received a copy of these Consolidated Financial Reports as an investor in ANZ OneAnswer Investment Portfolio or other Retail Trusts. The reports contain financial information for a number of investment schemes issued by OnePath Funds Management Limited (ABN 21 003 002 800 AFSL 238342) (OnePath Funds Management). The ANZ OneAnswer Investment Portfolio and other Retail Trusts are listed below.

	Statement of comprehensive income	Statements of financial position	Statements of cash flows
OnePath Blue Chip Imputation*	7	13	20
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share*	7	13	20
OnePath Global Shares*	8	14	21
OnePath Property Securities*	7	13	20
OnePath Select Leaders*	7	13	20
OnePath Sustainable Investments Australian Shares *	8	14	21
ANZ Fixed Interest	6	12	19
Bentham Syndicated Loan [‡]	9	15	22
Challenger Property [†]	6	12	19
Colonial First State Diversified	9	15	22
Colonial First State Imputation	6	12	19
Perpetual Conservative Growth	10	16	23
Vanguard Balanced Index	10	16	23
Vanguard Index Diversified Bond	11	17	24

^{*} The investment fund's name has changed from ING to OnePath.

[†] Formerly Credit Suisse Property

[‡] Formerly Credit Suisse Syndicated Loan.



Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

Name	ARSN
Active Growth Trust	089 938 456
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust	
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust	104 468 724
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust	104 469 098
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust	
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	089 043 265
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust	
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust	104 468 895
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust	104 467 601
Emerging Companies Trust	
Global Share Trust	
One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)	101 424 239
OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust	
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust	
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	105 698 904
OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust	
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust	
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	
OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust	
OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust	

Contents

Directors' Report	3
Statements of Comprehensive Income	6
Statements of Financial Position	
Statement of Changes in Equity	
Statements of Cash Flows	
Notes to the Financial Statements	25
Directors' Declaration	115
Independent Auditor's Report	116
Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration	118

Directors' Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

The Directors of OnePath Funds Management Limited ('OnePath Funds Management'), the Responsible Entity of the following Economic Entities ('the Schemes'), present their report together with the consolidated financial reports of the Schemes, for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Parent Subsidiary ANZ Fixed Interest Trust ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund **ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust** ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust Blue Chip Pool **ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust** OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust Pooled Property Fund ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust ANZ Select Leaders Pool ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust OnePath Sustainable Investments - Wholesale Australian Share Trust ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust Vanguard Diversified Bonds Index Fund **Active Growth Trust** ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust Challenger Professional Property Fund ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust Challenger Professional Property Fund **Emerging Companies Trust** Small Companies Pool **Global Share Trust** International Share Pool ANZ International Equities Fund International Share Pool One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) Capital International Global Equities Fund (Hedged) OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust Bentham Professional Syndicated Loan Fund OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust Perpetual Wholesale Conservative Growth Fund OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust

The above table states the consolidated entity structures as at reporting date.

Principal activities

OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust Vanguard Balanced Index Fund

The investment activities of the Economic Entities continue to be in accordance with the investment policy as outlined in the investment mandates for the Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities continue to invest in cash, domestic and international securities including listed equities, fixed and floating interest rate securities, property trusts, other unit trusts and and derivative contracts.

Directors of the Responsible Entity

The Directors of OnePath Funds Management, the Responsible Entity, during or since the end of the financial year are:

Name	Date Appointed	Date Resigned
P D Barrett	Appointed 20 April 2011	Resigned 15 February 2012
C T Brackenrig	Appointed 5 May 2011	
S J Chapman	Appointed 1 August 2011	
G J Kelly	Appointed 30 November 2009	Resigned 31 August 2011
C M McDowell	Appointed 15 February 2012	
G B Meyer	Appointed 22 February 2007	Resigned 31 August 2011
V S Weekes	Appointed 1 May 2011	

Lead auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 is set out on page 118.

Significant events after reporting date

There has been no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Economic Entities' operations in future financial years, the results of those operations or the state of affairs in future financial years.

Likely developments and expected results

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities will continue to invest in the manner specified in this Directors' Report under the heading of 'Principal activities'. Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities and the expected results of those operations in future financial periods has not been included because disclosure of this information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

Directors' Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

Scheme information

The Schemes which make up the Economic Entities are Australian registered managed investment Schemes. The Responsible Entity of the Schemes is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at:

Level 13, 347 Kent Street Sydney NSW 2000

Environmental regulation

The operations of the Economic Entities are not subject to any particular and significant environmental regulation under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

Review of operations and results

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities continue to invest in accordance their investment mandates.

The results of operations of Economic Entities are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The income distributions paid by each of the Schemes are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The income distributions payable by each of the Schemes are disclosed in the Statements of Financial Position.

Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers

The Responsible Entity's Constitution permits the Responsible Entity to indemnify each officer or employee of the Responsible Entity against liabilities (so far as permitted under applicable law) incurred in the execution and discharge of the officer's or employee's duties. It is the Responsible Entity's policy that its employees should not incur liability for acting in the course of their employment legally, within the policies of the Responsible Entity and provided that they act in good faith.

Under the policy, the Responsible Entity will indemnify employees against any liability they incur in carrying out their role. The indemnity protects employees and former employees who incur a liability when acting as an employee or officer of the Responsible Entity, another corporation or other body at the request of the Responsible Entity or a related body corporate.

The indemnity is subject to applicable law and will not apply in respect of any liability arising from:

- a claim by the Responsible Entity
- a claim by a related body corporate
- serious misconduct, gross negligence, or a lack of good faith
- illegal, dishonest or fraudulent conduct; or

• material non-compliance with the Responsible Entity's policies or discretions.

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ), the ultimate parent of the Responsible Entity, has entered into Indemnity Deeds with each of the Parent Entity's Directors, with certain secretaries and former Directors of the Responsible Entity, and with certain employees and other individuals who act as directors or officers of the Responsible Entity or of a related body corporate or of another company. To the extent permitted by law, the Responsible Entity indemnifies the individual for all liabilities, including costs, damages and expenses incurred in their capacity as an officer of the company to which they have been appointed. This indemnification does not cover the Responsible Entity of the subsidiary if different to that of the Parent Entity.

Fees paid to and investments held by the Responsible Entity

All fees paid to OnePath Funds Management by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities and all investments held by OnePath Funds Management in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities are disclosed in Note 9. Related parties.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

Name changes of Schemes making up the Economic Entities:

During the financial year some of the Schemes had their name changed. Please refer to 'Note 15 Significant events during the financial period' for details of name changes. Please note all references to any of the Schemes will be to the new names.

Investment manager/investment strategy changes:

During the year ING Investment Management Australia (INGIM), the company that managed the underlying funds of some of the Schemes was purchased by UBS Global Asset Management who subsequently closed INGIM's operations.

As a result of the sale and closure of INGIM, OnePath Funds Management undertook an extensive review of the investment mandates for the affected Schemes. Please refer to 'Note 15 Significant events during the financial period' for details about the review outcomes.

Other than what has been disclosed above, there has been no individually significant change in the Economic Entities' state of affairs nor in 'Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/Total comprehensive income' for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Directors' Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

OnePath Funds Management Limited

ABN 21 003 002 800 AFSL 238342

Director

Sydney 10 September 2012

Statements of Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

		Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ Fixed Interest Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		ANZ OA Challe Trust (Consoli		ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Investment income	_	· ·	· ·	·	·	·		·	
Dividend income		_	_	172,597	307,213	_	_	_	_
Interest income		129,316	122,866	9,888,302	15,910,933	9,885	12,325	79,162	97,698
Unit trust distribution income		4,212,758	4,658,373	15,968,196	38,084,511	2,510,527	2,117,060	11,248,548	11,353,445
Net change in fair value of investments		(7,584,229)	6,395,024	20,062,175	(1,262,528)	1,105,131	867,723	(31,224,437)	24,861,275
Security lending income		-	-	194,952	429,825	-	-	-	-
Other income		164,022	568	1	9	17,963	-	<u> </u>	-
Net investment income/(loss)		(3,078,133)	11,176,831	46,286,223	53,469,963	3,643,506	2,997,108	(19,896,727)	36,312,418
Expenses									
Responsible Entity fees		1,552,239	2,022,079	136,764	149,549	222,250	275,353	456,380	627,990
Interest expense		288	46	-	229	2,912	-	-	<u>-</u>
Other expenses		8,018	1,591	-	54,450	7,180	10,766	9,882	-
Operating expenses before finance costs		1,560,545	2,023,716	136,764	204,228	232,342	286,119	466,262	627,990
Profit/(loss) from operating activities		(4,638,678)	9,153,115	46,149,459	53,265,735	3,411,164	2,710,989	(20,362,989)	35,684,428
Finance costs									
Distributions to unitholders		3,275,470	1,734,540	29,464,364	65,034,214	1,488,497	1,530,466	7,882,578	7,370,095
Distribution paid and payable to external unitholders of the									
Scheme		1,004,210	419,811	6,271,303	4,526,922	814,410	1,026,086	3,137,976	3,453,134
Change in amounts payable to external unitholders of the									
Scheme		(2,101,748)	1,672,034	-	(562,100)	-	121,353	-	7,506,359
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/									
Total comprehensive income	8	(6,816,610)	5,326,730	10,413,792	(15,733,301)	1,108,257	33,084	(31,383,543)	17,354,840

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		Im	Path Blue Chip outation Trust idated Entity)	Emerging I	nePath Global Markets Share idated Entity)	Se	Path Property ecurities Trust dated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$	
		Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ.	Ψ.	
Investment income		72 007 540	02 426 401	2 026 255	2 550 205	200.245	766 577	0.202.251	14 246 207	
Dividend income		72,987,549	82,436,401	3,826,355	2,559,295	298,245	766,577	8,392,251	14,346,307	
Interest income Unit trust distribution income		541,419 1,518,553	189,198 2,598,248	66,510	29,655	98,229 22,792,397	72,691 43,907,819	86,818 3,301,204	108,639 1,325,198	
Net change in fair value of investments		(231,694,754)	57,629,328	(33,008,061)	(7,969,516)	(37,711,354)	(10,725,207)	(36,301,694)	37,809,756	
Security lending income		395,044	349,744	(33,000,001)	(7,303,310)	15,804	30,253	24,508	37,609,730	
Other income		1,837,004	452,689	7,388	2,145	4.160	210,969	24,300	171,913	
Net investment income/(loss)		(154,415,185)	143,655,608	(29,107,808)	(5,378,421)	(14,502,519)	34,263,102	(24,496,913)	53,799,266	
Expenses Responsible Entity fees Interest expense Other expenses		4,009,491 475 2,829,403	5,324,503 2,453 3,099,670	568,948 6,201 623,275	924,524 - 801,401	318,125 142 	460,263 4,791 3,471	674,811 209 1,842,861	846,888 2,299 870	
Operating expenses before finance costs		6,839,369	8,426,626	1,198,424	1,725,925	318,267	468,525	2,517,881	850,057	
Profit/(loss) from operating activities		(161,254,554)	135,228,982	(30,306,232)	(7,104,346)	(14,820,786)	33,794,577	(27,014,794)	52,949,209	
Finance costs Distributions to unitholders Distribution paid and payable to external unitholders of the		43,410,060	65,533,242	2,445,405	2,692,582	16,817,649	30,358,165	5,044,323	20,300,522	
Scheme Change in amounts payable to external unitholders of the		32,900,838	13,320,312	-	737,112	3,862,113	17,847,124	1,144,854	8,951,809	
Scheme		(53,365,951)	-	-	(1,873,425)	-	(5,245,074)	-	6,244,829	
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	8	(184,199,501)	56,375,428	(32,751,637)	(8,660,615)	(35,500,548)	(9,165,638)	(33,203,971)	17,452,049	

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)			mpanies Trust idated Entity)	Global Share Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
		\$	\$	\$_	\$	\$_	\$_	\$	\$_	
Investment income										
Dividend income		8,411,436	16,106,519	-	-	16,520,670	16,288,503	24,388,615	43,998,541	
Interest income		57,983	54,245	6,866	11,776	321,905	61,590	651,937	410,494	
Unit trust distribution income		1,044,109	1,403,432	654,450	611,592	120,228	472,337	1,649,256	2,373,663	
Net change in fair value of investments		(51,015,376)	42,934,867	(1,084,476)	(1,857,362)	(49,972,201)	59,604,877	(177,897,171)	(28,640,341)	
Security lending income		15,974	72,693	-	-	45,716	97,015	-	-	
Other income		-	162,746	-	1,245	3,599	17,361	76,882	1,061,455	
Net investment income/(loss)		(41,485,874)	60,734,502	(423,160)	(1,232,749)	(32,960,083)	76,541,683	(151,130,481)	19,203,812	
Expenses										
Responsible Entity fees		57,603	107,926	122,260	114,951	2,346,592	2,861,505	89,233	115,741	
Interest expense			28	363	,	287	54	10,696	3	
Other expenses		306,502	866	-	1,706	905,955	714,787	678,384	732,510	
Operating expenses before finance costs	=	364,105	108,820	122,623	116,657	3,252,834	3,576,346	778,313	848,254	
Profit/(loss) from operating activities		(41,849,979)	60,625,682	(545,783)	(1,349,406)	(36,212,917)	72,965,337	(151,908,794)	18,355,558	
Finance costs										
Distributions to unitholders Distribution paid and payable to external unitholders of the		449,591	16,267,258	296,918	281,682	12,304,207	12,901,881	1,647,769	26,007,172	
Scheme Change in amounts payable to external unitholders of the		-	1,050,978	249,871	150,471	2,554,454	1,302,196	15,393,645	-	
Scheme		-	2,645,759	(524,474)	(951,630)	-	-	-	-	
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	8	(42,299,570)	40,661,687	(568,098)	(829,929)	(51,071,578)	58,761,260	(168,950,208)	(7,651,614)	

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		Syndicat	OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Colonial First versified Trust dated Entity) [†]	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	
Investment income		ų.	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	<u> </u>	Ψ.	Ψ_	
Dividend income		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	
Interest income		4,416	17,571	2,379	2,936	23,666	31,842	26,683	29,389	
Unit trust distribution income		2,398,577	1,607,065	4,771,082	6,360,384	1,680,891	3,700,245	5,525,744	6,447,458	
Net change in fair value of investments		(6,870,752)	15,192,579	(1,668,361)	965,793	(3,024,650)	2,920,841	(4,025,258)	10,020,602	
Security lending income		-		(-///	-	-	-//	('/ / /	//	
Other income		-	1,528	-	35,672	-	-	-	-	
Net investment income/(loss)	_	(4,467,759)	16,818,743	3,105,100	7,364,785	(1,320,093)	6,652,928	1,527,169	16,497,449	
Expenses										
Responsible Entity fees		121,822	164,972	214,968	273,178	160,158	229,607	331.113	398,875	
Interest expense		6,316	-	2,695	-	1,127	-	1,452	-	
Other expenses		-	1,644	44,976	-	4,378	-		-	
Operating expenses before finance costs	_	128,138	166,616	262,639	273,178	165,663	229,607	332,565	398,875	
Profit/(loss) from operating activities		(4,595,897)	16,652,127	2,842,461	7,091,607	(1,485,756)	6,423,321	1,194,604	16,098,574	
Finance costs										
Distributions to unitholders Distribution paid and payable to external unitholders of the		796,917	17,573,956	3,734,510	5,626,965	1,422,190	3,502,495	4,513,892	3,642,107	
Scheme		955,177	17,465,915	814,398	403,249	137,403	-	706,371	3,257,788	
Change in amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		(1,549,789)	(18,082,127)	(109,816)	97,823		<u>-</u>	<u> </u>	2,990,606	
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	8	(4,798,202)	(305,617)	(1,596,631)	963,570	(3,045,349)	2,920,826	(4,025,659)	6,208,073	

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		Conservative	er - Perpetual Growth Trust idated Entity)	Australia	Australian Equity Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		BS Diversified Income Trust dated Entity) [†]	OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust (Consolidated Entity)*		
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	
Investment income	_	<u> </u>	-	· ·		<u> </u>	· ·			
Dividend income		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	
Interest income		82,288	76,682	76,913	65,721	54,912	42,596	171,214	17,999	
Unit trust distribution income		19,530,088	11,261,607	8,258,807	7,508,571	9,505,716	9,112,264	27,913,591	12,541,349	
Net change in fair value of investments		(3,706,404)	1,942,411	(11,487,697)	22,746,784	3,729,993	984,335	17,552,102	(8,057,549)	
Security lending income			-	-		-	-	-		
Other income		506,865	830,507	<u>5</u>	-	128,480	-	-	-	
Net investment income/(loss)		16,412,837	14,111,207	(3,151,972)	30,321,076	13,419,101	10,139,195	45,636,907	4,501,799	
Expenses										
Responsible Entity fees		1,166,419	1,171,956	502,385	583,985	342,997	319,797	1,071,695	359,930	
Interest expense		11,496	29,585	·		-	·	· -	-	
Other expenses		9,486	8,522	-	5	25,257	-	54	-	
Operating expenses before finance costs		1,187,401	1,210,063	502,385	583,990	368,254	319,797	1,071,749	359,930	
Profit/(loss) from operating activities		15,225,436	12,901,144	(3,654,357)	29,737,086	13,050,847	9,819,398	44,565,158	4,141,869	
Finance costs										
Distributions to unitholders Distribution paid and payable to external unitholders of the		9,144,904	7,805,118	5,388,787	3,767,979	13,971,788	5,326,242	13,496,868	12,199,420	
Scheme		8,754,385	2,468,872	2,448,115	3,222,325	3,639,660	3,507,412	13,530,319	-	
Change in amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		(1,510,921)	623,184	-	9,780,822		389,118	14,016,377	-	
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	_8	(1,162,932)	2,003,970	(11,491,259)	12,965,960	(4,560,601)	596,626	3,521,594	(8,057,551)	

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

			nguard Index ed Bond Trust idated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$
Investment income Dividend income			_
Interest income		55,682	25,665
Unit trust distribution income		6,491,089	
Net change in fair value of investments		19,869,653	(12,431,099)
Security lending income		-	-
Other income		289	67,014
Net investment income/(loss)		26,416,713	4,641,393
Expenses			
Responsible Entity fees		403,628	185,728
Interest expense		103,020	105,720
Other expenses		141	3
Operating expenses before finance costs		403,769	185,731
Profit/(loss) from operating activities		26,012,944	4,455,662
Finance costs Distributions to unitholders		3,161,046	12,974,587
Distribution paid and payable to external unitholders of the Scheme Change in amounts payable to external unitholders of the		2,998,229	3,911,726
Scheme		7,160,973	(3,709,073)
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	8	12,692,696	(8,721,578)

Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2012

		Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)			ANZ Fixed Interest Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		r Property Trust olidated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		Ψ	Ψ.	Ф	Ψ_	Ψ	Ψ	Φ	Ψ_
Assets									
Cash and cash equivalents	4	2,263,390	877,599	53,973	4,080,300	170,338	477,071	1,984,644	5,846,610
Receivables	5	937,881	2,430,782	229,517	25,185,742	1,262,449	1,362,486	2,225,461	2,143,687
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	89,950,155	127,011,195	13,266,411	705,734,458	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219
Total assets		93,151,426	130,319,576	13,549,901	735,000,500	42,876,328	51,504,455	276,787,519	357,848,516
Liabilities									
Bank overdraft	4	-	-	-	-	380,864	832,413	-	-
Payables	7	108,728	185,116	10,371	12,066	12,365	55,752	31,016	56,896
Distribution payable		1,164,031	1,186,552	-	28,735,408	319,694	411,813	1,725,568	1,354,685
Return of capital payable		-	5,319	-	1,107,557	-	-	-	-
Distribution payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		337,817	252,536	-	849,065	117,176	270,246	-	625,924
Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		20,912,738	29,950,227	-	24,077,597	13,372,374	18,883,274	-	105,135,075
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2		502,434	- -	1,029,732				
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders)		22,523,314	32,082,184	10,371	55,811,425	14,202,473	20,453,498	1,756,584	107,172,580
Net assets attributable to unitholders		70,628,112	98,237,392	13,539,530	679,189,075	28,673,855	31,050,957	275,030,935	250,675,936
Represented by: Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation		70,628,112	98,237,392	13,539,530	679,551,659 (362,584)	28,673,855	31,050,957	275,030,935	250,675,936
Total net assets attributable to unitholders	8	70,628,112	98,237,392	13,539,530	679,189,075	28,673,855	31,050,957	275,030,935	250,675,936

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity)			Global Emerging cets Share Trust colidated Entity)	ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust (Consolidated Entity)†		ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Assets									
Cash and cash equivalents	4	15,283,769	2,258,869	2,609,273	2,181,988	1,368,580	2,367,732	584,070	9,356,546
Receivables	5	12,224,271	14,722,796	1,217,982	3,391,308	4,363,070	12,234,187	120,138	19,924,324
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	761,744,067	1,572,061,513	112,346,914	237,273,850	196,735,505	818,334,827	66,765,992	405,386,400
Total assets		789,252,107	1,589,043,178	116,174,169	242,847,146	202,467,155	832,936,746	67,470,200	434,667,270
Liabilities Bank overdraft	4								
Payables	7	- 270,455	486,136	34,232	1,955,848	24,005	468,552	43,367	23,860,522
Distribution payable	,	8,402,848	19,533,442	968,716	2,687,945	5,828,868	8,547,783	1,764,053	14,882,370
Return of capital payable		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Distribution payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		402,077	-	276,238	737,112	-	4,626,453	-	5,730,742
Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		213,193,691	-	-	44,937,459	-	281,454,869	-	113,711,661
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2	-	15,559,800	-	1,468,064	-	10,122,089	-	30,495
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders)		222,269,071	35,579,378	1,279,186	51,786,428	5,852,873	305,219,746	1,807,420	158,215,790
Net assets attributable to unitholders		566,983,036	1,553,463,800	114,894,983	191,060,718	196,614,282	527,717,000	65,662,780	276,451,480
Represented by:									
Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price		567,722,154	1,555,290,228	114,981,561	191,671,383	196,614,282	529,169,874	65,662,780	276,844,569
Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation		(739,118)	(1,826,428)	(86,578)	(610,665)	<u> </u>	(1,452,874)		(393,089)
Total net assets attributable to unitholders	8	566,983,036	1,553,463,800	114,894,983	191,060,718	196,614,282	527,717,000	65,662,780	276,451,480

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)†		ANZ OA Perpetu Share Trust (Cons			Companies Trust colidated Entity)	Global Share Trus	t (Consolidated Entity) [†]
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Assets									
Cash and cash equivalents	4	29,578	2,560,223	383,094	730,479	16,544,728	873,310	2,555,991	11,975,487
Receivables	5	40,801	6,097,960	660,883	545,157	1,838,743	543,522	1,268,176	51,460,363
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	7,902,619	444,016,663	32,570,583	43,252,616	251,050,015	432,325,013	113,997,200	2,223,079,424
Total assets		7,972,998	452,674,846	33,614,560	44,528,252	269,433,486	433,741,845	117,821,367	2,286,515,274
Liabilities Bank overdraft Payables Distribution payable Return of capital payable	4 7	- 2,320 227,204 -	- 2,867,419 7,429,408 -	- 8,557 296,918 -	13,924 281,682 126,499	1,377,676 3,188,868	39,230 659,983 7,796,228 -	- 249,137 -	34,811,860 26,007,172 126
Distribution payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		-	490,937	249,871	188,326	-	-	-	-
Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		-	27,237,382	15,477,228	20,937,447	-	-	40,806,850	-
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss		- -				-		680,350	136,997,390
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders)		229,524	38,025,146	16,032,574	21,547,878	4,566,544	8,495,441	41,736,337	197,816,548
Net assets attributable to unitholders		7,743,474	414,649,700	17,581,986	22,980,374	264,866,942	425,246,404	76,085,030	2,088,698,726
Represented by: Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation		7,743,474	415,194,156 (544,456)	17,581,986	22,980,374	266,135,227 (1,268,285)	426,966,013 (1,719,609)	76,124,260 (39,230)	2,090,015,850 (1,317,124)
Total net assets attributable to unitholders	8	7,743,474	414,649,700	17,581,986	22,980,374	264,866,942	425,246,404	76,085,030	2,088,698,726

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Bent Loan Trust (Cons		OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		OneAnswer - Investors Mutua Australian Share Trus (Consolidated Entity)	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ
Assets		054 202	427.622	4.40.262	420.424	606.000	4 020 570	004.040	740 425
Cash and cash equivalents	4	851,283	137,623	149,263	130,434	686,928	1,838,570	991,910	748,435
Receivables Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	2,403,100 96,548,979	3,462,219 392,628,292	1,305,114 36,215,450	2,322,182 46,792,286	344,365 70,127,462	1,328,611 89,528,127	3,615,443 112,781,110	6,095,759 125,932,960
Total assets	0.1	99,803,362	396,228,134	37,669,827	49,244,902	71,158,755	92,695,308	117,388,463	132,777,154
Liabilities Bank overdraft Payables Distribution payable	4 7	- 8,814 796,917	810,742 20,523 17,573,956	12,697 594,541	19,883 1,761,914	- 10,697 182,865	- 21,135 1,270,941	25,698 3,449,242	247,620 29,882 2,646,209
Return of capital payable Distribution payable to external unitholders of the Scheme Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss		955,177 10,520,734 13,952	16,474,075 82,337,211 186,605,064	636,509 2,271,798 	113,324 4,050,721	- - -	- - -	- - -	2,531,047 47,526,880 -
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders)		12,295,594	303,821,571	3,515,545	5,945,842	193,562	1,292,076	3,474,940	52,981,638
Net assets attributable to unitholders		87,507,768	92,406,563	34,154,282	43,299,060	70,965,193	91,403,232	113,913,523	79,795,516
Represented by: Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation		87,507,768 	92,406,563	34,154,282	43,299,060	70,965,193	91,403,232	113,913,523	79,795,516 -
Total net assets attributable to unitholders	8	87,507,768	92,406,563	34,154,282	43,299,060	70,965,193	91,403,232	113,913,523	79,795,516

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Schi Equity Trus	roder Australian st (Consolidated Entity) [†]	OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust (Consolidated Entity)†		OneAnswer - Van Index Trus	guard Balanced st (Consolidated Entity)*
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Assets		· .	·		·				<u> </u>
Cash and cash equivalents	4	2,210,142	2,837,271	1,838,221	1,274,222	1,474,205	989,537	8,858,213	5,583,227
Receivables	5	12,048,874	4,409,855	2,688,897	5,455,608	2,444,959	4,741,419	11,022,534	7,438,319
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	261,406,267	197,159,183	241,382,338	243,726,782	186,510,083	160,323,086	978,060,671	232,878,355
Total assets		275,665,283	204,406,309	245,909,456	250,456,612	190,429,247	166,054,042	997,941,418	245,899,901
Liabilities									
Bank overdraft	4	-	-	-	379,058	-	564,990	357	75.446
Payables Distribution payable	/	485,414 3,514,303	103,345 3,273,244	38,126 2,445,397	55,906 1,239,391	29,358 8,549,587	34,810	104,813	75,146 7,281,541
Return of capital payable		3,314,303	3,2/3,244	2,445,397	1,239,391	0,549,507	1,476,381	4,105,575	7,201,541
Distribution payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		6,791,783	1,015,853	_	1,116,074	_	961.018	7,873,348	_
Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		123,785,120	47,835,887	-	106,944,762	-	61,830,939	409,888,890	-
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2	109,529	104,650	-			- , ,		-
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders)		134,686,149	52,332,979	2,483,523	109,735,191	8,578,945	64,868,138	421,972,983	7,356,687
Net assets attributable to unitholders		140,979,134	152,073,330	243,425,933	140,721,421	181,850,302	101,185,904	575,968,435	238,543,214
Represented by:									
Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price		140,979,134	152,073,330	243,425,933	140,721,421	181,850,302	101,185,904	575,968,435	238,543,214
Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation		-	-	-	-		-	-	-
Total net assets attributable to unitholders	8 .	140,979,134	152,073,330	243,425,933	140,721,421	181,850,302	101,185,904	575,968,435	238,543,214

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. The comparative results are for the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		Divers	Vanguard Index ified Bond Trust solidated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Assets		2 400 222	024 002
Cash and cash equivalents Receivables	4 5	2,488,333	931,883
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	2,833,872 291,204,082	12,027,938 160,257,390
Total assets	0.1	296,526,287	173,217,211
Total assets		290,320,267	1/3,21/,211
Liabilities			
Bank overdraft	4	-	-
Payables	7	38,158	25,354
Distribution payable		993,461	7,355,707
Return of capital payable		-	-
Distribution payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		1,741,365	
Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme		108,660,541	55,592,777
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2		-
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to unitholders)		111,433,525	66,885,564
Net assets attributable to unitholders		185,092,762	106,331,647
		200,002,702	200,002,047
Represented by:			
Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price		185,092,762	106,331,647
Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation		<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Total net assets attributable to unitholders	8	185,092,762	106,331,647

Statement of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

Under Australian Accounting Standards, net assets attributable to unitholders are classified as liability rather than equity. As such the Economic Entities have no equity, and no items of changes in equity have been presented for the current or comparative period.

Statements of Cash Flows for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

		Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)			ed Interest Trust solidated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Challeng (Con:	er Property Trust solidated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		⊅	Ф	Ψ	Φ		⊅ .		⊅
Cash flows from operating activities:									
Dividends received		-	-	172,597	307,213	-	-	-	-
Interest received		128,448	128,670	3,933,082	16,255,812	9,552	13,504	77,509	107,345
Unit trust distribution received		-	-	-	23,968	2,664,727	3,052,551	-	-
Other income (including FX gains/losses)		1,068,770	67,980	16,503	1,301,700	-	403,448	-	13,071
Interest paid		(288)	(46)	-	(229)	(2,912)	-	-	-
Operating expenses paid		(1,582,888)	(2,081,446)	(135,816)	(203,916)	(212,249)	(699,592)	(472,767)	(640,315)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities	3	(385,958)	(1,884,842)	3,986,366	17,684,548	2,459,118	2,769,911	(395,258)	(519,899)
Cash flows from investing activities:									
Proceeds from sale of investments		85,434,892	110,474,217	809,632,549	878,983,605	42,952,406	11,952,911	263,014,878	42,100,633
Purchase of investments		(52,207,745)	(81,396,981)	(1,491,390,709)	(817,246,047)	(38,015,537)	(3,918,873)	(221,696,241)	(7,928,237)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities		33,227,147	29,077,236	(681,758,160)	61,737,558	4,936,869	8,034,038	41,318,637	34,172,396
Cash flows from financing activities:									
Proceeds from issue of units		3,473,326	47,979,835	1,632,781,443	372,388,492	46,291,596	25,053,948	15,090,242	52,617,740
Payments for redemption of units		(34,710,959)	(76,728,316)	(957,098,356)	(457,471,918)	(52,980,211)	(36,929,458)	(59,797,214)	(86,883,876)
Distributions paid		(218,104)	(38,357)	(581,612)	(2,212,436)	(142,404)	(149,961)	(78,373)	(55,387)
Return of capital paid		(24 455 727)	(20.706.020)		(12,603)	(6 024 040)	(12,025,471)	(44 705 245)	(24 224 522)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		(31,455,737)	(28,786,838)	675,101,475	(87,308,465)	(6,831,019)	(12,025,4/1)	(44,785,345)	(34,321,523)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		1,385,452	(1,594,444)	(2,670,319)	(7,886,359)	564,968	(1,221,522)	(3,861,966)	(669,026)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents		339	(339)	-	-	-	-	(=/001/300)	-
Cash acquired / (disposed)		-	-	(1,356,008)	-	(420,152)	-	-	-
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year		877,599	2,472,382	4,080,300	11,966,659	(355,342)	866,180	5,846,610	6,515,636
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	4	2,263,390	877,599	53,973	4,080,300	(210,526)	(355,342)	1,984,644	5,846,610

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

			nePath Blue Chip ist (Consolidated Entity)	ANZ OA OnePath Markets Share Tro	Global Emerging ust (Consolidated Entity)	ANZ OA OnePath Po Trust (Con	roperty Securities solidated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
		\$	\$_	\$	\$_	\$	\$	\$ _	\$_	
Cash flows from operating activities:										
Dividends received		77,774,134	80,685,389	4,274,483	1,689,892	298,246	11,515,174	8,131,611	13,616,653	
Interest received		526,556	189,651	65,517	32,260	89,500	73,325	75,382	113,405	
Unit trust distribution received		706,232	1,601,232	-	-	23,859,925	27,630,504	626,421	1,013,627	
Other income (including FX gains/losses)		465,459	925,048	(527,205)	(15,599)	(280,398)	6,017,474	528	215,595	
Interest paid		(475)	(2,453)	(6,201)	-	(142)	(4,791)	(209)	(2,299)	
Operating expenses paid		(6,845,272)	(8,569,341)	(1,200,192)	(1,778,602)	(324,343)	(475,074)	(2,542,197)	(862,547)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities	3	72,626,634	74,829,526	2,606,402	(72,049)	23,642,788	44,756,612	6,291,536	14,094,434	
Cash flows from investing activities:										
Proceeds from sale of investments		1,304,674,108	1,319,266,946	336,721,622	69,092,719	257,129,198	539,991,527	563,512,958	1,389,551,766	
Purchase of investments		(948,740,130)	(1,146,288,124)	(250,919,273)	(54,431,584)	(240,337,597)	(631,097,439)	(564,377,202)	(1,406,190,410)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities		355,933,978	172,978,822	85,802,349	14,661,135	16,791,601	(91,105,912)	(864,244)	(16,638,644)	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			,,		,,		, , , , , ,	, , ,	, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
Cash flows from financing activities:										
Proceeds from issue of units		1,037,538,987	820,014,655	22,382,115	160,521,996	577,801,551	298,108,254	202,483,743	82,999,630	
Payments for redemption of units		(1,452,228,018)	(1,077,718,186)	(110,338,968)	(178,191,776)	(618,046,246)	(255,227,926)	(216,672,801)	(78,021,254)	
Distributions paid		(846,681)	(747,016)	(95)	(85)	(116,390)	(182,344)	(228,322)	(35,386)	
Return of capital paid				- (27 27 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2						
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		(415,535,712)	(258,450,547)	(87,956,948)	(17,669,865)	(40,361,085)	42,697,984	(14,417,380)	4,942,990	
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		13,024,900	(10,642,199)	451,803	(3,080,779)	73,304	(3,651,316)	(8,990,088)	2,398,780	
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents		-	(10,0.2,133)	(24,518)	36,187	(2,682)	(11,338)	(0,550,000)	-	
Cash acquired / (disposed)		-	-	(2./510)	4,279,673	(1,069,774)	(11/550)	217,612	-	
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year		2,258,869	12,901,068	2,181,988	946,907	2,367,732	6,030,386	9,356,546	6,957,766	
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	4	15,283,769	2,258,869	2,609,273	2,181,988	1,368,580	2,367,732	584,070	9,356,546	
					. ,-		. , .			

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		Investments - Austr	Path Sustainable alian Share Trust solidated Entity) [†]		ual International solidated Entity)		Companies Trust nsolidated Entity)	Global Share Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
		Ψ.	Ψ	Ų.	Ψ_	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ.	Ψ_	
Cash flows from operating activities:										
Dividends received		8,422,075	15,735,711	-	-	16,568,650	16,362,292	26,996,706	42,779,279	
Interest received		37,765	56,595	6,675	12,764	282,840	59,889	660,699	418,677	
Unit trust distribution received		706,667	904,450	-	-	-	29,335	- (10.651.100)	181,265	
Other income (including FX gains/losses)		19,480	248,971	- (262)	4,282	43,643	231,591	(10,651,408)	(13,204,651)	
Interest paid Operating expenses paid		(364,278)	(28) (110,780)	(363) (122,591)	(123,940)	(287) (3,244,914)	(54) (3,750,438)	(10,696) (767,392)	(3) (868,853)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		8,821,709	16,834,919	(116,279)	(106,894)	13,649,932	12,932,615	16,227,909	29,305,714	
Net cash nows from/ (used in) operating activities		0,021,709	10,034,919	(110,273)	(100,834)	13,049,932	12,932,013	10,227,909	29,303,714	
Cash flows from investing activities:										
Proceeds from sale of investments		105,193,142	474,469,145	10,433,602	101,974,004	393,954,011	386,149,087	1,333,160,595	2,184,006,308	
Purchase of investments		(97,430,547)	(451,555,065)	(629,163)	(50,434,459)	(331,206,004)	(339,986,639)	(1,151,799,502)	(2,605,287,430)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities		7,762,595	22,914,080	9,804,439	51,539,545	62,748,007	46,162,448	181,361,093	(421,281,122)	
Cook flows from financing potivities										
Cash flows from financing activities: Proceeds from issue of units		359,731,344	18,262,099	2,029,431	20,658,226	73,602,713	223,748,583	1,952,091,369	465,160,206	
Payments for redemption of units		(376,360,738)	(57,775,972)	(12,059,427)	(72,024,198)	(133,569,117)	(285,871,927)	(2,159,135,740)	(121,443,402)	
Distributions paid		(9,462)	(8,528)	(5,549)	(167)	(720,887)	(132,635)	(368)	(7,484)	
Return of capital paid		(=,:==,	-	-	-	-	(===,===,	-	(1,865)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		(16,638,856)	(39,522,401)	(10,035,545)	(51,366,139)	(60,687,291)	(62,255,979)	(207,044,739)	343,707,455	
Not ingresses // degresses) in each and each equivalents		(E4 EE2)	226 500	(247.205)	66 513	15 710 640	(2.160.016)	(0.4EE 737)	(40.267.052)	
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents		(54,552)	226,598	(347,385)	66,512	15,710,648	(3,160,916)	(9,455,737) 36,241	(48,267,953) (1,457,508)	
Cash acquired / (disposed)		(2,476,093)		-	- 58,677	-		30,241	(1,457,506)	
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year		2,560,223	2,333,625	730,479	605,290	834,080	3,994,996	11,975,487	61,700,948	
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	4	29,578	2,560,223	383,094	730,479	16,544,728	834,080	2,555,991	11,975,487	
The second secon			_,,,,,,,,,	222,034	,	20,0 : :,7 20	22 .,000	_,,	==,:::,107	

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)			tham Syndicated Isolidated Entity)		olonial First State ust (Consolidated Entity) [†]	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$_	\$	\$_	
Cash flows from operating activities:										
Dividends received		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Interest received		4,535	19,522	2,993	2,375	23,535	34,260	25,864	31,884	
Unit trust distribution received		1,607,256	5,903,468	5,437,063	5,081,610	-	-	-	-	
Other income (including FX gains/losses)		(6.04.6)	32,214,273	(0.505)	36,562	- (4 40=)	4,716	- (4.450)	8,377	
Interest paid		(6,316)	(464.760)	(2,695)	(244.626)	(1,127)	(220.046)	(1,452)	- (44.4.050)	
Operating expenses paid	- 3	(130,838) 1,474,637	(164,768)	(226,820)	(314,626)	(168,749)	(238,916)	(327,131)	(414,868)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		1,474,637	37,972,495	5,210,541	4,805,921	(146,341)	(199,940)	(302,719)	(374,607)	
Cash flows from investing activities:										
Proceeds from sale of investments		123,779,654	10,886,567	15,146,824	18,536,175	96,039,798	12,412,628	97,882,945	23,993,612	
Purchase of investments		(27,814,818)	(68,857,147)	(7,010,790)	(7,948,743)	(81,984,316)	(4,013,278)	(89,729,264)	(4,246,383)	
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities		95,964,836	(57,970,580)	8,136,034	10,587,432	14,055,482	8,399,350	8,153,681	19,747,229	
The cash hows from (asea in) investing activities		33/30-1/030	(37/37/0/300)	0/150/051	10/30//132	11/055/102	0,555,550	0,155,001	13/7 47/223	
Cash flows from financing activities:										
Proceeds from issue of units		4,454,247	66,741,713	3,351,955	18,593,825	8,325,306	48,428,853	15,815,009	26,159,878	
Payments for redemption of units		(98,688,939)	(29,814,123)	(16,187,106)	(33,785,596)	(23,354,335)	(56,783,324)	(23,075,928)	(46,911,167)	
Distributions paid		(1,094,202)	(19,265,047)	(492,595)	(508,065)	(31,754)	(52,727)	(98,948)	(104,927)	
Return of capital paid				· -	-	· · · - · ·		· · · - · ·		
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		(95,328,894)	17,662,543	(13,327,746)	(15,699,836)	(15,060,783)	(8,407,198)	(7,359,867)	(20,856,216)	
		0.440.570	(0.005.540)	40.000	(005 400)	(4.454.648)	(0.07 700)	404.005	(4 400 504)	
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		2,110,579	(2,335,542)	18,829	(306,483)	(1,151,642)	(207,788)	491,095	(1,483,594)	
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents		(586,177)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Cash acquired / (disposed)		(672.110)	1 ((2 422	120.424	126.017	1 020 570	2.046.250	-	1 004 400	
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year		(673,119)	1,662,423	130,434	436,917	1,838,570	2,046,358	500,815	1,984,409	
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year		851,283	(673,119)	149,263	130,434	686,928	1,838,570	991,910	500,815	

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Sc Equity Trust (Con	hroder Australian solidated Entity) [†]	OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust (Consolidated Entity)*	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ.	Ψ	Ψ.
Cash flows from operating activities:									
Dividends received		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Interest received		81,777	79,148	73,891	70,063	52,673	45,310	163,475	18,279
Unit trust distribution received		12,098,666	9,205,989		-	-	-	-	-
Other income (including FX gains/losses)		506,965	842,262	5	11,490	128,480	5,402	-	1,761
Interest paid		(11,496)	(29,565)	(505.400)	(507.002)	(264.247)	(227.472)	- (4.064.600)	(200 520)
Operating expenses paid		(1,153,310)	(1,187,874)	(505,190)	(597,893)	(364,317)	(327,172)	(1,064,688)	(308,529)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		11,522,602	8,909,960	(431,294)	(516,340)	(183,164)	(276,460)	(901,213)	(288,489)
Cash flows from investing activities:									
Proceeds from sale of investments		82,013,420	74,871,503	150,708,187	7,614,702	134,675,401	4,801,854	9,758,464	1,590,099
Purchase of investments		(150,262,899)	(67,548,874)	(173,415,726)	(18,549,928)	(163,442,358)	(43,740,159)	(387,648,991)	(215,342,516)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities		(68,249,479)	7,322,629	(22,707,539)	(10,935,226)	(28,766,957)	(38,938,305)	(377,890,527)	(213,752,417)
The case in the ca		(00/2:07:07	7,022,025	(==,::::,::::)	(10/000/110)	(20), 00,00, 7	(50)550)557	(271/020/021/	(===//==/, ==//
Cash flows from financing activities:									
Proceeds from issue of units		127,759,388	263,944,720	41,203,793	62,365,205	56,609,628	83,771,829	451,299,898	391,854,796
Payments for redemption of units		(70,013,295)	(279,854,070)	(17,066,167)	(54,188,099)	(26,458,858)	(46,207,434)	(63,854,373)	(172,549,591)
Distributions paid		(1,641,675)	(945,086)	(55,736)	(49,137)	(150,991)	(94,754)	(5,380,307)	(65,471)
Return of capital paid							(1,362)		
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		56,104,418	(16,854,436)	24,081,890	8,127,969	29,999,779	37,468,279	382,065,218	219,239,734
		(500 450)	(604.047)	0.40.055	(0.000.505)		(4 = 46 406)	2 2 2 2 4 2 2	5 400 000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		(622,459)	(621,847)	943,057	(3,323,597)	1,049,658	(1,746,486)	3,273,478	5,198,828
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents		(4,670)	1,959	-	-	-	-	-	-
Cash acquired / (disposed)		2 027 274	2 457 450	005 464	4 210 761	424 547	- 2 171 022	1,151	204 200
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year		2,837,271	3,457,159	895,164	4,218,761	424,547	2,171,033	5,583,227	384,399
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	4	2,210,142	2,837,271	1,838,221	895,164	1,474,205	424,547	8,857,856	5,583,227

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		OneAnswer Diversified Bond Ti	- Vanguard Index rust (Consolidated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Cash flows from operating activities: Dividends received		_	_
Interest received		53,352	26,386
Unit trust distribution received		<u>-</u>	-
Other income (including FX gains/losses) Interest paid		289	69,866
Operating expenses paid		(384,492)	(188,193)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities	3	(330,851)	(91,941)
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Proceeds from sale of investments		6,130,471	108,288,697
Purchase of investments		(103,668,273)	(165,684,712)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities	_	(97,537,802)	(57,396,015)
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Proceeds from issue of units		123,632,692	112,987,523
Payments for redemption of units		(24,051,575)	(55,137,643)
Distributions paid		(156,014)	(124,530)
Return of capital paid Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities		99,425,103	57,725,350
not cash home nom, (asset in) mananing according			0777207000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		1,556,450	237,394
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents Cash acquired / (disposed)		-	1,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year		931.883	693,489
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	4	2,488,333	931,883

Notes to the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

1. Significant accounting policies

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities included in these Consolidated Financial Statements are registered managed investment Schemes under the Corporations Act 2001.

These Consolidated Financial Statements are for the year ended 30 June 2012.

1.1 Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) (including Australian interpretations), adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. These Consolidated Financial Statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

These Consolidated Financial Statements were approved by the Directors of the Responsible Entity on 10 September 2012.

1.2 Basis of preparation

These Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Australian dollars and are prepared on historical cost basis with the exception of financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading, including derivatives, which are measured at fair value, and receivables and payables which are measured at amortised cost.

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The following standards and amendments were available for early adoption but have not been applied by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities in these Consolidated Financial Statements:

- AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) replacing AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement AASB 9 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
- AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. AASB 10 is applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
- AASB 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities. AASB 12 is applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

- AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. AASB 13 is applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
- AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Disclosures Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. AASB 2012-2 is applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
- AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. AASB 2012-3 is applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above accounting standards.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

1.3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent Scheme. Control exists when the Parent Scheme has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of another Scheme so as to obtain benefit from its activities. This is generally where the Parent Scheme owns greater than 50% of the units on issue in another Scheme. The financial statements of the subsidiary are included in these Consolidated Financial Statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Where the units in the Subsidiary Scheme are classified as a liability, the external unitholders (i.e. non-Parent Scheme unitholders) are classified as 'Amounts payable to external unitholders of the Scheme' in the Statements of Financial Position and changes in the amount payable are recorded as 'Finance costs' in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

1.3.2 Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-scheme balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-scheme transactions, are eliminated in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements.

1.4 Income and expenses

1.4.1 Income

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.4.1.1 Dividends

Dividend income is recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income on the exdividend date, gross of any non-recoverable related foreign withholding tax.

1.4.1.2 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income as it accrues, using the effective interest method, this also applies to premiums and discounts paid on interest bearing instruments. Interest income is recognised on a gross basis, including withholding tax, if any.

1.4.1.3 Unlisted unit trust distributions

Trust distribution income is recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income on a present entitlements basis.

1.4.2 Expenses

All expenses are recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income on an accurals basis.'Responsible Entity fees' are management fees paid to the Responsible Entity of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities, these expenses are accounted for on a accruals basis. Included in 'Interest expense' is interest accrued on overdraft balances held during the period.

1.5 Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/Total comprehensive income

Non-distributable income, which includes unrealised changes in the fair value of investments, net capital losses, accrued income not yet assessable and non-deductible expenses, is reflected in the Statements of Comprehensive Income as 'Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/Total comprehensive income'.

1.6 Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value

The majority of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities' net assets attributable to unitholders are financial instruments held at fair value and therefore the accounting policies relating to the valuation of financial assets and liabilities held at fair value are significant.

1.6.1 Classification

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading. These include investments in fixed interest securities, equity instruments, units in unlisted unit trusts, and derivative financial instruments.

1.6.2 Recognition/derecognition

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities recognise financial assets and financial liabilities on the date they become party to the contractual agreement (trade date) and recognises changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities from this date.

Investments are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the investments has expired or the Schemes making up the Econonic Entities have transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

1.6.3 Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at fair value. All transaction costs for financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised directly in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with any changes in the fair value recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

1.6.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In the normal course of business the Economic Entities enter into transactions in various derivative financial instruments. In accordance with the master netting agreements the following derivatives are settled net, futures, swaps and options. Forward currency contracts are settled gross.

1.6.5 Valuation

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities included in these Consolidated Financial Statements invest into a variety of assets, including cash, equities, fixed and floating rate interest securities, unit trusts and derivative contracts. Generally, valuation information is obtained from third party industry standard service providers to ensure that the most recent security prices are obtained. The prices used to value investments include, but are not limited to:

- independent prices obtained for each security;
- quoted 'bid' prices on long securities and quoted 'ask' prices on securities sold short;
- redemption prices published by the relevant Responsible Entity, for investments into unlisted unit trusts.

For certain investments, prices cannot be obtained from the above sources. In these instances, valuations obtained from service providers are estimated through the use of valuation models which are consistent with accepted industry practice and incorporate the best available information regarding assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the assets or liabilities. Irrespective of the method used by third party industry standard service providers to obtain valuations, prices achieved in actual transactions may be different.

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

If the fair value of the financial instrument is estimated through valuation models, valuation techniques include the use of recent arm's length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of other financial instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow techniques, option pricing models or other valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on best estimates and the discount rate used is the market rate at the reporting date applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market data at the reporting date.

1.6.5.1 Derivative financial instruments

A derivative financial instrument is a contract which is settled at a future date and whose value is derived from one or more underlying price, index, or other variable. They include swaps, forwards, futures and options. Derivatives are considered to be part of the investment process with the use of derivatives an essential part of a Scheme's portfolio management.

Derivatives are recognised at cost on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models.

In the normal course of business the Schemes making up the Economic Entities enter into transactions in various derivative financial instruments with certain risks.

Derivative financial instruments require no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and money market investments readily convertible to cash.

For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

1.8 Receivables

Receivables are carried at amortised cost and may include amounts for unsettled sales, accrued income and other receivables such as Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC) and application monies receivable from unitholders.

Unsettled sales are amounts due from brokers for securities sold that have not been received at reporting date. Trades are recorded on trade date, and normally settle within three business days.

Accrued income may include amounts for dividends, trust distributions, interest income and compensation income. Amounts are generally received within 30 days of being recorded as receivables.

RITC is the amount of GST recoverable from the ATO.

1.9 Payables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and may include amounts for unsettled purchases, accrued expenses and other payables such as GST and redemption monies owing by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

Unsettled purchases are amounts due to brokers for securities purchased that has not been paid at reporting date. Trades are recorded on trade date and normally settle within three business days.

Accrued expenses includes management fees payable.

1.10 Valuation of net assets attributable to unitholders

In accordance with AASB 132, unitholders' funds are classified as a financial liability and disclosed as such in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, being referred to as 'Net assets attributable to unitholders'. The units can be put back to the Schemes making up the Economic Entities at any time for cash equal to the proportionate share of the Schemes' making up the Economic Entities' net asset values. The value of redeemable units is measured at the redemption amount that is payable (based on the redemption unit price) at the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position date if unitholders exercised their right to put the units back to the Schemes making up the Economic Entities. Changes in the value of this financial liability are recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

1.10.1 Unit prices

Unit prices are determined in accordance with the Constitution of the relevant Schemes making up the Economic Entities and are calculated as the net assets attributable to unitholders, less estimated costs, divided by the number of units on issue in each class.

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.10.2 Redeemable units

All redeemable units issued by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities provide unitholders with the right to require redemption for cash and give rise to a financial liability. In accordance with the Constitution, the Schemes making up the Economic Entities are contractually obliged to redeem units at redemption price, which includes an allowance for transaction costs that would be incurred by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities on disposal of assets required to fund the redemptions. Where a transaction cost factor has been incurred, there will be a difference between the carrying amount of the net assets of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities (excluding the unitholders' funds classified as a financial liability) and the contractual amount payable to unitholders which is based on the redemption price. The 'Adjustment arising from different unit pricing and accounting valuation' is presented in the Statements of Financial Position as part of the 'Net assets attributable to unitholders'.

1.11 Distributions paid and payable

In accordance with the Constitutions, the Schemes making up the Economic Entities fully distribute their net income to unitholders. The distributions are determined by reference to the net taxable income of each Scheme.

Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of investments. Unrealised gains and losses are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable or distributable until realised.

Realised capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any future realised capital gains. Distributions paid and payable to unitholders are recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income as 'Finance costs'. Distributions paid are included in the Statements of Cash Flows as 'Net cash flows from /(used in) financing activities'.

1.12 Foreign currency gains and losses

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Australian currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses, arising on translation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency at reporting date, are recognised as part of the 'Net change in fair value of investments' in the Statements of Comprehensive Income. Realised gains and losses on amounts denominated in foreign currencies are also brought to account as part of 'Net change in fair value of investments' in the Statements of Comprehensive Income and as part of 'Other income' in the Statements of Cash Flows.

1.13 Taxation

Under current legislation the Schemes making up the Economic Entities are not subject to income tax as taxable income (including assessed realised capital gains) is distributed in full to the unitholders.

The Schemes currently incur reclaimable withholding tax imposed by certain countries on investment income. Such income is recorded gross of withholding tax in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

For securities that are subject to non-reclaimable foreign withholding tax upon disposition, liabilities are recorded on the Statements of Financial Position for the estimated tax withholding based on the securities' current market value. Upon disposition, realised gains or losses on such securities are recorded gross of foreign withholding tax.

1.14 Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Expenses incurred by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) as a reduced input tax credit (RITC).

Payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included in receivables in the Statements of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statements of Cash Flows on a gross basis.

1.15 Comparative information

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified or restated so as to be comparable with the figures in the current financial year.

1.16 Basis of consolidation

Where control of the subsidiary is acquired by the Parent Scheme during the financial year ended 30 June 2011, comparative figures will refer to the Parent Scheme only. 'Note 14. Ownership interest' provides specific details around controlling interests acquired during the current and comparative reporting periods.

1.17 Terms and conditions of units

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities have between one and three classes of units.

Each unit issued within each class confers upon the unitholder an equal interest in the relevant class and is of equal value. The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to each unit in each class are identical in all respects. The classes in the Schemes differ in terms of the Ongoing Fee charged.

Please refer to 'Note 9.2.1 Responsible Entity Fees' for the different Responsible Entity Fees charged for each class of units on issue in these Schemes.

A unit does not confer any interest in any particular asset or investment of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities. Unitholders have various rights under the Constitution and the Corporations Act 2001, including the right to:

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

- have their units redeemed
- receive income distributions
- attend and vote at meetings of unitholders
- participate in the termination and winding up of the Scheme.

2. Auditors' remuneration

		Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)			Interest Trust idated Entity) [†]		enger Property idated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity)†	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
KPMG - Financial statement audit Paid by RE - Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE	_	7,325 850	6,297 536	3,839 425	5,696 536	7,325 850	6,020 536	3,839 425	5,696 536
Paid by Scheme Total audit fees paid to KPMG	_	8,175	6,833	4,264	6,232	- 8,175	6,556	4,264	6,232
		Im	Path Blue Chip putation Trust lidated Entity)	Emerging Marke	nePath Global ts Share Trust lidated Entity)	ANZ OA One Securities Trust	ePath Property (Consolidated Entity) [†]		nePath Select (Consolidated Entity) [†]
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
KPMG - Financial statement audit Paid by RE		6,622	5,696	6,622	5,696	3,839	8,405	3,839	5,696
– Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE Paid by Scheme		850	536	850	536	425	804	425	536
Total audit fees paid to KPMG	_	7,472	6,232	7,472	6,232	4,264	9,209	4,264	6,232
		Investmen	th Sustainable its - Australian (Consolidated	Internation	OA Perpetual al Share Trust lidated Entity)		mpanies Trust lidated Entity)		al Share Trust dated Entity) [†]
	Note	Investmen	ts - Australian (Consolidated	Internation	al Share Trust				
KPMG - Financial statement audit Paid by RE	Note	Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011	Internation (Conso	al Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	(Conso	30 June 2011	(Consoli 30 June 2012	dated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011
– Financial statement audit Paid by RE – Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE	Note	Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$	ots - Australian (Consolidated Entity)† 30 June 2011	Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$	al Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$	(Conso	30 June 2011	(Consoli 30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011
– Financial statement audit Paid by RE – Compliance and regulatory	Note	Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 3,839	ots - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011 \$	Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 7,325	al Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 6,297	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$ 5,696	(Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 6,622	30 June 2011 \$ 8,405
– Financial statement audit Paid by RE – Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE Paid by Scheme	Note	Investment Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ \$ 3,839	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011 \$ 5,696	7,325 850 8,175 OneAnst Syndica	al Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 6,297 536	30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer State Di	30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 - 6,232	(Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer - Inv	30 June 2011 \$ 8,405 804 - 9,209
– Financial statement audit Paid by RE – Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE Paid by Scheme	Note	Investment Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ \$ 3,839	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)* 30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 6,232 Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated	7,325 850 8,175 OneAnst Syndica	30 June 2011 \$ 6,297 536 6,833 wer - Bentham ted Loan Trust	30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer State Di	30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 6,232 - Colonial First versified Trust	(Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer - Inv	30 June 2011 \$ 8,405 804 9,209 vestors Mutual an Share Trust
- Financial statement audit Paid by RE - Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE Paid by Scheme Total audit fees paid to KPMG KPMG - Financial statement audit Paid by RE		Investment Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 3,839 425 4,264 One A International (Hedged) 30 June 2012	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 6,232 Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated Entity) 30 June 2011	Internation (Consol 30 June 2012 \$ 7,325 850 8,175 OneAnst Syndica (Consol 30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$ 6,297 536 6,833 wer - Bentham ted Loan Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer State Di (Consol	30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 6,232 - Colonial First versified Trust idated Entity)' 30 June 2011	(Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer - Inv Australia (Consoli 30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$ 8,405 804 9,209 restors Mutual an Share Trust dated Entity)* 30 June 2011
- Financial statement audit Paid by RE - Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE Paid by Scheme Total audit fees paid to KPMG KPMG - Financial statement audit		Investment Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 3,839 425 4,264 One / International (Hedged) 30 June 2012 \$	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)* 30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 6,232 Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$	Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 7,325 850 8,175 OneAnst Syndica (Conso 30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$ 6,297 536 6,833 wer - Bentham ted Loan Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer State Di (Consol	30 June 2011 \$ 5,696 536 6,232 - Colonial First versified Trust idated Entity)† 30 June 2011 \$	(Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 6,622 850 7,472 OneAnswer - Inv Australia (Consoli 30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$ 8,405 804 9,209 vestors Mutual an Share Trust idated Entity)* 30 June 2011 \$

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

2. Auditors' remuneration

		Conservative	ver - Perpetual Growth Trust lidated Entity)	Australia	wer - Schroder n Equity Trust dated Entity) [†]	Fixed	neAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		ver - Vanguard ed Index Trust dated Entity)*
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
KPMG - Financial statement audit									
Paid by RE		3,839	3,311	3,839	5,696	3,839	5,696	3,839	2,986
– Compliance and regulatory Paid by RE Paid by Scheme		425	268	425	536	425	536	425	268
Total audit fees paid to KPMG		4,264	3,579	4,264	6,232	4,264	6,232	4,264	3,254

		OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust (Consolidated Entity)			
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011		
		\$	\$		
KPMG					
- Financial statement audit					
Paid by RE		3,839	2,986		
- Compliance and regulatory					
Paid by RE		425	268		
Paid by Scheme			4,108		
Total audit fees paid to KPMG		4,264	7,362		

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

3. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Trust income reinvested

3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activitiesDistributions reinvested by unitholders in additional trust units

Other Non-cash financing and investing activities (in-specie transfers)

		Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ Fixed Interest Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust (Consolidated Entity)†		ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity)†	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011
3.1 Profit/(Loss) from operating activities		(4,638,678)	9,153,115	46,149,459	53,265,735	3,411,164	2,710,989	(20,362,989)	35,684,428
Adjustments for net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on: Change in fair value of investments		7,584,229	(6,395,024)	(20,062,175)	1,262,528	(1,105,131)	(867,723)	31,224,437	(24,861,275)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)		1,068,501	25,310	(20,002,173)	867,427	(1,103,131)	(007,723)	51,224,457	(24,001,273)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			505.400	(00.101.001)	(0.500.000)	// 505 5 403		(11.050.001)	(000 117)
Interest, dividends and other receivables Accrued expenses		610,716 (22,631)	597,403 (57,776)	(22,101,881) 971	(8,508,829) 83	(1,535,740) (988)	934,198 (7,555)	(11,250,201) (6,504)	(320,117) (12,324)
Income reinvested		(4,988,095)	(5,207,870)	(8)	(29,202,396)	1,689,813	(7,555)	(1)	(11,010,611)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		(385,958)	(1,884,842)	3,986,366	17,684,548	2,459,118	2,769,911	(395,258)	(519,899)
3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities		, , ,			, ,	, ,	,,	, , ,	, , , , , , , ,
Distributions reinvested by unitholders in additional trust units		9,329,150	5,451,974	58,725,717	97,369,786	2,224,848	4,141,842	7,433,323	18,150,305
Trust income reinvested		10,224,141	5,207,870	34,747,005	29,202,396	2,463,184	-	7,961,967	11,010,611
Other Non-cash financing and investing activities (in-specie transfers)	9.1			646,023,587	120,470,973	28,479,826		87,124,829	-
		ANZ OA One	Path Blue Chip	ANZ OA O	nePath Global	ANZ OA One	Path Property	ANZ OA C	nePath Select
			putation Trust	Emerging Marke		Securities Trust			(Consolidated
			lidated Entity)		lidated Entity)	55521111.55 11451	Entity) [†]		Entity)†
		((,		Littley,		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
3.1 Profit/(Loss) from operating activities		(161,254,554)	135,228,982	(30,306,232)	(7,104,346)	(14,820,786)	33,794,577	(27,014,794)	52,949,209
Adjustments for net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on:			(== <== ===)						(00.000.000.000.000
Change in fair value of investments Foreign exchange gain/(loss)		231,694,754	(57,629,328)	33,008,061	7,969,516	37,711,354	10,725,207 5,750,334	36,301,694	(37,809,756)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		-	-	(486,315)	(1,285,398)	=	3,730,334	-	-
Interest, dividends and other receivables		3,167,012	(1,937,381)	398,857	400,894	(21,048,527)	(1,070,920)	(2,970,839)	(976,793
Accrued expenses		(6,378)	(145,167)	(7,969)	(52,714)	(6,218)	(11,340)	(24,525)	(14,789
Income reinvested		(974,200)	(687,580)		(1)	21,806,965	(4,431,246)		(53,437
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		72,626,634	74,829,526	2,606,402	(72,049)	23,642,788	44,756,612	6,291,536	14,094,434
3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities Distributions reinvested by unitholders in additional trust units		153,100,170	153,597,241	9,742,374	720,285	19,420,174	113,643,040	17.934.318	20.933.373
Trust income reinvested		67,881,636	687,580	4,840,723	1,261,481	21,435,698	4,431,246	19,512,821	53,437
Other Non-cash financing and investing activities (in-specie transfers)	9.1	904,890,326	521,363,983		117,478,451	219,402,048	22,321,348	162,787,833	-
			th Sustainable		OA Perpetual		mpanies Trust		al Share Trust
			ts - Australian		al Share Trust	(Conso	lidated Entity)	(Consoli	dated Entity)†
		Share Trust	(Consolidated	(Conso	lidated Entity)				
	Nete	20 1 2012	Entity) [†]	20 1 2012	20 3 2011	20 3 2012	20 1 2011	20 1 2012	20 1 2011
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
3.1 Profit/(Loss) from operating activities		(41,849,979)	60,625,682	(545,783)	(1,349,406)	(36,212,917)	72,965,337	(151,908,794)	18,355,558
Adjustments for net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on:		(.2,515,575)	55,025,002	(343,703)	(2,515,100)	(55,212,517)	. 2,303,337	(151,500,751)	10,555,550
Change in fair value of investments		51,015,376	(42,934,867)	1,084,476	1,857,362	49,972,201	(59,604,877)	177,897,171	28,640,341
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)		-	-	-	-	-	-	(10,215,179)	(14,273,796)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		(242 E42)	(652.550)	(22.205)	(272.000)	124.000	122 244	(24 (00 047)	(1.020.024)
Interest, dividends and other receivables Accrued expenses		(343,542) (146)	(652,550) (1,988)	(32,385) (330)	(273,909) (5,415)	134,860 7,633	133,311 (174,145)	(24,688,047) 224	(1,930,824)
Income reinvested		(140)	(201,358)	(622,257)	(335,526)	(251,845)	(387,011)	25,142,534	(1,464,964)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		8,821,709	16,834,919	(116,279)	(106,894)	13,649,932	12,932,615	16,227,909	29,305,714
2.2 Non-cach financing and investing activities									

1,051,774

994,695

29,356,956

201,358

7,643,151 7,947,484

455,951 335,526

25,223,625

37,388,556

18,895,267

138,557,005

22,978,263

75,589,442

387,011

68,608,488

29,159,348

3,388,268,916

147,196,123

1,464,964 10,721,499

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

3. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

		One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Fntity)		OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust (Consolidated Entity)†		OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
3.1 Profit/(Loss) from operating activities		(4,595,897)	16,652,127	2,842,461	7,091,607	(1,485,756)	6,423,321	1,194,604	16,098,574
Adjustments for net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on:									
Change in fair value of investments		6,870,752	(15,192,579)	1,668,361	(965,793)	3,024,650	(2,920,841)	4,025,258	(10,020,602)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)		-	32,209,856	-	-	-	-	-	-
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:									
Interest, dividends and other receivables		(791,359)	(18,760,186)	666,035	(1,314,955)	(1,681,022)	(154,808)	(5,526,563)	(1,210,522)
Accrued expenses		(8,858)	(2,647)	33,685	(4,937)	(4,213)	(9,309)	3,982	(15,993)
Income reinvested		(1)	23,065,924	(1)	(1)	-	(3,538,303)	-	(5,226,064)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		1,474,637	37,972,495	5,210,541	4,805,921	(146,341)	(199,940)	(302,719)	(374,607)
3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities									
Distributions reinvested by unitholders in additional trust units		32,400,799	35,059,537	4,676,766	4,194,194	2,478,512	6,831,153	3,611,910	9,935,910
Trust income reinvested		18,129,357	23,065,924	5,104,908	4,661,000	2,862,480	3,538,303	5,399,526	5,226,064
Other Non-cash financing and investing activities (in-specie transfers)	9.1		42,818,808	-	-	-	_	41,570,540	-

		OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust (Consolidated Entity)†		OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust (Consolidated Entity)*	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
3.1 Profit/(Loss) from operating activities		15,225,436	12,901,144	(3,654,357)	29,737,086	13,050,847	9,819,398	44,565,158	4,141,869
Adjustments for net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on:									
Change in fair value of investments		3,706,404	(1,942,411)	11,487,697	(22,746,784)	(3,729,993)	(984,335)	(17,552,102)	8,057,549
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:									
Interest, dividends and other receivables		(7,436,119)	(2,033,929)	(8,261,828)	(988,055)	(9,507,955)	(1,138,362)	8,850,819	(7,161,594)
Accrued expenses		26,881	(14,844)	(2,805)	(13,903)	3,937	(7,374)	5,496	51,401
Income reinvested				(1)	(6,504,684)		(7,965,787)	(36,770,584)	(5,377,714)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		11,522,602	8,909,960	(431,294)	(516,340)	(183,164)	(276,460)	(901,213)	(288,489)
3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities									
Distributions reinvested by unitholders in additional trust units		8,703,254	6,145,175	4,127,045	9,749,442	6,747,590	12,474,382	41,301,891	5,114,538
Trust income reinvested		9,351,792	-	4,703,634	6,504,684	7,221,275	7,965,787	54,050,565	5,377,715
Other Non-cash financing and investing activities (in-specie transfers)	9.1		-	103,859,212	<u> </u>	75,240,436		<u> </u>	· · ·

		OneAnswer - Vanguard Inde Diversified Bond Trus (Consolidated Entity			
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011		
		\$	\$		
3.1 Profit/(Loss) from operating activities		26,012,944	4,455,662		
Adjustments for net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on:					
Change in fair value of investments		(19,869,653)	12,431,099		
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)		. , , , ,	· · ·		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:					
Interest, dividends and other receivables		8,489,552	(10,577,441)		
Accrued expenses		17,144	(4,023)		
Income reinvested		(14,980,838)	(6,397,238)		
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities		(330,851)	(91,941)		
3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities					
Distributions reinvested by unitholders in additional trust units		24,339,172	6,203,915		
Trust income reinvested		24,782,368	6,397,238		
Other Non-cash financing and investing activities (in-specie transfers)	9.1		<u> </u>		

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

			Growth Trust lidated Entity)		Interest Trust idated Entity) [†]		enger Property idated Entity) [†]	Im	nial First State putation Trust idated Entity) [†]
Cash at bank Bank overdraft Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	Note	30 June 2012 \$ 2,263,390 - 2,263,390	30 June 2011 \$ 877,599 - 877,599	30 June 2012 \$ 53,973 - 53,973	30 June 2011 \$ 4,080,300 - 4,080,300	30 June 2012 \$ 170,338 (380,864) (210,526)	30 June 2011 \$ 477,071 (832,413) (355,342)	30 June 2012 \$ 1,984,644 - 1,984,644	30 June 2011 \$ 5,846,610 - 5,846,610
		Im	Path Blue Chip putation Trust lidated Entity)	Emerging Marke	OnePath Global ets Share Trust lidated Entity)	ANZ OA One Securities Trust	ePath Property (Consolidated Entity) [†]		OnePath Select (Consolidated Entity) [†]
Cash at bank Bank overdraft Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	Note	30 June 2012 \$ 15,283,769 - 15,283,769	30 June 2011 \$ 2,258,869 - 2,258,869	30 June 2012 \$ 2,609,273 - 2,609,273	30 June 2011 \$ 2,181,988 - 2,181,988	30 June 2012 \$ 1,368,580 - 1,368,580	30 June 2011 \$ 2,367,732 - 2,367,732	30 June 2012 \$ 584,070 - 584,070	30 June 2011 \$ 9,356,546 - 9,356,546
			th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†]	Internation	Z OA Perpetual nal Share Trust lidated Entity)		mpanies Trust lidated Entity)		oal Share Trust idated Entity) [†]
Cash at bank Bank overdraft Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year	Note	Investmen	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011 \$ 2,560,223	30 June 2012 \$ 383,094	nal Share Trust	30 June 2012 \$ 16,544,728	30 June 2011 \$ 873,310 (39,230)	(Consol 30 June 2012 \$ 2,555,991	30 June 2011 \$ 11,975,487
Bank overdraft	Note	Investment Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 29,578 29,578 One / International	ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011	Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 383,094 - 383,094 OneAns Syndica	al Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 730,479	30 June 2012 \$ 16,544,728 	30 June 2011 \$ 873,310	30 June 2012 \$ 2,555,991 - 2,555,991 OneAnswer - In Australia	30 June 2011 \$ 11,975,487

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

		OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Australian Equity Trust					
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Cash at bank		2,210,142	2,837,271	1,838,221	1,274,222	1,474,205	989,537	8,858,213	5,583,227
Bank overdraft		-	-		(379,058)		(564,990)	(357)	-
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year		2,210,142	2,837,271	1,838,221	895,164	1,474,205	424,547	8,857,856	5,583,227

		OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust (Consolidated Entity)			
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011		
		\$	\$		
Cash at bank		2,488,333	931,883		
Bank overdraft		-	-		
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year		2,488,333	931,883		

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

5. Receivables

			Growth Trust lidated Entity)		Interest Trust idated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Challe Trust (Consoli	enger Property dated Entity) [†]	Im	nial First State putation Trust dated Entity) [†]
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable Future and swap deposits		715,882 868	1,402,251 - - 917,396	229,517 - -	17,761,344 3,734,286 - 3,685,913	477,832 333 774,426	1,312,858	2,197,976 1,653	2,098,479 - - -
Other receivables Total receivables		221,131 937,881	111,135 2,430,782	229,517	4,199 25,185,742	9,858 1,262,449	49,628 1,362,486	25,832 2,225,461	45,208 2,143,687
		ANZ OA One	Path Blue Chip	ANZ OA C Emerging Marke	nePath Global		Path Property	ANZ OA O	nePath Select (Consolidated Entity) [†]
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable		7,681,803 147,583 21,225	\$ 12,468,389 309,463 6,361 1,405,463	\$ 715,938 276,238 1,291 160,224	\$ 1,164,066 - 298 2,189,572	4,350,564 2,268	\$ 11,846,080 5,625	100,531 799	2,476,439 267,453 7,701 16,901,926
Future and swap deposits Other receivables		2,283,253 2,090,407	533,120	- 64,291	- 37,372	10,238	351,156 31,326	18,808	121,040 149,765
					2 201 200	4,363,070	12 224 107	120,138	19,924,324
Total receivables		12,224,271	14,722,796	1,217,982	3,391,308	4,303,070	12,234,187	120,138	19,924,324
Total receivables		ANZ OA OnePa Investmen	th Sustainable its - Australian (Consolidated Entity)†	ANZ Internation	2 OA Perpetual lal Share Trust lidated Entity)	Emerging Co	mpanies Trust lidated Entity)	Glob	al Share Trust dated Entity) [†]
Total receivables	Note	ANZ OA OnePa Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012	th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated	ANZ Internation (Conso 30 June 2012	OA Perpetual lal Share Trust lidated Entity)	Emerging Co	mpanies Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	Glob (Consoli 30 June 2012	al Share Trust
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable Future and swap deposits	Note	ANZ OA OnePa Investmen Share Trust	th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity) [†]	ANZ Internation (Conso	OA Perpetual al Share Trust lidated Entity)	Emerging Co (Conso 30 June 2012	mpanies Trust lidated Entity)	Glob (Consoli	al Share Trust dated Entity) [†]
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable	Note	ANZ OA OnePa Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$	th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)† 30 June 2011 \$ 2,962,297 297,700 3,781	Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 654,450	OA Perpetual lal Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	Emerging Co (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 194,933 45,341	mpanies Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 287,951 86,579 6,276	Glob (Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 169,928	30 June 2011 \$ 2,813,584 821,292 11,294 35,316,596
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable Future and swap deposits Other receivables	Note	ANZ OA OnePa Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 40,038 98 - - 665 40,801	th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)† 30 June 2011 \$ 2,962,297 297,700 3,781 2,800,552 33,630	ANZ Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 654,450 199 - 6,234 660,883 OneAnsv Syndica	C OA Perpetual all Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 533,878	8 Emerging Co (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 194,933 45,341 1,501,558 96,911 1,838,743 OneAnswer State Di	mpanies Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 287,951 86,579 6,276 - 162,716 543,522	Glob (Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 169,928 - 2,533 574,229 521,486 1,268,176 OneAnswer - Inv	al Share Trust dated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011 \$ 2,813,584 821,292 11,294 35,316,596 12,487,098 10,499 51,460,363
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable Future and swap deposits Other receivables	Note	ANZ OA OnePa Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 40,038 98 - - 665 40,801	th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)* 30 June 2011 \$ 2,962,297 297,700 3,781 2,800,552 33,630 6,097,960 Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated	ANZ Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 654,450 199 - 6,234 660,883 OneAnsv Syndica	C OA Perpetual lal Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 533,878 11,279 545,157 wer - Bentham ted Loan Trust	8 Emerging Co (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 194,933 45,341 1,501,558 96,911 1,838,743 OneAnswer State Di	mpanies Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 287,951 86,579 6,276 - 162,716 543,522 • Colonial First	Glob (Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 169,928 - 2,533 574,229 521,486 1,268,176 OneAnswer - Inv	al Share Trust dated Entity)† 30 June 2011 \$ 2,813,584 821,292 11,294 35,316,596 12,487,098 10,499 51,460,363 restors Mutual an Share Trust
Dividends receivable Unit trust distribution receivable Interest receivable Outstanding settlements receivable Future and swap deposits Other receivables		ANZ OA OnePa Investmen Share Trust 30 June 2012 \$ 40,038 98	th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)† 30 June 2011 \$ 2,962,297 297,700 3,781 2,800,552 33,630 6,097,960 Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated Entity) 30 June 2011	ANZ Internation (Conso 30 June 2012 \$ 654,450 199 6,234 660,883 OneAnst Syndica (Conso	C OA Perpetual lal Share Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 533,878 11,279 545,157 wer - Bentham ted Loan Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$ 194,933 - 45,341 1,501,558 96,911 1,838,743 OneAnswer State Di (Consoli	mpanies Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$ 287,951 86,579 6,276 162,716 543,522 • Colonial First versified Trust idated Entity) 30 June 2011	Glob (Consoli 30 June 2012 \$ 169,928 2,533 574,229 521,486 1,268,176 OneAnswer - Inv Australia (Consoli 30 June 2012	al Share Trust dated Entity)* 30 June 2011 \$ 2,813,584 821,292 11,294 35,316,596 12,487,098 10,499 51,460,363 restors Mutual an Share Trust dated Entity)* 30 June 2011

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

5. Receivables

		OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Australian Equity Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		(Consolidated Entity) [†]			
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Dividends receivable		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Unit trust distribution receivable		11,872,106	4,378,720	2,664,450	2,607,260	2,433,476	2,510,123	10,988,139	7,431,299
Interest receivable		4,202	3,692	3,021	-	2,239	-	7,739	-
Outstanding settlements receivable		-	-	-	2,811,947	-	2,212,663	-	-
Future and swap deposits		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Other receivables		172,566	27,443	21,426	36,401	9,244	18,633	26,656	7,020
Total receivables		12,048,874	4,409,855	2,688,897	5,455,608	2,444,959	4,741,419	11,022,534	7,438,319

			anguard Index ied Bond Trust lidated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$
Dividends receivable		-	-
Unit trust distribution receivable		2,824,629	11,312,603
Interest receivable		2,330	-
Outstanding settlements receivable		-	701,950
Future and swap deposits		-	-
Other receivables		6,913	13,385
Total receivables		2,833,872	12,027,938

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		Growth Trust lidated Entity)		Interest Trust dated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Challe Trust (Consoli		Im	nial First State putation Trust dated Entity) [†]	In	Path Blue Chip putation Trust idated Entity)†	Emerging Marke	nePath Global ts Share Trust dated Entity) [†]
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$
6.1 Financial assets held at fair value through profit and	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
loss Held for trading												
Listed securities Interest bearing securities	-	-		4,875,181 287,631,477		=	_		761,624,770	1,544,966,922	112,346,914	235,808,072
Unlisted unit trusts	89,950,155	126,786,616	13,266,411	412,737,114	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219	-	26,974,591	-	-
Derivative assets Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and	<u> </u>	224,579	-	490,686	-	-	<u> </u>	-	119,297	120,000		1,465,778
loss	89,950,155	127,011,195	13,266,411	705,734,458	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219	761,744,067	1,572,061,513	112,346,914	237,273,850
Comprising: Listed securities Listed equities	-	=	-	4,875,181	-	-	=	-	757,836,795		112,346,914	235,808,072
Listed property trusts Total listed securities				4.875.181					3,787,975 761.624.770	45,535,461 1.544.966.922	112.346.914	235.808.072
Interest bearing securities				-1,0,0,101					. 02/02-1/770	,5.1.,500,522		_55,555,572
Government securities	-	-	-	265,978,019	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Corporate bonds Floating rate notes	-	-	-	16,898,739 4,754,719		-	-		-	-	-	-
Total interest bearing securities		-		287,631,477		-	-	-				-
Unlisted unit trusts												
Related unlisted unit trusts Unrelated unlisted unit trusts	89,950,155	126,088,683 697,933	13,266,411	412,737,114	2,527,305 38,916,236	406,492 49,258,406	- 272,577,414	- 349,858,219	=	26,974,591	=	-
Total unlisted unit trusts	89,950,155	126,786,616	13,266,411	412,737,114	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219	-	26,974,591	-	
Derivative assets												
Foreign currency forward contracts	-	204,474	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,465,778
Futures Options	-	20,105	-	390,318	-	-	-	-	119,297	120,000	-	-
Interest rate swaps Index swaps	-	-	-	100,368	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total derivative assets		224,579		490,686		-	-		119,297	120,000		1,465,778
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and												
loss	89,950,155	127,011,195	13,266,411	705,734,458	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219	761,744,067	1,572,061,513	112,346,914	237,273,850
6.2 Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and												
loss Held for trading Derivative liabilities		E03 434		1 020 722						15 550 000		1 460 004
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit	 -	502,434		1,029,732			-			15,559,800		1,468,064
and loss		502,434		1,029,732						15,559,800		1,468,064
Comprising: Derivative liabilities												
Foreign currency forward contracts	-	201,189	-	1 020 722	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,468,064
Futures Options	-	301,245	-	1,029,732	-	-	-	-	-	15,559,800	-	-
Total return swaps Total derivative liabilities		502,434		1,029,732		-	-	-		15,559,800		1,468,064
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit		302,434		1,029,732						15,359,800		1,408,004
and loss		502,434		1,029,732		-		-		15,559,800		1,468,064

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

	ANZ OA One Securities Trust	Path Property (Consolidated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA O Leaders Trust	nePath Select (Consolidated Entity) [†]		th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)	Internation	OA Perpetual al Share Trust lidated Entity)		mpanies Trust idated Entity) [†]		oal Share Trust lidated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
6.1 Financial assets held at fair value through profit and	-	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	7		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	,	<u> </u>	-	
loss Held for trading												
Listed securities	_	808,374,553	_	404,171,642	_	423,397,139	_	_	250,646,647	423,573,239	113,316,927	2,037,116,748
Interest bearing securities	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	,,	-	,,	-,,,-
Unlisted unit trusts	196,735,505	-	66,765,992	1,214,758	7,902,619	5,772,659	32,570,583	43,252,616	403,368	8,751,774	-	47,667,338
Derivative assets Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and		9,960,274				14,846,865				-	680,273	138,295,338
loss	196,735,505	818,334,827	66,765,992	405,386,400	7,902,619	444,016,663	32,570,583	43,252,616	251,050,015	432,325,013	113,997,200	2,223,079,424
Comprising: Listed securities Listed equities	_	18,348,014		383,958,222		393,328,190			250,646,647	423,573,239	113,316,927	2,037,116,748
Listed property trusts		790,026,539	-	20,213,420	-	30,068,949	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total listed securities		808,374,553		404,171,642	-	423,397,139			250,646,647	423,573,239	113,316,927	2,037,116,748
Interest bearing securities Government securities Corporate bonds	-	- -	-	- -	-	÷ -	-	<u>-</u> -	- - -	-	- -	-
Floating rate notes	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	_
Total interest bearing securities		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Unlisted unit trusts Related unlisted unit trusts Unrelated unlisted unit trusts	196,735,505		66,765,992	1,214,758	7,902,619	5,772,659	847,577 31,723,006	43,252,616	403,368	8,751,774		47,667,338
Total unlisted unit trusts	196,735,505	-	66,765,992	1,214,758	7,902,619	5,772,659	32,570,583	43,252,616	403,368	8,751,774		47,667,338
Derivative assets Foreign currency forward contracts Futures Options Interest rate swaps	- - - -	9,960,274 - - -	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -	- - 14,846,865 -	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -	- - - -	680,273 - - -	136,945,937 1,349,401 - -
Index swaps Total derivative assets		- 0.000.374				14 046 065			-	-	-	120 205 220
Total delivative assets		9,960,274			<u>-</u>	14,846,865					680,273	138,295,338
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	196,735,505	818,334,827	66,765,992	405,386,400	7,902,619	444,016,663	32,570,583	43,252,616	251,050,015	432,325,013	113,997,200	2,223,079,424
6.2 Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Held for trading												
Derivative liabilities Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit		10,122,089	-	30,495			-	-		-	680,350	136,997,390
and loss		10,122,089		30,495		-		-	-	-	680,350	136,997,390
Comprising: Derivative liabilities		0.020.242									cno 250	124 242 200
Foreign currency forward contracts Futures	-	9,938,348	-	-	-	-	-	=	-	-	680,350	134,742,700 2,254,690
Options	=	183,741	=	30,495	=	= =	=	= =	=	=	=	2,234,090
Total return swaps Total derivative liabilities		10,122,089		30,495				 -			680,350	136,997,390
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss		10,122,089		30,495	-			-			680,350	136,997,390

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

	International 6	Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated Entity)	Syndica	wer - Bentham Ited Loan Trust Ilidated Entity)	State Di	- Colonial First versified Trust idated Entity) [†]		vestors Mutual an Share Trust idated Entity) [†]	Conservative	ver - Perpetual Growth Trust idated Entity) [†]	Australia	ver - Schroder n Equity Trust dated Entity) [†]
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
6.1 Financial assets held at fair value through profit and	\$	\$\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
loss												
Held for trading Listed securities									3,920,355	1,538,745		
Interest bearing securities		-		-	-	-	-	-	3,920,333	1,336,743	-	
Unlisted unit trusts	94,844,537	203,726,358	36,215,450	46,792,286	70,127,462	89,528,127	112,781,110	125,932,960	257,426,161	195,344,870	241,382,338	243,726,782
Derivative assets Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and	1,704,442	188,901,934							59,751	275,568		
loss	96,548,979	392,628,292	36,215,450	46,792,286	70,127,462	89,528,127	112,781,110	125,932,960	261,406,267	197,159,183	241,382,338	243,726,782
Comprising: Listed securities Listed equities Listed property trusts	-	- -				- -	- -		3,920,355	1,538,745	<u> </u>	
Total listed securities		-				-			3,920,355	1,538,745		-
Interest bearing securities Government securities Corporate bonds Floating rate notes	= = =	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	= = =	- - -	= = =	- - -
Total interest bearing securities		-				-						-
Unlisted unit trusts Related unlisted unit trusts Unrelated unlisted unit trusts Total unlisted unit trusts	94,844,537 94,844,537	203,726,358 203,726,358	36,215,450 36,215,450	46,792,286 46,792,28 6	70,127,462 70,127,462	89,528,127 89,528,127		125,932,960 125,932,960	257,426,161 257,426,161	195,344,870 195,344,870	241,382,338 241,382,338	243,726,782 243,726,782
Derivative assets												
Foreign currency forward contracts	1,704,442	188,901,934	-	-	-	-	-	-	58,179	13,151	-	-
Futures Options	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,572	76,684	-	-
Interest rate swaps	-	=	=	=	-	=	-	-	-	135,966	-	-
Index swaps Total derivative assets	1,704,442	188,901,934							59,751	49,767 275,568		
	1,704,442	100,501,554							35,731	275,500		
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	96,548,979	392,628,292	36,215,450	46,792,286	70,127,462	89,528,127	112,781,110	125,932,960	261,406,267	197,159,183	241,382,338	243,726,782
6.2 Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Held for trading												
Derivative liabilities Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit	13,952	186,605,064				-			109,529	104,650		
and loss	13,952	186,605,064							109,529	104,650		
Comprising: Derivative liabilities	13,952	186,605,064							12,865			
Foreign currency forward contracts Futures	13,952	100,003,004	-	-	-	-	-	-	43,975	104,650	-	-
Options	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-
Total return swaps Total derivative liabilities	13,952	186,605,064		-			-	<u>-</u>	52,689 109,529	104,650	<u>-</u>	
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	13.952	186,605,064							109,529	104.650		
	10,932	_00,000,004							103,323	20.,030		

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		BS Diversified Income Trust dated Entity) [†]	Balanc	ver - Vanguard ed Index Trust dated Entity)*		inguard Index ed Bond Trust idated Entity)
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
6.1 Financial assets held at fair value through profit and	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
loss						
Held for trading						
Listed securities	-	-	-	-	-	-
Interest bearing securities Unlisted unit trusts	186,510,083	160,323,086	978,060,671	232,878,355	291,204,082	160,257,390
Derivative assets	100,310,003	100,323,000		232,070,333	291,204,002	100,237,390
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	186,510,083	160,323,086	978,060,671	232,878,355	291,204,082	160,257,390
Ci-i						
Comprising: Listed securities						
Listed equities	-	-	-	-	-	-
Listed property trusts		-	-	-	-	-
Total listed securities						
Interest bearing securities						
Government securities	-	-	-	-	-	-
Corporate bonds	-	-	-	-	-	-
Floating rate notes Total interest bearing securities						
rotal litterest bearing securities					<u>-</u>	
Unlisted unit trusts						
Related unlisted unit trusts		2,086				
Unrelated unlisted unit trusts Total unlisted unit trusts	186,510,083 186,510,083	160,321,000 160,323,086	978,060,671 978,060,671	232,878,355 232,878,355	291,204,082 291,204,082	160,257,390 160,257,390
Total unitsted unit trusts	180,510,085	100,323,080	978,000,071	232,676,333	291,204,082	100,237,390
Derivative assets						
Foreign currency forward contracts	=	-	=	-	-	-
Futures Options	-	-	-	-	-	-
Interest rate swaps	-	_	-	-	-	_
Index swaps		-	-	-	-	-
Total derivative assets		-	-		-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss		460 000 006				460 057 000
ioss	186,510,083	160,323,086	978,060,671	232,878,355	291,204,082	160,257,390
6.2 Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and						
loss						
Held for trading Derivative liabilities						
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit						
and loss		-	-		-	-
Commission						
Comprising: Derivative liabilities						
Foreign currency forward contracts	-	-	-	-	-	-
Futures	-	-	-	-	-	-
Options	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total return swaps Total derivative liabilities			<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>		
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit						
and loss						

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

7. Payables

	Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)			Interest Trust idated Entity) [†]		enger Property idated Entity) [†]	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Outstanding settlements payable	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Responsible Entity fee payable	108,728	185,035	10,329	12,066	12,342	55,628	31,016	56,896	
Other payables	_	81	42	-	23	124			
Total payables	108,728	185,116	10,371	12,066	12,365	55,752	31,016	56,896	
	In	Path Blue Chip putation Trust blidated Entity)	Emerging Marke	OnePath Global ets Share Trust Ilidated Entity)	ANZ OA Ond Securities Trust	ePath Property : (Consolidated Entity)†		OnePath Select : (Consolidated Entity) [†]	
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
Outstanding settlements payable Responsible Entity fee payable Other payables	- 270,455 -	- 486,136	- 34,232 -	1,892,289 63,559	- 24,005 -	428,984 39,568	- 43,367	23,775,355 85,167	
Total payables	270,455	486,136	34,232	1,955,848	24,005	468,552	43,367	23,860,522	
	Investmer	oth Sustainable nts - Australian : (Consolidated Entity)†	Internation	Z OA Perpetual nal Share Trust lidated Entity)		ompanies Trust olidated Entity)		oal Share Trust idated Entity) [†]	
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Outstanding settlements payable Responsible Entity fee payable Other payables Total payables	2,320 - - 2,320	2,858,417 8,989 13 2,867,419	8,549 8,557	13,924 - - 13,924	1,219,601 158,075 - 1,377,676	438,065 221,918 - - 659,983	242,769 6,368 - 249,137	34,803,601 8,259 - 34,811,860	

[†] During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

7. Payables

	One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		Syndica	wer - Bentham ited Loan Trust blidated Entity)	State D	- Colonial First iversified Trust lidated Entity) [†]	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity) [†]		
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Outstanding settlements payable	_	-	_	-	_	-	_	-	
Responsible Entity fee payable	8,695	20,523	12,640	19,883	10,697	21,135	25,698	29,882	
Other payables	119		57						
Total payables	8,814	20,523	12,697	19,883	10,697	21,135	25,698	29,882	
	Conservativ	ver - Perpetual e Growth Trust blidated Entity)	Australia	wer - Schroder an Equity Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Fixe	JBS Diversified d Income Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Balanc	ver - Vanguard ed Index Trust idated Entity)*	
	Conservativ	e Growth Trust	Australia	an Equity Trust	Fixe	d Income Trust	Balanc	ed Index Trust	
	Conservative (Conse	e Growth Trust Didated Entity)	Australia (Consol	an Equity Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Fixed (Conso	d Income Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Balanc (Consoli	ed Index Trust dated Entity)*	
Outstanding settlements payable	Conservative (Conse	e Growth Trust Didated Entity)	Australia (Consol	an Equity Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Fixed (Conso	d Income Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Balanc (Consoli	ed Index Trust dated Entity)*	
Outstanding settlements payable Responsible Entity fee payable	Conservative (Conse	e Growth Trust Didated Entity)	Australia (Consol 30 June 2012 \$	an Equity Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	Fixed (Conso	d Income Trust lidated Entity) [†]	Balanc (Consoli	ed Index Trust dated Entity)*	
	Conservative (Conservative) 30 June 2012 \$	e Growth Trust blidated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$	Australia (Consol 30 June 2012 \$	an Equity Trust lidated Entity) 30 June 2011	Fixed (Consol	d Income Trust lidated Entity) [†] 30 June 2011 \$	Balanc (Consoli 30 June 2012 \$	ed Index Trust idated Entity)* 30 June 2011 \$	

		anguard Index ïed Bond Trust blidated Entity)
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
	\$	\$
Outstanding settlements payable Responsible Entity fee payable	- 38,158	- 25,354
Other payables	-	-
Total payables	38,158	25,354

^{*} The Parent Scheme of this Economic Entity did not hold a consolidated position in its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011. Comparatives for this Economic Entity are the results of the Parent Scheme only.
† During the financial year the Parent Scheme no longer held a controlling interest in an underlying subsidiary. Please refer to 'Note 14. Ownership interest' and 'Note 18. Disposal of subsidiaries' for further details.

		e Growth Trust lidated Entity)		Interest Trust lidated Entity)		enger Property lidated Entity)	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2012 30 June 2011 \$		30 June 2012 30 June 2011 \$		30 June 2011 \$	
Opening balance	98,237,392	112,316,173	679,189,075	680,697,753	31,050,957	36,616,033	250,675,936	245,949,121	
Applications Redemptions Return of Capital distributions	5,747,094 (26,539,764)	34,214,532 (53,613,213) (6,830)	(757,831,089)	464,622,957 (449,251,801) (1,146,533)	2,740,121 (6,225,480)	25,965,904 (31,564,064)	99,473,326 (43,734,784) -	56,765,834 (69,393,859)	
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	(6,816,610)	5,326,730	10,413,792	(15,733,301)	1,108,257	33,084	(31,383,543)	17,354,840	
Closing balance	70,628,112	98,237,392	13,539,530 679,189,075		28,673,855 31,050,957		275,030,935	250,675,936	
	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	
Opening balance	96,864,025	115,701,835	664,893,360	649,226,858	39,437,425	47,691,777	237,988,163	250,944,341	
Applications	5,895,771	33,617,998	79,362,825	444,596,645	3,248,515	24,285,134	98,691,322	50,598,531	
Redemptions	(27,683,711)	(52,455,808)	(733,245,051)	(428,930,143)	(9,933,566)	(32,539,486)	(45,630,331)	(63,554,709)	
Closing balance	75,076,085	96,864,025	11,011,134	664,893,360	32,752,374 39,437,425		291,049,154	237,988,163	

	Im	Path Blue Chip putation Trust lidated Entity)	Emerging Marke	nePath Global ts Share Trust lidated Entity)	ANZ OA One Securities Trust	Path Property (Consolidated Entity)	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	
Opening balance	1,553,463,800	1,100,001,159	191,060,718	99,552,999	527,717,000	459,583,108	276,451,480	260,350,534	
Applications Redemptions Return of Capital distributions	140,116,123 874,306,388 (942,397,386) (477,219,175)	6,546,652 (49,960,750)	158,719,319 (58,550,985)	181,662,479 (477,264,649)	268,771,040 (191,471,510)	28,919,958 (206,504,687)	66,751,778 (68,102,881)		
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	(184,199,501)	56,375,428	(32,751,637)	(8,660,615)	(35,500,548)	(9,165,638)	(33,203,971)	17,452,049	
Closing balance	566,983,036	1,553,463,800	114,894,983	114,894,983 191,060,718		196,614,282 527,717,000		276,451,480	
	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	
Opening balance	1,543,698,620	1,136,043,090	181,448,546	88,561,480	503,697,829	440,241,657	250,083,497	251,117,733	
Applications Redemptions	154,710,024 (1,062,503,513)	873,191,135 (465,535,605)	6,792,993 (53,913,333)	145,656,188 (52,769,122)	173,105,366 (482,686,792)	238,479,206 (175,023,034)	27,342,868 (212,231,380)	57,919,063 (58,953,299)	
Closing balance	635,905,131	1,543,698,620	134,328,206	181,448,546	194,116,403	503,697,829	65,194,985	250,083,497	

		th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)	Internation	Z OA Perpetual aal Share Trust lidated Entity)		mpanies Trust lidated Entity)	Global Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	
		·			<u> </u>				
Opening balance	414,649,700	399,410,682	22,980,374	27,383,874	425,246,404	337,025,471	2,088,698,726	1,683,195,567	
Applications Redemptions Return of Capital distributions Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	8,387,251 (372,993,907) - (42,299,570)	21,720,301 (47,142,970) - 40,661,687	1,232,851 (6,063,141) - (568,098)	17,183,235 (20,514,738) (242,068) (829,929)	21,903,360 (131,211,244) - (51,071,578)	229,994,333 (200,534,660) - 58,761,260	36,602,871 (1,880,266,359) - (168,950,208)	541,541,100 (128,384,337) (1,990) (7,651,614)	
Closing balance	7,743,474	414,649,700	17,581,986	17,581,986 22,980,374		264,866,942 425,246,404		2,088,698,726	
	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	
Opening balance	369,247,202	390,152,659	25,350,494	29,021,998	305,969,982	275,202,523	2,111,142,963	1,719,398,689	
Applications Redemptions	7,562,691 (368,947,718)	19,671,265 (40,576,722)	1,360,111 (6,903,035)	17,617,723 (21,289,227)	17,389,579 (108,281,843)	178,850,201 (148,082,742)	36,794,680 (2,065,779,900)	521,996,510 (130,252,236)	
Closing balance	7,862,175	369,247,202	19,807,570	25,350,494	215,077,718	305,969,982	82,157,743	2,111,142,963	

	International (Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated Entity)	Syndica	wer - Bentham ted Loan Trust lidated Entity)	State Di	- Colonial First versified Trust lidated Entity)	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	30 June 2012 \$	0 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 \$		30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	
Opening balance	92,406,563	48,120,000	43,299,060	51,525,299	91,403,232	93,557,883	79,795,516	82,839,322	
Applications Redemptions Return of Capital distributions	21,525,430 (21,626,023)	56,724,776 (10,307,606) (1,824,990)	7,998,222 (15,546,369)	22,771,018 (31,960,827)	, ,	51,707,847 (56,783,324)	51,569,839 (13,426,173) -	27,634,370 (36,886,249) - 6,208,073	
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	(4,798,202)	(305,617)	(1,596,631)	963,570	(3,045,349)	2,920,826	(4,025,659)		
Closing balance	87,507,768	92,406,563	34,154,282 43,299,06		70,965,193 91,403,232		113,913,523	79,795,516	
	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	
Opening balance	111,111,507	61,191,971	41,426,747	50,115,973	95,079,912	100,518,452	72,782,773	80,987,244	
Applications Redemptions	26,036,626 (27,354,092)	61,594,485 (11,674,949)	7,903,451 (15,496,550)	20,664,846 (29,354,072)	6,374,623 (25,574,021)	51,666,685 (57,105,225)	47,353,564 (12,846,546)	25,066,127 (33,270,598)	
Closing balance	109,794,041	111,111,507	33,833,648	41,426,747	75,880,514	95,079,912	107,289,791	72,782,773	

	Conservative	er - Perpetual Growth Trust lidated Entity)	Australia	ver - Schroder n Equity Trust lidated Entity)		BS Diversified Income Trust lidated Entity)	OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	
Opening balance	152,073,330	163,675,994	140,721,421	122,186,314	101,185,904	69,251,326	238,543,214	22,181,020	
Applications Redemptions Return of Capital distributions Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	27,661,173 (37,592,437) - (1,162,932)	94,222,431 (107,829,065) - 2,003,970	125,222,791 (11,027,020) - (11,491,259)	53,538,779 (47,969,632) - 12,965,960	103,483,265 (18,258,266) - (4,560,601)	71,708,439 (40,369,125) (1,362) 596,626	351,616,122 (17,712,495) - 3,521,594	396,969,334 (172,549,589) - (8,057,551)	
Closing balance	140,979,134	152,073,330	243,425,933 140,721,421		181,850,302 101,185,904		575,968,435	238,543,214	
	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units	
Opening balance	148,897,101	161,621,623	131,431,957	127,371,032	100,597,547	69,395,641	246,438,327	21,702,181	
Applications Redemptions	27,061,665 (36,528,375)	91,390,441 (104,114,963)	121,129,307 (12,277,461)	48,508,208 (44,447,283)	97,649,059 (18,069,301)	70,828,336 (39,626,430)	371,544,923 (18,824,507)	404,057,950 (179,321,804)	
Closing balance	139,430,391	148,897,101	240,283,803	131,431,957	180,177,305 100,597,547		599,158,743	246,438,327	

8. Net assets attributable to unitholders

	OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust (Consolidated Entity)				
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$			
Opening balance	106,331,647	50,282,837			
Applications Redemptions Return of Capital distributions	81,520,399 (15,451,980) -	117,998,468 (53,228,080) -			
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	12,692,696	(8,721,578)			
Closing balance	185,092,762	106,331,647			
	30 June 2012 Units	30 June 2011 Units			
Opening balance	111,990,688	48,820,966			
Applications	81,660,718	116,862,757			
Redemptions	(15,414,407)	(53,693,035)			
Closing balance	178,236,999	111,990,688			

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities consider their net assets attributable to unitholders as capital, notwithstanding net assets attributable to unitholders are classified as a liability. The amount of net assets attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Schemes are subject to daily applications and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

Daily applications and redemptions are reviewed relative to the liquidity of the Schemes' underlying assets on a regular basis by the Responsible Entity. Under the terms of the Schemes constitution, the Responsible Entity has the discretion to reject an application for units and to defer or adjust a redemption of units if the exercise of such discretion is in the best interests of unitholders.

Return of capital distributions represents a return of surplus liquidity to unitholders. Unitholders receive prorated share of the capital payments based on the amount of surplus liquidity available.

9. Related parties

OnePath Funds Management is the Responsible Entity of the Schemes and the majority of their subsidiaries.

The ultimate controlling entity of OnePath Funds Management is ANZ. During the year a number of Schemes held cash with ANZ on an arms length basis, refer to 'Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents' for balances. ANZ does not guarantee the deposits or liabilities of OnePath Funds Management or its registered Schemes. The key management personnel (KMP) of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities have been defined as their Responsible Entity.

Except for Bentham Professional Syndicated Loan Fund, Capital International Global Equities Fund (Hedged), Challenger Professional Property Fund, Perpetual Wholesale Conservative Growth Fund, Vanguard Balanced Index Trust and Vanguard Diversified Bonds Index Fund, OnePath Funds Management is the Responsible Entity of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities. The following persons held office as Directors of OnePath Funds Management during or since the end of the financial year:

Name	Date Appointed	Date Resigned
P D Barrett	Appointed 20 April 2011	Resigned 15 February 2012
C T Brackenrig	Appointed 5 May 2011	
S J Chapman	Appointed 1 August 2011	
G J Kelly	Appointed 30 November 2009	Resigned 31 August 2011
C M McDowell	Appointed 15 February 2012	
G B Meyer	Appointed 22 February 2007	Resigned 31 August 2011
V S Weekes	Appointed 1 May 2011	

9.1 Related party transactions

All related party transactions are conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions.

The directors of the Responsible Entity may also be directors of other companies owned by ANZ. OnePath Funds Management may also be involved in activities other than the business of managed investment schemes.

The Schemes making up the Economic Entities have not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly, any loans to the Responsible Entity at any time during the reporting period.

No compensation is paid to directors of the Responsible Entity by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

From time to time the directors of OnePath Funds Management may invest or withdraw from the Schemes making up the Economic Entities. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other unitholders in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

OnePath Funds Management may approve an in-specie transfer of assets of a related Scheme to or from the Schemes making up the Economic Entities, in exchange for unitholdings of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities. Amounts of in-specie transfers of assets are disclosed in 'Note 3.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities'.

9.2 Responsible Entity Fees

Where applicable, management fees (reflected as 'Responsible Entity fees' in the Statements of Comprehensive Income) are paid to the Responsible Entity of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities for the financial year.

The Responsible Entity receives all management fees which have been deducted from the Schemes making up the Economic Entities during the year. The rate of remuneration paid to the Responsible Entity for its services is provided for in the Constitutions of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities and is calculated on the total gross assets, as indicated in the table on the following page.

Transactions between the Schemes making up the Economic Entities and the Responsible Entity result from normal dealings with that company as the Schemes' Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity is an Australian Financial Services Licence holder AFSL 238342. Under the terms of each Scheme's Constitution, the Responsible Entity is entitled to receive fees. The fees received by the Responsible Entity for the year ended 30 June 2012 are as follows:

9. Related parties (continued)

9.2.1 Responsible Entity Fees

	Responsible entity fee % per annum	managemer	yable to RE
		2012	2011
Active Growth Trust - Pool Class*		-	-
Active Growth Trust - Retail Class	2.66	1,236,363	1,581,466
Active Growth Trust - Select Class [†]	1.11	122	21
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust - Retail Class	1.14	136,764	149,549
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust - Retail Class	2.86	112,113	163,461
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust - Select Class [†]	1.15	11	1
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust - Retail Class	2.90	456,111	627,952
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust - Select Class [†]	1.00	269	38
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust - Retail Class	2.66	315,754	440,592
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust - Retail Class	2.66	4,008,914	5,324,502
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust - Select Class †	1.05	577	1
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust - Retail Class	2.76	567,834	924,306
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust - Select Class [†]	1.26	1,114	218
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust - Retail Class	2.66	317,997	460,247
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust - Select Class [†]	1.00	128	16
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust - Retail Class	2.66	670,859	846,754
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust - Select Class [†]	1.00	3,952	134
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust - Retail Class	2.66	57,330	107,077
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust - Select Class [†]	1.01	56	1
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust - Retail Class	3.10	69,973	89,631

This table does not include feeless Schemes.

The fees shown are charges for the whole financial year of classes of individual Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

Due to deconsolidation the Responsible Entity fees will not agree to the Responsible Entity fees as detailed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

^{*} This is a feeless class/scheme and any fees charged are indirect.

[†] This class of units commenced operations during the 2011 financial year.

9. Related parties (continued)

9.2.1 Responsible Entity Fees

	Responsible entity fee % per annum	manageme	yable to RE
		2012	2011
Emerging Companies Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
Emerging Companies Trust - Retail Class	2.66	2,345,912	2,861,344
Emerging Companies Trust - Select Class [†]	1.06	680	161
Global Share Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
Global Share Trust - Retail Class	2.76	88,983	115,602
Global Share Trust - Select Class [†]	1.16	250	139
One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) - Pool Class*	-	-	-
One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) - Retail Class	2.95	116,325	145,991
One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) - Select Class [†]	1.25	13	-
OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust - Retail Class	2.85	163,344	210,976
OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust - Select Class [†]	1.30	19	-
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust - Retail Class	2.86	52,301	68,754
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust - Retail Class	2.90	160,158	229,607
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust - Select Class [†]	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust - Retail Class	2.90	330,936	398,853
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust - Select Class [†]	1.20	177	21
OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust - Retail Class	2.90	432,779	550,004
OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust - Select Class [†]	1.15	240	39
OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust - Retail Class	3.10	52,215	83,745
OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust - Select Class †	1.35	72	3
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust - Retail Class	2.90	501,386	583,939
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust - Select Class [†]	1.00	999	46
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust - Pool Class*		-	-

This table does not include feeless Schemes.

The fees shown are charges for the whole financial year of classes of individual Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

Due to deconsolidation the Responsible Entity fees will not agree to the Responsible Entity fees as detailed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

^{*} This is a feeless class/scheme and any fees charged are indirect.

[†] This class of units commenced operations during the 2011 financial year.

9. Related parties (continued)

9.2.1 Responsible Entity Fees

	Responsible entity fee % per annum	managemer	yable to RE
		2012	2011 \$
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust - Retail Class	2.63	336,424	318,909
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust - Select Class [†]	0.98	6,573	888
OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust - Retail Class [†]	2.38	999,907	359,756
OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust - Select Class [†]	0.80	29,600	174
OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust - Retail Class	2.35	348,677	182,007
OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust - Select Class [†]	0.70	8,858	-
OnePath Sustainable Investments – Wholesale Australian Share Trust - Pool Class*	-	-	-
OnePath Sustainable Investments – Wholesale Australian Share Trust - Wholesale Class	0.95	393	848

This table does not include feeless Schemes.

The fees shown are charges for the whole financial year of classes of individual Schemes making up the Economic Entities.

Due to deconsolidation the Responsible Entity fees will not agree to the Responsible Entity fees as detailed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

^{*} This is a feeless class/scheme and any fees charged are indirect.

[†] This class of units commenced operations during the 2011 financial year.

9. Related parties (continued)

9.3 Amounts payable to the Responsible Entity

Where applicable, amounts payable to the Responsible Entity as at $30\ \mathrm{June}\ 2012$ are disclosed in Note 7.

9. Related parties (continued)

9.3.1 Related party investments held by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value o	f unit holdings	% I	nterest		ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ned during the period		Distributions received/receivable		er of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011
Active Growth Trust												
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	69,570,226	98,765,150	76.50	75.91	6,419,393	4,023,452	26,479,956	22,676,604	4,494,674	3,302,963	74,056,124	95,131,594
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	51,807,785	-	2.68	726,966,596	328,906,872	778,254,196	284,410,000	2,432,204	1,412,439	-	51,521,441
Price For Credit Pool	-	377,872,482	-	27.54	394,492,554	103,819,492	712,548,697	164,000,000	68,482,194	36,727,589	-	358,853,260
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust												
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund	13,123,742	685,077,040	2.70	96.64	92,225,905	215,617,944	793,284,954	212,043,300	10,845,862	66,101,135	13,316,290	712,900,855
Price For Credit Pool	142,668	-	0.11	-	36,822,606	-	36,679,526	-	2,754	-	156,075	-
ANZ International Equities Fund												
International Share Pool	-	2,114,285,744	-	100.00	35,444,212	480,641,692	1,954,585,963	91,313,241	613,644	25,990,751	-	3,281,523,737
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	696,741	-	0.04	49,691,742	241,956,365	50,394,803	241,460,000	184,555	363,544	-	692,890
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust												
ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust	-	31,114,148	-	65.81	2,172,804	1,978,733	33,539,570	7,640,628	1,249,753	1,663,686	-	76,376,228
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust	28,477,288	-	66.00	-	28,810,087	-	575,474	-	346,596	-	25,373,137	-
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust												
ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool	-	249,674,671	-	70.24	8,994,418	13,199,639	242,109,329	25,390,051	6,473,111	7,951,705	-	297,692,466
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	13,658,320	186,543	1.03	0.01	22,964,788	30,112,186	9,490,000	35,175,000	320,231	194,744	13,555,998	185,512
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund	-	-	-	-	448,471	-	449,327	-	-	-	-	-
ANZ Cash Plus Fund	-	-	-	-	22,543	-	22,447	-	-	-	-	-
ANZ International Fixed Interest Fund	-	269,092	-	0.05	33,099	3,553,618	298,443	3,300,000	19,250	67,467	-	263,997
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	-	-	-	-	8,838,685	-	9,247,271	-	317,490	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	-	9,403,965	-	1.68	282,778	1,535,592	8,642,835	2,000,000	130,564	536,217	-	8,454,598
ANZ Private Sector Debt Fund	-	-	-	-	100	-	100	-	-	-	-	-
Global Credit Pool	-	-	-	-	59,077	-	61,738	-	-	-	-	-
Global Share Trust	-	44,735,526	-	2.11	585,048	8,451,310	41,222,153	6,920,000	33,899	551,149	-	44,615,091
International Fixed Interest Pool	-	-	-	-	235,001	-	237,332	-	3,487	-	-	-
International Share Pool	-	-	-	-	37,522,489	-	39,045,115	-	301,010	-	-	-
OneAnswer - OnePath Global Property Securities Fund	-	-	-	-	1,007,315	-	964,256	-	33,260	-	-	-
OnePath Australian Advanced Alpha Pool Trust	-	-	-	-	5,333,173	-	5,314,250	-	2	-	-	-
OnePath Australian Bonds Index Pool	-	-	-	-	100	-	100	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Australian Inflation Protected Securities Index Pool	-	-	-	-	1,000	-	1,000	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Australian Listed Property Index Pool	4,295,727	-	2.78	-	4,753,484	-	750,000	-	81,180	-	3,960,285	-
OnePath Australian Quantitative Pool Trust	-	-	-	-	101	-	101	-	1	-	-	-
OnePath Australian Shares - Small Cap Index Pool	-	-	-	-	1,000	-	1,017	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Australian Shares Index Pool	14,016,374	-	1.82	-	16,862,378	-	2,500,000	-	68,633	-	14,556,642	-
OnePath Diversified High Yield Pool	-	-	-	-	166,749	-	166,357	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Global Bonds (Hedged) Index Pool	-	-	-	-	100	-	101	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Shares (Unhedged) Index Pool					1,000	-	1,015	-			-	-

9. Related parties (continued)

9.3.1 Related party investments held by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value of unit holdings		% I	% Interest Units purchased/reinvested during the period		Units redeemed during the period		Distributions received/receivable		Number of units held		
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012 \$	2011	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011	2012	2011	2012 \$	2011	2012	2011
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust												
OnePath Global Inflation Protected Securities (Hedged) Index Pool	_	-	-	-	1,000	-	1,000	-	-	-	_	-
OnePath Global Listed Property (Hedged) Index Pool	557,713	-	0.38	-	532,979	-	-	-	-	-	485,263	-
OnePath Global Shares - Large Cap (Hedged) Index Pool	-	-	-	-	100	-	103	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Global Shares - Large Cap (Unhedged) Index Pool	14,939,062	-	3.72	-	18,086,928	-	3,000,000	-	124,110	-	15,131,263	-
OnePath Global Shares - Small Cap (Hedged) Index Pool	-	-	-	-	1,000	-	1,025	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Global Shares - Small Cap (Unhedged) Index Pool	-	-	-	-	1,000	-	1,040	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Multi Sector Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	-	2,550,230	-	0.20	129,367	5,277,076	2,653,450	2,700,000	60,972	345,471	-	2,469,956
OptiMix Wholesale Australian Fixed Interest Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	100	-	-	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale Australian Inflation Linked Bonds Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	100	-	-	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale Australian Share Trust	-	-	-	-	102	-	102	-	2	-	-	-
Optimix Wholesale Global (Hedged) Share Trust	-	-	-	-	16,825,081	-	16,934,357	-	239,881	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	102	-	-	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale Global Share Trust	18,352,641	-	0.93	-	19,498,791	-	-	-	236,298	-	23,780,145	-
OptiMix Wholesale Global Smaller Companies Share Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	105	-	-	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale International Fixed Interest Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	100	-	-	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale International Inflation Linked Bonds Trust	-	-	-	-	105	-	100	-	5	-	-	-
OptiMix Wholesale International Property Securities Trust	503,456	-	0.11	-	473,165	-	-	-	3	-	563,087	-
OptiMix Wholesale Property Securities Trust	5,254,825	-	1.73	-	5,002,128	-	-	-	97,492	-	11,111,300	-
Pooled Australian Share Fund	16,877,752	68,166,213	2.00	2.53	5,264,787	2,713,322	49,400,640	25,200,000	2,142,787	2,927,786	10,724,458	37,318,632
Pooled Property Fund	-	-	-	-	4,556,326	-	4,532,574	-	2,193	-	-	-
Price For Credit Pool	-	-	-	-	825,777	-	825,595	-	8	-	-	-
Wholesale Alternatives Defensive Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	101	-	-	-	-	-
Wholesale Alternatives Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	97	-	-	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust												
Blue Chip Pool	570,641,025	1,573,167,906	72.88	100.00	113,350,951	654,908,276	910,527,135	257,962,408	47,318,411	70,853,568	675,793,773	1,580,914,386
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust												
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool	113,897,862	193,762,097	100.00	80.96	4,840,723	123,567,566	48,994,544	22,855,989	2,818,338	3,133,566	183,926,184	250,597,642
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust												
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	196,735,505	-	72.17	-	215,360,807	-	25,179,797	-	9,123,024	-	354,505,350	-
Pooled Property Fund	-	535,948,363	-	65.42	43,351,902	201,365,298	527,239,189	120,587,665	7,982,639	30,816,220	-	1,136,446,911
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust												
ANZ Select Leaders Pool	66,765,992	276,964,112	42.08	70.92	25,895,845	29,221,239	202,990,177	30,361,399	5,594,397	22,275,591	49,699,367	180,194,488
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust												
OnePath Sustainable Investments - Wholesale Australian Share Trust	7,902,619	422,024,126	27.96	93.84	8,494,661	17,033,766	372,833,069	42,054,000	503,368	16,372,578	8,090,718	375,099,896
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust												
OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust	17,441,826	23,192,702	51.74	50.73	858,013	25,422,936	5,673,176	1,868,436	357,471	372,438	18,420,052	23,567,424
ANZ Select Leaders Pool												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	1,995,758	_	0.10	49,858,649	84,153,993	51,873,408	84,721,000	88,063	65,260	-	1,984,727

9. Related parties (continued)

9.3.1 Related party investments held by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value o	f unit holdings	% I	nterest		ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ned during the period	_	istributions I/receivable	Numbe	er of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011	2012	2011
Blue Chip Pool												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	30,001,447	-	1.55	196,974,200	365,526,942	227,121,721	335,525,000	664,738	1,036,380	-	29,835,627
Emerging Companies Trust							, ,	, ,	•			
Small Companies Pool	265,891,906	433,351,338	100.00	100.00	27,315,490	93,177,074	138,260,295	62,370,500	14,618,758	15,705,749	602,172,640	834,652,038
Global Share Trust												
ANZ International Equities Fund	-	2,088,539,490	-	100.00	34,002,543	488,730,230	1,952,387,889	88,672,000	1,649,576	26,047,911	-	3,908,808,831
International Share Pool	75,354,176	-	64.94	-	76,311,598	· · · · -	1,755,143	· · · · -	-		124,676,002	-
International Share Pool												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	8,160,992	-	0.42	152,189,185	617,646,093	160,401,486	635,100,000	605,005	1,636,551	-	8,115,886
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool	-	45,578,873	-	19.04	737,112	50,000,000	40,016,559	· · · · · -	-	737,112	-	58,948,361
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust												
ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust	-	16,163,565	-	34.19	866,631	1,483,607	16,907,648	3,722,248	543,664	865,016	-	39,676,874
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust												
OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool	-	91,748,254	-	100.00	4,842,174	6,972,560	93,825,416	11,894,391	1,344,806	3,912,700	-	98,431,772
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust												
ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust	-	81,700,205	-	62.01	8,282,629	7,039,531	84,875,150	16,350,248	1,227,214	5,367,452	-	65,280,261
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust												
ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust	-	140,706,095	-	56.55	15,413,407	15,365,188	142,680,217	9,697,594	3,189,991	4,326,316	-	145,045,868
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust												
ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust	-	101,688,925	-	61.82	21,500,564	37,870,357	126,896,827	6,516,875	5,664,978	5,630,314	-	118,344,767
OnePath Sustainable Investments – Wholesale Australian Share Trust												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	6,332,244	-	0.33	18,688,126	73,329,085	25,023,969	67,032,000	122,809	294,327	-	6,297,246
Pooled Property Fund												
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	-	805,273,825	-	99.69	34,369,426	250,842,579	780,642,401	147,765,880	13,308,819	48,343,990	-	1,470,324,642
Small Companies Pool												
ANZ Australian Cash Fund	-	8,393,510		0.43	23,706,806	123,016,344	32,111,150	122,850,000	120,228	472,337	-	8,347,119

9. Related parties (continued)

9.3.2 Related party investments held by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities - ANZ Securities

		Fair value	In	come received
Name of entity Name of ANZ Security	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011 \$
OnePath Sustainable Investments - Wholesale Australian Share Trust				
ANZ BANKING GROUP	1,673,839	29,324,790	1,077,537	829,069
Blue Chip Pool				
ANZ BANKING GROUP	53,646,597	113,530,934	5,561,934	3,723,175
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund				
ANZ 2.4% 23NOV16	2,004,664	-	-	-
ANZ 4.875% 12JAN21	4,373,832	-	-	-
ANZ FRN 17JAN18	4,747,893	-	65,503	-
ANZ Select Leaders Pool				
ANZ BANKING GROUP	23,190,673	23,227,952	1,373,690	798,066

Discount securities (which excludes FRN's) are non-interest paying securities.

9. Related parties (continued)

9.4 Related party investors in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value o	f unit holdings	% I	interest	Units purchase dur	ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ed during the period		Distributions aid/payable	Numbe	er of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011
Active Growth Trust												
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	30,004,168	45,525,086	41.34	44.98	4,852,103	33,000,200	16,875,823	40,642,700	1,894,094	1,515,056	31,037,726	43,573,241
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund												
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust	13,123,742	685,077,040	2.70	96.64	92,225,905	215,617,944	793,284,954	212,043,300	10,845,862	66,101,135	13,316,290	712,900,855
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	448,471	-	449,327	-	-	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	15,536,599	-	3.20	-	45,800,904	-	28,687,271	-	2,474,258	-	15,764,548	-
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	3,914,279	-	0.81	-	15,095,816	-	10,617,298	-	794,659	-	3,971,708	-
OnePath Capital Guaranteed Trust	162,201,253	-	33.38	-	389,002,262	-	211,131,146	-	24,725,001	-	164,581,029	-
OnePath Multi Sector Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	-	24,097,773	-	3.40	725,743,525	25,000,000	720,235,561	-	36,894,461	849,065	-	25,076,483
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	-	-	-	-	178,194,474	-	178,429,467	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	175,556,607	-	36.13	-	432,923,585	-	242,350,430	-	24,510,132	-	178,132,329	-
OnePath Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	115,593,182	-	23.79	-	116,699,967	-	4,564,884	-	1,998,283	-	117,290,024	-
OnePath Wholesale Managed Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	182,699,885	-	182,940,820	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	-	-	-	-	563,308,987	69,328	566,737,524	366,937	3,368,894	12,982	-	-
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust												
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	100	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	-	69,946,487	-	9.90	5,884,360	7,129,831	73,803,059	30,353,000	2,938,081	7,709,085	-	65,777,465
OnePath Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	-	147,324,778	-	20.85	25,947,541	161,249,597	169,922,574	16,250,000	6,241,941	6,205,600	-	138,543,774
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	2,126,426	478,770,124	17.68	67.75	49,532,813	176,133,703	512,462,812	280,956,809	19,835,099	51,079,039	1,947,241	450,233,974
ANZ International Equities Fund												
Global Share Trust	-	2,088,539,490	-	100.00	34,002,543	488,730,230	1,952,387,889	88,672,000	1,649,576	26,047,911	-	3,908,808,831
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund								, ,	, ,	, ,		
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	8,838,685	-	9,247,271	-	317,490	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	4,057,405	-	1.49	-	8,977,638	-	5,632,345	-	333,608	-	7,311,196	-
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	573,438	-	0.21	-	1,681,761	-	1,181,828	-	59,437	-	1,033,300	-
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	196,735,505	-	72.17	-	215,360,807	-	25,179,797	-	9,123,024	-	354,505,350	-
OnePath Capital Guaranteed Trust	62,815,486	-	23.04	-	121,763,842	-	67,090,878	-	5,394,185	-	113,189,665	-
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	· · ·	_	-	-	86,957,047	-	91,036,956	_	2,843,361	-	, , , , ₋	-
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	8,426,199	_	3.09	-	21,058,408	-	12,846,380	_	669,315	-	15,183,495	-
OnePath Wholesale Managed Growth Trust	· · · -	-	-	-	236,891,292	-	248,783,871	-	6,549,616	-	, , , , ₋	-
Pooled Property Fund	-	805,273,825	-	99.69	34,369,426	250,842,579	780,642,401	147,765,880	13,308,819	48,343,990	-	1,470,324,642
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	-	2,675,289	-	0.33	16,611,455	1,743,625	20,213,113	338,500	236,494	150,900	-	4,884,728
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust							, ,	,	,	,		
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	23,500,260	23,813,723	62.31	54.67	3,406,040	25,367,488	4,600,857	28,765,261	1,270,759	1,256,311	20,406,626	21,580,966
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust							, ,					
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Imputation Trust	81,337,104	-	29.02	-	87,983,968	_	1,470,703	_	541,140	-	84,468,905	_
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	173,320,698	222,771,305	61.43	85.79	10,018,788	53,640,182	35,775,268	59,874,474	6,920,481	7,023,735	178,804,636	204,311,748
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	-,,	, ,,,,,,			-,,	,,	, -,	,-	-,,	,,	.,,	- /- /
Active Growth Trust OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	69,570,226 9,650,378	98,765,150 13,115,680	76.50 10.40	75.91 10.08	6,419,393 1,677,970	4,023,452 14,842,532	26,479,956 4,156,646	22,676,604 18,980,749	4,494,674 655,771	3,302,963 449,420	74,056,124 10,063,169	95,131,594 12,633,156

9. Related parties (continued)

9.4 Related party investors in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value of	unit holdings	% I	interest	Units purchase dur	ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ed during the period		Distributions aid/payable	Numbe	r of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 %	2011	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011	2012 \$	2011	2012	2011
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust												
ANZ Equity Imputation Trust	13,575,432	16,718,387	2.56	1.10	927,198	18,368,791	1,546,539	1,342,471	851,265	447,216	16,249,914	16,945,977
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	-	54,324,534	-	3.57	1,411,085	3,659,739	49,202,004	8,654,022	691,793	2,828,854	· · ·	55,064,060
ANZ OA OnePath Income Plus Trust	21,609,217	55,658,237	4.07	3.66	21,170,517	29,049,941	49,289,579	43,573,434	1,768,057	2,996,345	25,866,427	56,415,920
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	-	4,278,841	-	0.28	111,023	459,138	3,882,848	1,730,734	54,368	237,385	· · · -	4,337,089
Blue Chip Imputation Trust	240,476,854	337,830,486	45.27	22.19	21,185,669	361,570,428	69,889,834	17,459,767	15,677,500	8,894,598	287,852,954	342,429,416
Income Plus Trust	4,446,450	11,409,797	0.84	0.75	4,526,180	5,789,153	10,273,983	8,685,099	365,163	612,888	5,322,440	11,565,120
OnePath Wholesale Blue Chip Imputation Trust	35,130,042	51,678,543	6.61	3.39	12,616,856	59,085,472	21,720,939	6,465,796	2,371,611	1,395,288	42,050,976	52,382,050
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	-	31,926,465	-	2.10	5,481,782	4,177,168	33,492,064	11,348,170	472,055	1,742,718	-	32,361,084
Pooled Australian Share Fund	_	401,458,170	_	26.37	10,466,727	23,108,148	364,714,211	32,920,000	5,151,161	21,166,480	_	406,923,272
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	125,817,540	425,290,362	23.30	27.93	59,949,144	362,892,384	307,106,013	305,786,210	11,562,382	20,533,693	148,160,075	431,079,892
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	123/01//5 10	123/230/302	25.50	27130	33/3 .3/1	302/032/30 .	507/100/015	505/, 50/210	11,502,502	20,000,000	1.0/100/075	.51/0/5/052
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	35,553,408	46,539,439	31.50	24.46	1,540,421	51,533,879	3,306,225	3,253,143	818,396	756,491	42,306,834	44,354,909
OnePath Wholesale Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	29,066,156	58,618,293	25.75	30.81	1,431,248	66,662,515	20,527,553	5,757,066	760,984	952,831	34,587,318	55,866,790
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	35,216,072	60,209,393	30.90	31.64	3,551,032	38,616,826	17,913,052	41,041,492	863,967	981,652	41,501,959	57,383,214
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	33/213/0/2	00/203/535	50.50	52.0.	0,001,002	50,010,020	17,7510,002	11/0 11/132	000,507	301,002	.2/302/333	37,503,221
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	_	9,403,965	_	1.68	282,778	1,535,592	8,642,835	2,000,000	130,564	536,217	_	8,454,598
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	_	10,956,587	_	1.96	311,166	3,371,169	10,034,038	-	133,821	591,719	_	9,850,476
ANZ OA OnePath Income Plus Trust	16,321,517	40,453,836	7.59	7.22	15,061,994	22,687,341	37,711,569	32,378,884	1,575,646	2,596,612	14,731,988	36,369,860
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	10,321,317	1,313,937	-	0.23	39,895	68,654	1,208,714	300,000	18,628	86,537	-	1,181,290
ANZ Property Securities Trust	80,782,562	-	37.56	-	85,276,983	-	7,261,547	-	3,731,204	-	72,915,264	-
Heine Property Securities Fund	21,588,996	_	10.04	_	21,304,955	_	433,473	_	982,186	_	19,486,475	_
Income Plus Trust	3,381,453	8,290,457	1.57	1.48	3,357,156	4,708,967	7,972,044	6,635,956	325,432	531,066	3,052,138	7,453,502
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	-	105,804,083	-	18.89	4,001,372	43,097,502	97,891,091	-	1,288,815	5,518,029	5,052,150	95,122,739
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	_	3,859,219	_	0.69	117,178	1,399,198	3,548,009	150,000	54,713	215,918	_	3,469,615
OnePath Wholesale Managed Growth Trust	_	264,282,097	_	47.19	9,007,063	89,794,505	244,082,236	44,300,000	3,529,364	14,973,078	-	237,601,766
OnePath Wholesale Property Securities Trust	3,006,764	204,202,037	1.40	-	3,132,749	09,794,303	227,329	-	138,431	14,973,076	2,713,940	237,001,700
Property Securities Trust	17,975,661	-	8.36	-	22,127,366	_	4,800,399	-	851,965	-	16,225,037	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	43,655,033	77,028,827	19.70	13.75	19,384,657	101,448,227	51,027,498	100,743,208	3,533,171	4,783,640	38,249,264	69,252,472
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust	43,033,033	77,020,027	19.70	13.73	19,364,037	101,446,227	31,027,490	100,743,206	3,333,171	4,763,040	30,249,204	09,232,472
Pooled Australian Share Fund	_	190,421,612	_	67.26	12,368,251	6,176,576	172,337,833	20,696,000	1,816,226	14,013,362	_	168,303,314
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	46,355,674	67,764,847	73.68	23.94	14,384,142	52,963,142	25,679,602	40,678,670	2,683,738	4,808,583	48,038,461	59,893,675
	40,333,074	07,704,047	73.00	23.94	14,304,142	32,903,142	23,079,002	40,076,070	2,063,736	4,000,303	40,030,401	39,093,073
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust Pooled Australian Share Fund		407,791,985	_	96.60	7,224,114	13,986,797	366,942,662	38,570,000		15,817,358	_	356,704,610
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	6,855,198	10,971,583	- 85.61	2.60	1,713,090	7,649,634	4,681,025	6,913,571	412,978	415,092	6,730,953	9,597,094
. , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	0,000,198	10,9/1,383	10.00	2.00	1,/13,090	7,049,034	4,001,025	0,913,3/1	412,978	415,092	0,/30,953	9,397,094
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust	14 612 020	10.040.864	76.62	76.25	1 400 272	16 511 005	E 270 074	10 214 702	205.010	202.057	15 176 262	10 3EE 004
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	14,612,920	19,049,864	76.62	76.35	1,498,272	16,511,905	5,370,074	19,214,783	295,918	383,957	15,176,263	19,355,094
ANZ CA Chapter Colort London Trust	66 765 000	276 064 112	42.00	70.03	25 005 045	20 224 222	202 000 177	20 201 202	E E04 207	22 275 504	40 600 367	100 104 400
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust OnePath Select Leaders Trust	66,765,992 40,671,070	276,964,112 44,993,940	42.08 25.64	70.92 11.52	25,895,845 5,451,323	29,221,239 11,904,883	202,990,177 3,840,369	30,361,399 3,639,413	5,594,397 2,041,662	22,275,591 3,539,213	49,699,367 30,274,791	180,194,488 29,273,323

9. Related parties (continued)

9.4 Related party investors in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value o	f unit holdings	% I	interest	Units purchas dur	ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ed during the period		Distributions paid/payable	Numbe	er of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011
ANZ Select Leaders Pool												
OnePath Wholesale Select Leaders Trust	51,209,641	68,401,488	32.28	17.52	12,309,262	15,905,104	20,816,437	6,278,959	2,905,223	5,418,008	38,119,508	44,502,412
Pooled Australian Share Fund	-	-	-	-	169,669,661	-	171,720,635	-	5,836,691	-	-	-
Blue Chip Pool												
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust	570,641,025	1,573,167,906	72.88	100.00	113,350,951	654,908,276	910,527,135	257,962,408	47,318,411	70,853,568	675,793,773	1,580,914,386
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	19,169,762	-	2.45	-	49,103,802	-	28,645,061	-	1,988,653	-	22,702,198	-
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	1,812,255	-	0.23	-	5,018,640	-	3,014,752	-	186,964	-	2,146,201	-
OnePath Capital Guaranteed Trust	100,906,191	-	12.89	-	211,385,947	-	103,729,358	-	8,698,538	-	119,500,303	-
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	90,457,945	_	11.55	-	207,748,156	-	105,407,547	-	6,134,938	-	107,126,745	-
Pooled Australian Share Fund	· · ·	-	_	-	359,752,585	-	356,430,299	_	14,032,830	-	, , , , ₋	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	-	_	_	-	285,435,162	46,594	288,603,476	216,744	1,858,916	4,750	-	_
Emerging Companies Trust					, , .	-,	,,	•	, , -	,		
OnePath Wholesale Emerging Companies Trust	49,581,754	70,809,396	22.24	18.83	4,001,129	77,126,852	15,090,703	4,581,010	2,777,494	1,500,437	47,823,876	57,582,045
Pooled Australian Share Fund	-	77,041,077		20.49	1,967,559	2,716,659	71,910,032	21,184,000	335,074	3,140,351	-	62,649,634
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	142,756,092	182,953,665	63.00	48.66	13,085,396	146,688,730	28,287,830	153,542,611	7,490,727	7,036,548	135,493,633	148,777,530
Global Share Trust	,,					, ,			.,,.	.,,.		,,
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	_	44,735,526	_	2.11	585,048	8,451,310	41,222,153	6,920,000	33,899	551,149	_	44,615,091
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	_	698,336,048	_	32.99	9,147,969	183,848,727	642,055,272	24,000,000	544,355	8,603,614	_	696,456,017
OnePath Wholesale High Growth Trust	_	36,344,771	_	1.72	477,331	4,350,450	33,554,613	94,000	29,558	447,773	_	36,246,925
OnePath Wholesale Managed Growth Trust	_	1,226,017,677	_	57.92	16,061,942	285,076,002	1,127,346,193	50,800,000	957,205	15,104,737	_	1,222,717,044
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	73,146,380	105,493,549	94.11	4.98	10,246,614	48,893,324	35,467,632	34,925,529	82,752	1,298,809	77,321,755	105,209,541
ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool	75/1.0/500	100/.50/0.5	5	50	10/2:0/01:	.0,035,52 .	33,107,032	3./323/323	02,702	1/230/003	,,,521,,55	100/200/011
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust	_	249,674,671	_	70.24	8,994,418	13,199,639	242,109,329	25,390,051	6,473,111	7,951,705	_	297,692,466
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Imputation Trust	_	105,767,551	_	29.76	4,570,954	6,289,821	103,192,356	17,490,017	2,759,594	3,457,921	_	126,108,920
ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust					.,,	-,,		,,	_,,.	-, ,-==		
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust	_	31,114,148	_	65.81	2,172,804	1,978,733	33,539,570	7,640,628	1,249,753	1,663,686	_	76,376,228
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust	_	16,163,565	_	34.19	866,631	1,483,607	16,907,648	3,722,248	543,664	865,016	_	39,676,874
ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust		10/100/000		55	000,001	27.007007	20/50//010	0// 22/2 10	5.5,00.	005,010		33,070,0,07
ANZ OA Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	_	50,048,419	_	37.99	4,406,894	4,418,166	51,220,338	10,024,919	705,880	3,282,641	_	39,989,788
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	_	81,700,205	_	62.01	8,282,629	7,039,531	84,875,150	16,350,248	1,227,214	5,367,452	_	65,280,261
ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust		01,700,203		02.01	0,202,023	7,033,331	01,073,130	10,550,210	1,22,,211	3,307,132		03,200,201
ANZ OA Schroder Australian Equity Trust	_	108,106,787	_	43.45	12,164,923	14,829,665	109,898,612	6,218,467	2,448,115	3,269,208	_	111,441,105
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust	_	140,706,095	_	56.55	15,413,407	15,365,188	142,680,217	9,697,594	3,189,991	4,326,316	_	145,045,868
ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust		110,700,000		50.55	13, 113, 107	15,505,100	112,000,217	5,057,554	3,103,331	1,525,510		1 15,0 15,000
ANZ OA UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	_	62,793,246	_	38.18	18,214,502	20,032,925	83,440,702	5,838,308	3,639,660	3,507,413	_	73,078,283
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	_	101,688,925	_	61.82	21,500,564	37,870,357	126,896,827	6,516,875	5,664,978	5,630,314	_	118,344,767
International Share Pool		101,000,723		01.02	21,300,304	37,070,337	120,030,027	0,310,073	3,001,370	3,030,314		110,511,707
ANZ International Equities Fund	_	2,114,285,744	_	100.00	35,444,212	480,641,692	1,954,585,963	91.313.241	613,644	25,990,751	_	3,281,523,737
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	_	-,111,203,744	_	-	37,522,489	-	39,045,115	71,313,241	301,010	_3,330,731	_	-
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	12,846,410		11.07		27,000,100	-	13,812,417	-	-		21,254,815	

9. Related parties (continued)

9.4 Related party investors in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value of	unit holdings	% I	nterest	Units purchase dur	ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ed during the period		Distributions aid/payable	Numbe	r of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012	2011 \$	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012 \$	2011 \$	2012	2011
International Share Pool												
Global Share Trust	75,354,176	-	64.94	-	76,311,598	-	1,755,143	-	-	-	124,676,002	-
OnePath Capital Guaranteed Trust	13,589,422	-	11.71	-	30,191,374	-	17,263,921	-	203,057	-	22,484,152	-
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	-	-	-	-	602,610,855	-	628,181,672	-	4,900,280	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	14,251,165	-	12.28	-	33,000,100	-	18,376,046	-	-	-	23,579,028	-
OnePath Wholesale High Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	32,736,581	-	34,118,349	-	266,801	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Managed Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	1,059,702,420	-	2,105,141,380	-	8,676,202	-	-	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	-	-	-	-	632,671	-	628,103	-	2,042	-	-	-
One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)												
ANZ OA Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) Trust	30,472,953	42,321,537	34.11	37.66	8,117,174	43,682,313	11,257,613	3,416,056	296,115	6,819,148	37,450,180	41,881,778
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	51,904,252	60,678,183	57.54	54.00	12,219,064	11,172,585	9,176,469	4,589,873	499,516	9,791,289	63,174,570	60,047,672
OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust	, ,	, ,			, ,		, ,		,	, ,		
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	27,225,096	34,551,749	75.50	74.01	7,587,200	21,324,994	12,869,501	27,950,623	3,026,002	4,460,105	25,543,792	30,641,578
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust	, ,	, ,			, ,		, ,			, ,		
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust	28,477,288	-	66.00	-	28,810,087	-	575,474	-	346,596	-	25,373,137	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	8,212,874	13,112,556	18.80	63.03	852,949	1,509,109	5,820,736	2,914,190	519,099	692,626	7,229,643	12,047,552
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust	, ,	, ,					, ,		,	,		
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	64,102,207	81,969,329	88.85	87.09	7,230,625	50,730,123	21,426,124	53,680,755	1,398,312	3,289,874	67,418,518	82,641,199
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	, ,	, ,			, ,		, ,			, ,		
ANZ OA Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	40,697,776	-	35.65	-	42,549,018	-	532,148	-	1,291,777	-	38,245,335	_
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	58,305,612	63,217,149	49.50	76.12	8,096,402	25,599,681	10,394,487	31,029,622	2,740,022	917,861	53,106,487	55,395,337
OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust	,,-	, ,			.,,	.,,	,,,,,	, , , , , ,	, .,.	,		,,
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	124,827,999	129,520,447	86.29	83.43	29,445,547	90,255,695	33,412,741	99,489,673	8,200,756	6,945,009	120,318,463	124,199,731
OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust	, ,	, ,			, ,		, ,			, ,		
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust	17,441,826	23,192,702	51.74	50.73	858,013	25,422,936	5,673,176	1,868,436	357,471	372,438	18,420,052	23,567,424
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	12,241,634	16,063,214	35.59	35.13	1,420,033	10,905,443	4,824,510	12,813,563	246,877	260,230	12,668,564	16,322,744
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust	, ,	.,,			, .,	.,,	, , , , , ,	, ,	, ,	,	, ,	-,- ,
ANZ OA Schroder Australian Equity Trust	104,806,412	-	41.67	-	106,072,551	_	813,585	-	1,160,323	-	100,129,203	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	112,994,025	113,884,949	44.43	75.26	14,748,393	49,231,465	6,331,751	40,593,468	3,813,682	3,448,288	106,769,371	98,867,057
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	, ,-	-,,-			, .,	., . ,	.,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	-,,	-, -,	, , .	, ,
ANZ OA UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	71,953,178	-	39.19	-	76,164,381	_	154,892	-	3,432,686	-	70,612,461	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	95,096,762	85,753,017	49.44	81.98	20,773,437	63,325,991	13,869,820	35,640,651	9,110,988	3,397,662	89,075,274	82,478,618
OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust	,,	,,,			-, -,	,,	-,,	,,	-, -,	-,,-=	,,	- , -,
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	507,965,051	204,669,186	87.80	83.81	323,409,779	358,520,018	21,641,147	170,761,814	12,676,791	10,619,211	526,062,005	207,949,403
OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust	, , , , , , , , , , , , ,	. , ,			,,	,,	, , , , , ,	-, - ,	,,	-,,	-,,	- ,,
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	160,872,394	96,383,738	86.82	85.73	71,997,804	104,831,074	13,944,279	49,369,442	3,054,986	11,324,871	154,737,069	96,185,622
OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool	,,,-	,,. 55			,,	,,	,- : :,-, >	,,	-,,-00	-,,	, , - 0 3	,,022
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust	_	91,748,254	_	100.00	4,842,174	6,972,560	93,825,416	11,894,391	1,344,806	3,912,700	-	98,431,772
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool		- , -,		-	, . ,	-,- ,	,,	, ,	,- ,	-,- ,		, - ,
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	113,897,862	193,762,097	100.00	80.96	4,840,723	123,567,566	48,994,544	22,855,989	2,818,338	3,133,566	183,926,184	250,597,642

9. Related parties (continued)

9.4 Related party investors in the Schemes making up the Economic Entities

	Fair value of	f unit holdings	% 1	interest	Units purchase dur	ed/reinvested ing the period	Units redeem	ed during the period		Distributions aid/payable	Numbe	er of units held
Name of entity Name of related entity	2012	2011	2012 %	2011 %	2012 \$	2011	2012	2011	2012 \$	2011	2012	2011
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool												
International Share Pool	_	45,578,873	_	19.04	737,112	50,000,000	40,016,559	_	_	737,112	_	58,948,361
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	_	13,370,073	_	-	20,164,657	-	20,361,658	_	_	737,112	_	-
OnePath Sustainable Investments – Wholesale Australian Share Trust					20,101,037		20,301,030					
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust	7,902,619	422,024,126	27.96	93.84	8,494,661	17,033,766	372,833,069	42,054,000	503,368	16,372,578	8,090,718	375,099,896
OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust	3,532,567	4,017,913	12.50	0.89	470,404	773,344	418,935	1,556,811	181,478	161,005	3,616,650	3,571,167
Pooled Australian Share Fund	-	-	-	-	370,899,443	-	372,622,290	-	15,433,633	-	-	-
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	16,885,494	23,609,707	59.44	5.25	3,681,619	30,004,418	7,537,684	28,183,636	941,681	887,415	17,200,259	20,984,579
Pooled Property Fund	, ,	, ,					, ,	, ,	ŕ	,	, ,	
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	4,556,326	_	4,532,574	_	2,193	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Conservative Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	101	-	-	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Income Trust	-	-	-	-	12,264	-	12,373	-	-	-	-	-
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	-	535,948,363	-	65.42	43,351,902	201,365,298	527,239,189	120,587,665	7,982,639	30,816,220	-	1,136,446,911
ANZ Property Securities Trust	-	97,732,735	-	11.93	4,609,070	8,011,124	97,885,260	13,781,613	2,243,957	6,091,359	-	207,236,503
Heine Property Securities Fund	-	21,189,976	-	2.59	968,607	1,782,836	21,316,299	4,753,777	536,543	1,329,220	-	44,932,094
OnePath Capital Guaranteed Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	101	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Balanced Trust	-	-	-	-	50,824,643	-	50,554,436	-	19,418	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Capital Stable Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	101	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Diversified Fixed Interest Trust	-	-	-	-	100	-	101	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale High Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	390,093	-	390,572	-	-	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Managed Growth Trust	-	-	-	-	86,037,964	-	85,729,032	-	35,868	-	-	-
OnePath Wholesale Property Securities Trust	-	3,464,967	-	0.42	254,355	806,129	3,573,907	2,002,081	82,425	242,655	-	7,347,258
Property Securities Trust	-	34,487,571	-	4.21	1,309,775	2,495,543	33,839,152	10,918,101	655,375	2,287,090	-	73,128,861
OnePath Life Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of ANZ)	-	126,487,767	-	15.44	4,257,577	52,776,817	117,971,160	18,363,510	1,792,387	7,580,514	-	268,209,854
Small Companies Pool												
Emerging Companies Trust	265,891,906	433,351,338	100.00	100.00	27,315,490	93,177,074	138,260,295	62,370,500	14,618,758	15,705,749	602,172,640	834,652,038
Pooled Australian Share Fund	-				70,888,961		72,989,956	-	2,554,454			

10. Financial instruments and associated risks

The Economic Entities maintain positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments as allowed for by their Product Disclosure Statement (PDS) or information memorandum.

The Economic Entities' investment portfolios comprise quoted and non-quoted equity investments and investments in other schemes that they intend to hold for an indeterminate period of time.

The Economic Entities' investment activities expose them to various types of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which they invest. The largest types of financial risk to which the Economic Entities are exposed to are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Asset allocation is determined by the Economic Entities' investment manager, who manages the allocation of Scheme assets to various investment sectors, within authorised ranges prescribed by the investment mandate. Divergence from target asset allocations and the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Economic Entities' investment manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments held at reporting date and the risk management policies employed by the Economic Entities, are discussed below.

10.1 Market risk

Market risk represents the risk that a financial instrument's value will fluctuate as a result of changes in market conditions and embodies the potential for both losses and gains. Market risk includes interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

The Economic Entities' strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Economic Entities' investment objectives. The Economic Entities' market risk is managed on a daily basis by the investment manager in accordance with the investment guidelines contained within the mandates applicable to each Scheme making up the Economic Entities.

10.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Financial instruments that would be impacted by changes in market interest rates are: cash and cash equivalents, fixed and floating rate interest securities, interest rate swaps and interest rate futures.

A Scheme may, through its investment in unlisted unit trusts, also have an indirect exposure to interest rate risk. This is limited to the amount invested in the unlisted unit trust and managed according to the investment strategy of the unlisted unit trust.

The Economic Entities' interest rate risk is managed on a daily basis by the investment manager in accordance with its defined investment process and within the guidelines and restrictions outlined in each of the Schemes' investment mandates. The Schemes making up the Economic Entities are monitored for mandate compliance. Where the interest rate risk exposure moves outside the Economic Entities' mandate restrictions or guidelines, the investment manager will rebalance the portfolios.

Direct interest rate risk exposure at reporting date is disclosed subsequently in 'Note 10.2.1 Interest rate risk exposure'.

A sensitivity analysis on the interest rate risk to which Economic Entities are directly exposed at the reporting date, is shown in 'Note 10.2.1 Interest rate risk exposure'. This analysis demonstrates how 'Net assets attributable to unitholders' and 'Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/Total comprehensive income' would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably possible, determined as a 100bp increase (2011: 100bp) or 100bp decrease (2011: 100bp) in the market interest rates. The sensitivity analysis for cash and cash equivalents and floating rate securities was calculated using balances as at 30 June 2012. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

		Active Gr	owth Trust (Consc	olidated Entity)	ANZ Fixed Into	erest Trust (Consc	lidated Entity)	ANZ OA Challeng	jer Property Trust ((Consolidated Entity)
	Note	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate	Total \$
30 June 2012 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits			2,263,390	2,263,390	-	53,973	53,973	<u>-</u>	170,338	170,338
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Bank overdraft Net exposure		<u>-</u>	2,263,390	2,263,390	-	53,973	- 53,973		(380,864) (210,526)	(380,864) (210,526)
30 June 2011 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities			877,599 917,396 20,105	877,599 917,396 20,105	- - 282,977,126	4,080,300 3,685,913 5,145,036	4,080,300 3,685,913 288,122,162	:	477,071 - -	477,071 - -
Bank overdraft Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss Net exposure		- -	1,815,100	1,815,100	- - 282.977.126	(1,029,732) 11,881,517	(1,029,732) 294,858,643		(832,413) - (355,342)	(832,413) - (355,342)
Sensitivity analysis		2012	2011	1,613,100	2012	2011	294,636,043	2012	2011	(333,342)
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders										
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)		22,634 (22,634)	(382,248) 410,782		540 (540)	(6,318,218) 7,599,281		(2,106) 2,106	(35,534) 35,534	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

	ANZ OA C	olonial First State In (Conso	putation Trust lidated Entity)	ANZ OA One	Path Blue Chip Im (Conso	putation Trust lidated Entity)	ANZ OA OnePath	Global Emerging M Trust (Consoli	
	Fixed interest ra	te Floating interest rate	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate F	Floating interest rate	Total \$
30 June 2012 Financial assets									
Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits	-	1,984,644 -	1,984,644 -	-	15,283,769 2,283,253	15,283,769 2,283,253	- -	2,609,273 -	2,609,273 -
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities	-	-	-	-	· · · · · ·	•	-	-	-
Bank overdraft Net exposure		1,984,644	1,984,644	-	17,567,022	17,567,022		2,609,273	2,609,273
30 June 2011									
Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents	-	5,846,610	5,846,610	-	2,258,869	2,258,869	-	2,181,988	2,181,988
Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities	-	- -	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Bank overdraft Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net exposure		5,846,610	5,846,610		2,258,869	2,258,869		2,181,988	2,181,988
Sensitivity analysis	2012	2011		2012	2011		2012	2011	
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders									
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)	19,8 (19,84			175,670 (175,670)	22,588 (22,588)		26,346 (26,346)	21,820 (21,820)	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

		ANZ OA O	nePath Property S (Conso	Securities Trust olidated Entity)	ANZ	OA OnePath Select (Consc	t Leaders Trust plidated Entity)		ePath Sustainable : Share Trust (Consol	
	Note	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$
30 June 2012 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents		-	1,368,580	1,368,580	-	584,070	584,070	-	29,578	29,578
Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities Bank overdraft		-	-	-	-	-	-	Ī	-	- -
Net exposure			1,368,580	1,368,580		584,070	584,070		29,578	29,578
30 June 2011 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities		- - -	2,367,732 351,156 -	2,367,732 351,156 -		9,356,546 121,040 -	9,356,546 121,040 -		2,560,223 - -	2,560,223 - -
Bank overdraft Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss				- -		<u>-</u>	-			-
Net exposure			2,718,888	2,718,888		9,477,586	9,477,586		2,560,223	2,560,223
Sensitivity analysis		2012	2011		2012	2011		2012	2011	
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders										
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)		13,686 (13,686)			5,841 (5,841)	94,776 (94,776)		296 (296)	25,602 (25,602)	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

		ANZ OA Pe	rpetual Internation (Conso	nal Share Trust olidated Entity)	Emerging Compa	anies Trust (Conso	lidated Entity)	Global Si	hare Trust (Consol	idated Entity)
	Note	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate	Total \$
30 June 2012 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents		-	383,094	383,094	-	16,544,728	16,544,728	-	2,555,991	2,555,991
Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities Bank overdraft		-	- -	<u>-</u>	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Net exposure			383,094	383,094		16,544,728	16,544,728		2,555,991	2,555,991
30 June 2011 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities		-	730,479 - -	730,479 - -	:	873,310 - -	873,310 - -	:	11,975,487 12,487,098 (457)	11,975,487 12,487,098 (457)
Bank overdraft Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss Net exposure			- - 730,479	- - 730,479		(39,230) - - 834,080	(39,230) - 834,080	<u> </u>	(153,365) 24,308,763	(153,365) 24,308,763
Sensitivity analysis		2012	2011		2012	2011		2012	2011	
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders										
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)		3,831 (3,831)	7,305 (7,305)		165,447 (165,447)	8,341 (8,341)		25,935 (25,935)	253,825 (253,825)	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

	One Answer Ca	pital International (Hedged) (Conso	•	OneAnswer	- Bentham Syndica (Conse	ated Loan Trust olidated Entity)	OneAnswer - Col	onial First State Div (Consol	versified Trust idated Entity)
	Fixed interest rate Note \$	Floating interest rate	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$
30 June 2012 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents	-	851,283	851,283	-	149,263	149,263	-	686,928	686,928
Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities Bank overdraft	-	-	-	-	- 1,261 -	- 1,261 -	-	-	-
Net exposure		851,283	851,283		150,524	150,524		686,928	686,928
30 June 2011 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities	- - -	137,623 - -	137,623 - -	- - -	130,434 - -	130,434 - -	- - -	1,838,570 - -	1,838,570 - -
Bank overdraft Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss	- -	(810,742) -	(810,742) -	-		-	-		- -
Net exposure		(673,119)	(673,119)		130,434	130,434		1,838,570	1,838,570
Sensitivity analysis	2012	2011		2012	2011		2012	2011	
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders									
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)	8,513 (8,513			1,606 (1,354)	13,043 (13,043)		6,869 (6,869)	18,386 (18,386)	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

	OneAnswer - I	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)			OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)			OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	Fixed interest rate Note \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate	Total \$	
30 June 2012 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents	-	991,910	991,910	-	2,210,142	2,210,142	-	1,838,221	1,838,221	
Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities Bank overdraft	-	-	-	-	1,670,819 -	1,670,819 -	-	- -	-	
Net exposure		991,910	991,910	-	3,880,961	3,880,961		1,838,221	1,838,221	
30 June 2011 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities Bank overdraft	: : :	748,435 - - (247,620)	748,435 - - (247,620)	- - -	2,837,271 - - -	2,837,271 - - -	- - -	1,274,222 - - (379,058)	1,274,222 - - (379,058)	
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss Net exposure		500,815	500,815		2,837,271	2,837,271		895,164	895,164	
Sensitivity analysis	2012	2011		2012	2011		2012	2011		
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders										
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)	9,919 (9,919)			172,475 (172,475)	283,727 (283,727)		18,382 (18,382)	8,951 (8,951)		

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.2.1 Interest rate risk exposure

	OneAnswer - UE	S Diversified Fixed (Conso	d Income Trust blidated Entity)	OneAnswer	- Vanguard Balanc (Conso	ed Index Trust olidated Entity)	OneAnswer - V	/anguard Index Div Trust (Consoli	
	Fixed interest rate Note \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$	Fixed interest rate \$	Floating interest rate \$	Total \$
30 June 2012 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents	_	1,474,205	1,474,205	_	8,858,213	8,858,213	_	2,488,333	2,488,333
Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Financial liabilities	- -			- -	-		-	1,000	1,000
Bank overdraft Net exposure	-	1,474,205	1,474,205	<u>-</u>	(357) 8,857,856	(357) 8,857,856	-	2,489,333	2,489,333
30 June 2011 Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Future deposits Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss	-	989,537 -	989,537 -	Ī	5,583,227 -	5,583,227 -	<u>.</u>	931,883 -	931,883
Financial liabilities Bank overdraft Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss Net exposure	<u>-</u>	(564,990) 	(564,990) - - 424,547	- - -	5,583,227	5,583,227		931,883	931,883
Sensitivity analysis	2012	2011	72.1/5.17	2012	2011	3,303,227	2012	2011	331,005
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders									
Interest rate risk - increase of 100bp (2011 100bp) Interest rate risk - decrease of 100bp (2011 100bp)	14,742 (14,742)	4,245 (4,245)		88,582 (88,582)	55,832 (55,832)		24,973 (24,773)	9,409 (9,409)	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.3 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Economic Entities may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than their functional currency. Consequently, the Economic Entities would be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of their currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that would affect the value of the Economic Entities' assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Australian dollar (AUD).

The Economic Entities' currency risk is actively managed on a regular basis by the investment manager in accordance with its defined currency management process, and within the guidelines and constraints of each of the Schemes' investment mandates in order to enhance total returns. The investment manager may use derivative contracts such as options, swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts as permitted by the mandates in managing currency risk.

For Schemes investing into unlisted unit trusts there is possible indirect exposure to currency risk. This is limited to the amount invested in the unlisted unit trust and managed according to the investment strategy of the unlisted unit trust.

The Economic Entities' total net direct exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates as at the reporting date is shown in 'Note 10.4.1 Net currency risk exposure ' on the following page.

A sensitivity analysis was performed showing how the effect of a 10% strengthening or weakening of the AUD against the relevant currencies at reporting date would have increased/(decreased) the 'Net assets attributable to unitholders' and the 'Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/Total comprehensive income'. This analysis is disclosed in 'Note 10.4.1 Net currency risk exposure ' on a subsequent page. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2011.

10.4 Concentration risk

Concentration risk can arise from holding financial instruments that have exposure to similar geographical regions.

'Note 10.4.1 Net currency risk exposure ' details the concentration risk.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.4.1 Net currency risk exposure

		e Growth Trust olidated Entity)		Interest Trust plidated Entity)	Emerging Marke			
					(Collso	iluateu Ellitty)		Entity)
	30 June 2012 Fair value \$	30 June 2011 Fair value \$	30 June 2012 Fair value \$	30 June 2011 Fair value \$	30 June 2012 Fair value \$	30 June 2011 Fair value \$	30 June 2012 Fair value \$	30 June 2011 Fair value \$
United States Dollar	-	107,267	-	1,323,750	17,797,368	56,960,081	-	29,260
Euro	=	-	-	284	-	160	-	-
Pound Sterling	-	-	-	462,240	-	4,070,726	-	=
Japanese Yen	-	-	-	(388,277)	- 	-	-	919
Hong Kong Dollar	-	-	-	-	18,535,537	47,270,007	-	390,937
Swedish Krona	=	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Brazilian Real	=	-	-	-	-	27,678,243	-	-
Swiss Franc	-	-	-	-	- 0 252 202	-	-	=
Korean Won	-	-	-	-	8,353,382	33,815,466	-	-
Other Currencies		- 107.057		329,190	69,797,876	68,447,617		9,211
Net foreign currency exposure		107,267		1,727,187	114,484,163	238,242,300		430,327
Sensitivity analysis	2012	2011	2012	2011	2012	2011	2012	2011
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders								
Currency risk - increase of 10%*		(10,727)		(172,719)	(11,448,416)	(23,824,230)		(43,033)

^{*}A decrease will have an equal and opposite effect on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.4.1 Net currency risk exposure

		oal Share Trust lidated Entity)	International	Answer Capital Global Equities (Consolidated Entity)
	30 June 2012 Fair value \$	30 June 2011 Fair value \$	30 June 2012 Fair value \$	30 June 2011 Fair value \$
United States Dollar Euro Pound Sterling Japanese Yen Hong Kong Dollar Swedish Krona Brazilian Real Swiss Franc Korean Won Other Currencies Net foreign currency exposure	61,287,722 14,031,058 12,425,335 11,783,038 2,961,785 388,087 - 3,888,931 - 8,356,759 115,122,715	1,075,105,376 419,770,342 106,136,996 226,853,851 (458,382) 15,464,403 115,192 91,265,447 - 30,106,566 1,964,359,791	(56,186,215) (7,260,825) (7,947,902) (7,408,502) (3,758,125) - - (4,425,721) - (2,135,163) (89,122,453)	(97,389,881) (28,302,947) (21,009,734) (17,057,854) (6,444,122) (7,991,649) - (8,408,877) (186,605,064)
Sensitivity analysis	2012	2011	2012	2011
Impact on Profit/loss on operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders	(44 542 274)	(106 425 072)	0.012.245	10.000.500
Currency risk - increase of 10%*	(11,512,271)	(196,435,979)	8,912,245	18,660,506

^{*}A decrease will have an equal and opposite effect on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.5 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Economic Entities' financial instrument exposure is susceptible to price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the instruments.

There may also be both direct and indirect exposure to price risk through investment in both unlisted and listed unit trusts. For example, investments in property trusts, both unlisted and listed, are exposed to the value of the underlying properties held within the trusts. The exposure is limited to the fair value of the investment held in those property trusts.

All of the Economic Entities' financial instruments are carried at fair value. As changes in the value of investments are recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect 'Net investment income/(loss)'. The price risk exposure of financial instruments is equal to the fair value of the financial instruments as reported in the Statements of Financial Position. The Economic Entities' overall exposure is monitored on a daily basis by the Economic Entities' investment manager. The investment manager moderates price risk through a careful selection of securities and other financial instruments within specified limits, as outlined in each of the Schemes' investment mandates and mandate compliance is monitored. The impact of price risk over a total portfolio of investments is further managed by diversification of securities, sectors and markets as well as the use of derivative risk management strategies.

An analysis of the concentration and exposure to direct price risk is shown in Note '6. Financial assets and liabilities'.

A sensitivity analysis was performed showing how the effect of a 10% increase (2011: 10%) and a 10% decrease (2011: 10%) in the securities' prices would have increased/(decreased) the 'Net assets attributable to unitholders' and the 'Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders/Total Comprehensive Income'. The results of this analysis are disclosed in 'Note 10.5.1 Price risk - sensitivity analysis' on page 76. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2011.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.5.1 Price risk - sensitivity analysis

		Growth Trust dated Entity)		nterest Trust lated Entity)	Pr	A Challenger operty Trust dated Entity)		ial First State utation Trust dated Entity)
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Impact on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders	Ψ	Δ.	Ф	Ψ.	Ф		φ	Ψ
Price risk - increase of 10%*	8,995,016	12,650,876	1,326,641	70,470,473	4,144,354	4,966,490	27,257,741	34,985,822
		ath Blue Chip utation Trust dated Entity)		ePath Global arkets Share lated Entity)		ath Property curities Trust dated Entity)	ı	nePath Select Leaders Trust dated Entity)
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Impact on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ
Price risk - increase of 10%*	76,174,407	155,650,171	11,234,691	23,580,579	19,673,551	80,821,274	6,676,599	40,535,591
	Sustainable II Australiar	OA OnePath ovestments - o Share Trust dated Entity)	International	OA Perpetual Share Trust lated Entity)	Emerging Com (Consolid	panies Trust dated Entity)		l Share Trust dated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Impact on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders	·					.		
Price risk - increase of 10%*	790,262	44,401,666	3,257,058	4,325,262	25,105,002	43,232,501	11,331,685	208,608,203

^{*}A decrease will have an equal and opposite effect on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.5.1 Price risk - sensitivity analysis

Price risk - increase of 10%*

	One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		Syndicate	er - Bentham d Loan Trust lated Entity)	(Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)	
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Impact on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders		· ·						·
Price risk - increase of 10%*	9,653,503	20,602,323	3,621,545	4,679,229	7,012,746	8,952,813	11,278,111	12,593,296
	Conservative G	r - Perpetual Growth Trust lated Entity)	Australian	er - Schroder Equity Trust lated Entity)	OneA Diversified F Trust (Consolid		Balanced	r - Vanguard Index Trust dated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011
Impact on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders						<u> </u>		
Price risk - increase of 10%*	26,129,674	19,705,453	24,138,234	24,372,678	18,651,008	16,032,309	97,806,067	23,287,835
Impact on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders		r - Vanguard ersified Bond lated Entity) 30 June 2011 \$						

^{*}A decrease will have an equal and opposite effect on Profit/loss from operating activities and Net assets attributable to unitholders.

29,120,408 16,025,739

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6 Credit risk exposure

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Economic Entities.

The following financial instruments are exposed to credit risk: cash and cash equivalents, receivables, investments in fixed interest securities, floating interest securities, bank accepted bills and certain derivative financial instruments.

Market prices generally incorporate credit assessments into valuations, and risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of applicable financial assets as they are 'marked to market'. For all classes of financial assets, excluding derivatives that are fully collateralised to reduce exposure, the Economic Entities' maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the carrying amount of those assets, less any provisions for loss, as indicated in the Statements of Financial Position. For derivatives, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the notional value of these financial instruments.

Credit risk is minimised by managing the assets of the Economic Entities within credit rating limits specified by investment mandates.

Credit risk arising on debt instruments is further managed by the investment manager of the Economic Entities assessing, amongst other things, the credit rating and quality of debt instruments relative to their price and yield. Credit ratings are largely determined by the major ratings agencies, being Standard & Poor's or Moodys. In some cases a debt instrument of acceptable investment quality may not be rated by these rating agencies, in which case the investment manager will 'internally' rate its credit quality. The credit quality of the debt securities invested into by the Economic Entities, if any, is disclosed in 'Note 10.6.1 Credit risk - Credit quality of debt securities.

Credit risk is minimised where debt securities, futures, swaps and options are tradeable through a recognised market exchange.

For Schemes investing in unlisted unit trusts there is indirect exposure to credit risk. This is limited to the amount invested in the unlisted unit trust and managed according to the investment strategy of the unlisted unit trust.

The Economic Entities do not directly hold any financial assets that are past due or impaired.

The Economic Entities do not hold any collateral as security nor any other credit enhancements, other than in relation to the securities lending program.

Securities lending involves the Schemes' custodian lending securities within the Schemes' assets to a third party. Collateral equivalent to 102 - 110% of the fair value of the securities is guaranteed by the custodian to the Schemes making up the Economic Entities during the loan period. This minimises the Schemes' exposure to credit risk. The value of the collateral held is compared regularly to the value of stock lent and adjusted where required in order to maintain the collateral range of 102 - 110%. The credit risk is the Schemes' counterparty risk with the custodian, and is quantified as the amounts lent out by the custodian gross of any collateral held. These amounts are disclosed within 'Note 10.6.1 Credit risk - Maximum exposure to credit risk'.

The maximum exposure to credit risk attached to assets held by the Schemes making up the Economic Entities, is reported in the table in 'Note 10.6.1 Credit risk - Maximum exposure to credit risk'.

All cash balances held by the Schemes that make up each of the Economic Entities are held by ANZ or JP Morgan Chase & Co. Bankruptcy or insolvency of these banking institutions may cause delays or limitations in the Schemes' access to these cash balances. The credit ratings of these banking institutions are AA and A+, respectively, as at reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments are transacted with counterparties that are rated A+ and above, as defined by rating agency Standard & Poor's, within predetermined limits, and with whom a Scheme has signed master netting agreements.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6.1 Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

	Active Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)			d Interest Trust solidated Entity)	ANZ OA Challenge (Con	er Property Trust solidated Entity)	•	
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Fixed interest securities	-	-	-	282,876,758	-	-	-	-
Floating interest securities	-	-	-	4,754,719	-	-	-	-
Derivatives	-	204,474	-	100,368	-	-	-	-
Securities lent		-	-	242,900,344				
Total	-	204,474	-	530,632,189	-	_	-	_

create quality of acut securities								
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011						
	% of NAV							
AAA	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	25.57%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
AA+ to AA-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	15.56%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
A+ to A-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.95%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
BBB+ to BBB-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.27%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6.1 Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

	ANZ OA On Imputation Trus	•		Global Emerging kets Share Trust solidated Entity)		nePath Property st (Consolidated Entity)		h Select Leaders solidated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Fixed interest securities Floating interest securities	-	-	-	-	-	-	- -	-
Derivatives	-	-	-	1,465,778	-	9,960,274	-	-
Securities lent	24,899,633	40,728,554		<u> </u>	-	15,300,078		10,779,899
Total	24,899,633	40,728,554	_	1,465,778	-	25,260,352	-	10,779,899

create quality of acut securities								
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011						
	% of NAV							
AAA	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
AA+ to AA-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
A+ to A-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
BBB+ to BBB-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6.1 Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

	Investments - A	Path Sustainable Australian Share solidated Entity)	ANZ OA Perpetu Share Trust (Cons	al International solidated Entity)		Companies Trust solidated Entity)	Global Share Trus	t (Consolidated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Fixed interest securities Floating interest securities	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Derivatives	-	-	-	-	-	-	680,273	136,945,937
Securities lent		16,118,568			4,268,752	6,688,302		<u> </u>
Total		16,118,568		-	4,268,752	6,688,302	680,273	136,945,937

credit quality of debt securities									
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011							
	% of NAV								
AAA	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
AA+ to AA-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
A+ to A-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
BBB+ to BBB-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6.1 Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

	One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Bent Loan Trust (Cons	_		neAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust (Consolidated Entity)		investors Mutual Ilian Share Trust solidated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Fixed interest securities	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Floating interest securities Derivatives Securities lent	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -
Total		-	·					

credit quality of debt securities									
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011							
	% of NAV								
AAA	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
AA+ to AA-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
A+ to A-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
BBB+ to BBB-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6.1 Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

	Conservati		OneAnswer - Sch Equity Trust (Cons				OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust (Consolidated Entity)		
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	
Fixed interest securities Floating interest securities	-	-	- - -	-	-	-	-	-	
Derivatives Securities lent	-	- -	- - -	- -	- -	- -	-	- -	
Total		-		-					

credit quality of debt securities									
	30 June 2012	30 June 2011							
	% of NAV								
AAA	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
AA+ to AA-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
A+ to A-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	
BBB+ to BBB-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6.1 Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk

	Divers	Vanguard Index sified Bond Trust solidated Entity)
	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Fixed interest securities	-	-
Floating interest securities Derivatives	- -	-
Securities lent		
Total		

	30 June 2012 % of NAV	30 June 2011 % of NAV
AAA	0.00%	0.00%
AA+ to AA-	0.00%	0.00%
A+ to A-	0.00%	0.00%
BBB+ to BBB-	0.00%	0.00%

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.7 Liquidity and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a Scheme will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise raising funds to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. To control liquidity risk, the Economic Entities invest in financial instruments, which under normal market conditions, are readily convertible into cash. In addition, the Economic Entities' investment mandates require diversification of assets to minimise concentration of risk.

Net assets attributable to unitholders at redemption price are recognised as a liability therefore they are included within our assessment of the liquidity risk and exposure of the Economic Entities. The Constitutions of the Schemes making up the Economic Entities provide for the daily application and redemption of units and are therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions at any time.

The Economic Entities' approach to managing liquidity and cash flow is to ensure, as far as possible, that they will have sufficient liquidity to meet their liabilities when due, under normal conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Economic Entities' reputation. Daily monitoring of cash flow and liquidity levels has been introduced to highlight any Schemes with high liquidity and cash flow risk so that appropriate and timely action can be taken to ensure investors' interests are protected.

The Economic Entities' portfolios of assets including cash balances, are maintained within defined mandate limits and monitoring of these positions is part of the liquidity risk management of the Economic Entities.

The Economic Entities' listed securities are considered to be readily realisable as they are all listed on recognised stock exchanges.

'Note 10.7.1 Liquidity risk exposure' analyses the Schemes' derivative financial instruments currently in a liability position based on expected maturity rather than on a contractual basis, as the contractual maturities for such contracts are not considered to be essential to an understanding of the timing of cash flows based on the Schemes' investment strategy.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

				Growth Trust idated Entity)	ANZ Fixed Interest Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Im	ial First State outation Trust idated Entity)
		Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Non-derivative financi	al liabilities		\$	\$	\$	\$	<u> </u>	\$_	<u> </u>	\$
Bank overdrafts Due for maturity in:	< 1 month	4					380,864	832,413	<u> </u> .	
Total bank overdrafts							380,864	832,413	 -	
Payables Due for maturity in:	< 1 month		1,610,576	1,629,523	10,371	30,704,096	449,235	737,811	1,756,584	2,037,505
Total pavables			1,610,576	1,629,523	10,371	30,704,096	449,235	737,811	1,756,584	2,037,505
Amounts payable to un On call amounts	nitholders		91,540,850	128,187,619	13,539,530	703,266,672	42,046,229	49,934,231	275,030,935	355,811,011
Total amounts payable	to unitholders		91,540,850	128,187,619	13,539,530	703,266,672	42,046,229	49,934,231	275,030,935	355,811,011
Derivative financial lia	bilities									
Fair value	< 1 month		-	201,189	-	-	-	-	-	-
	> 1 month but < 3 months		-	301,245	-	637,094	-	-	-	-
Total derivative finance	> 3 months but < 12 months			502,434		392,638 1,029,732			 -	
Total delivative illiand	iai navinties			302,737		_,5_5,75_				

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

		Im	ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust Em (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Path Property (Consolidated Entity)	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust (Consolidated Entity)	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities		\$	\$_	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Bank overdrafts Due for maturity in: < 1 month Total bank overdrafts	4	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>
Payables Due for maturity in: < 1 month Total payables		9,075,380 9,075,380	20,019,578 20,019,578	1,279,186 1,279,186	5,380,905 5,380,905		13,642,788 13,642,788	1,807,420 1,807,420	44,473,634 44,473,63 4
Amounts payable to unitholders On call amounts		780,176,727	1,553,463,800	114,894,983	235,998,177	196,614,282	809,171,869	65,662,780	390,163,141
Total amounts payable to unitholders		780,176,727	1,553,463,800	114,894,983	235,998,177	196,614,282	809,171,869	65,662,780	390,163,141
Derivative financial liabilities									
Fair value < 1 month		-	15,559,800	-	1,468,064	-	9,961,592	-	30,495
> 1 month but < 3 months > 3 months but < 12 months		-	-	-	-	-	160,497	-	-
Total derivative financial liabilities		<u>-</u>	15,559,800		1,468,064		10,122,089		30,495

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

			th Sustainable ts - Australian (Consolidated Entity)	ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)			mpanies Trust lidated Entity)	Global Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities		Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ
Bank overdrafts							20.222		
Due for maturity in: < 1 month	4		-	-			39,230		-
Total bank overdrafts			-	-			39,230		-
Payables Due for maturity in: < 1 month Total payables		229,524 229,524	10,787,764 10,787,764	555,346 555,346	610,431 610,431	4,566,544 4,566,544	8,456,211 8,456,211	249,137 249,137	60,819,158 60,819,158
Total Davables		229,324	10,767,704	333,340	010,731	7,300,377	0,730,211	279,137	00,019,130
Amounts payable to unitholders On call amounts		7,743,474	441,887,082	33,059,214	43,917,821	264,866,942	425,246,404	116,891,880	2,088,698,726
Total amounts payable to unitholders		7,743,474	441,887,082	33,059,214	43,917,821	264,866,942	425,246,404	116,891,880	2,088,698,726
Derivative financial liabilities									
Fair value < 1 month		-	-	-	-	-	-	680,350	134,742,700
> 1 month but < 3 months		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2,254,690
> 3 months but < 12 months		-	-	-		-			-
Total derivative financial liabilities		-	-	-		-		680,350	136,997,390

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

		International (One Answer Capital nternational Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust (Consolidated Entity)		- Colonial First versified Trust lidated Entity)	OneAnswer - Investo Mutual Australian Share Tru (Consolidated Entit	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities		\$_	\$_	<u> </u>	\$_	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\$_	\$_
Bank overdrafts Due for maturity in: < 1 month Total bank overdrafts	4	<u>-</u>	810,742 810,742		<u>-</u>			<u>-</u>	247,620 247,620
Payables Due for maturity in: < 1 month		1,760,908 1,760,908	34,068,554 34,068,554	1,243,747 1,243,747	1,895,121 1,895,121	193,562 193,562	1,292,076 1,292,076	3,474,940 3,474,940	5,207,138 5,207,138
Total pavables Amounts payable to unitholders On call amounts		98.028.502	174,743,774	36,426,080	47.349.781	70,965,193		113,913,523	127,322,396
Total amounts payable to unitholders		98,028,502	174,743,774	36,426,080	47,349,781	70,965,193	91,403,232	113,913,523	127,322,396
Derivative financial liabilities		40.050	105 505 051						
Fair value < 1 month > 1 month but < 3 months > 3 months but < 12 months		13,952 - -	186,605,064 - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -	- - -
Total derivative financial liabilities		13,952	186,605,064		-		-		

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

		Conservative	OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust (Consolidated Entity)		er - Vanguard ed Index Trust idated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities		\$_	\$_	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\$	\$_	<u> \$ </u>	\$
Bank overdrafts Due for maturity in: < 1 month	4	_	_	_	379,058	_	564,990	357	_
Total bank overdrafts		-	_		379,058		564,990	357	-
Payables Due for maturity in: < 1 month		10,791,500	4,392,442	2,483,523	2,411,371	8,578,945	2,472,209	12,083,736	7,356,687
Total pavables		10,791,500	4,392,442	2,483,523	2,411,371	8,578,945	2,472,209	12,083,736	7,356,687
Amounts payable to unitholders On call amounts Total amounts payable to unitholders		264,764,254 264,764,254	199,909,217 199,909,217	243,425,933 243,425,933	247,666,183 247,666,183	181,850,302 181,850,302	163,016,843 163,016,843	985,857,325 985,857,325	238,543,214 238,543,214
Derivative financial liabilities									
Fair value < 1 month		-	104,650	-	-	-	-	-	-
> 1 month but < 3 months > 3 months but < 12 months		- 109,529	- -	-	- -	-	-	- -	- -
Total derivative financial liabilities		109,529	104,650	-	-	-	-	-	-

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

				anguard Index led Bond Trust lidated Entity)
		Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Non-derivative finance	ial liabilities		\$	<u> </u>
Bank overdrafts				
Due for maturity in:	< 1 month	4		-
Total bank overdrafts				-
Payables				
Due for maturity in:	< 1 month		2,772,984	11,292,787
Total pavables			2,772,984	11,292,787
Amounts payable to u	unitholders		293,753,303	161,924,424
Total amounts payab	le to unitholders		293,753,303	161,924,424
Derivative financial li				
Fair value	< 1 month		-	-
	> 1 month but < 3 months		-	-
	> 3 months but < 12 months			-
Total derivative finan	cial liabilities		-	-

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8 Financial instruments hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1) Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) on an active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2) Fair values measured using inputs (other than quoted prices included for level 1) that are either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable for the asset or liability.

Level 3) Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

10.8.1 Financial instruments hierarchy

			idated Entity)	ANZ Fixed Interest Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity)	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Listed securities:									
Level 1		_	_	_	4,875,181	_	_	_	_
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Debt securities:									
Level 1		-	-	-	56,061,650	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	-	-	231,569,827	-	-	-	-
Level 3 Unlisted unit trusts:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 1		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Level 2		89,950,155	126,786,616	13,266,411	412,737,114	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219
Level 3		-			-	-	-		-
Derivative assets:									
Level 1		-	20,105	-	390,318	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	204,474	-	100,368	-	-	-	-
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	89,950,155	127,011,195	13,266,411	705,734,458	41,443,541	49,664,898	272,577,414	349,858,219
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Investments held on short position:									
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3 Derivative liabilities:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 1		_	301,245	_	1,029,732	_	_	_	-
Level 2		<u>-</u>	201,189	-	1,029,732	_	_	<u>-</u>	_
Level 3		-	201,109	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2		502,434		1,029,732				

Please refer to 'Note 1.6 Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value ' for valuation methodologies used.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8.1 Financial instruments hierarchy

		Im	ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Path Property ecurities Trust idated Entity)	ANZ OA O Leaders Trust (nePath Select (Consolidated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Listed securities:			Ţ	¥	Ÿ	<u> </u>	Ť		*
Level 1		761,624,770	1,544,966,922	112,346,914	235,808,072	-	808,374,553	-	404,171,642
Level 2 Level 3		-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-
Debt securities:									
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3 Unlisted unit trusts:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 1		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Level 2		-	26,974,591	-	-	196,735,505	-	66,765,992	1,214,758
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Derivative assets:		110 207							
Level 1 Level 2		119,297	120,000	_	1,465,778	_	9,960,274	-	
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	761,744,067	1,572,061,513	112,346,914	237,273,850	196,735,505	818,334,827	66,765,992	405,386,400
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Investments held on short position:									
Level 1 Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Derivative liabilities:									
Level 1		-		-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		-	15,559,800	-	1,468,064	-	10,122,089	-	30,495
LEVEL 3		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2	-	15,559,800	-	1,468,064	-	10,122,089	-	30,495

 $Please\ refer\ to\ 'Note\ 1.6\ Financial\ assets\ and\ liabilities\ held\ at\ fair\ value\ '\ for\ valuation\ methodologies\ used.$

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8.1 Financial instruments hierarchy

		ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)		ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)		Emerging Companies Trust (Consolidated Entity)			al Share Trust lidated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Listed securities:		Ψ.	Ψ	¥_		Ψ	<u> </u>	*	Ψ
Level 1		-	423,397,139	-	-	250,646,647	423,573,239	113,316,927	2,037,116,748
Level 2 Level 3		-	-	-	_	-	-	_	-
Debt securities:									
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3 Unlisted unit trusts:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 1		_	_	_	_	-	_	_	_
Level 2		7,902,619	5,772,659	32,570,583	43,252,616	403,368	8,751,774	-	47,667,338
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Derivative assets: Level 1								_	1,349,401
Level 2		_	14,846,865	-	_	-	-	680,273	136,945,937
Level 3		-		-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	7,902,619	444,016,663	32,570,583	43,252,616	251,050,015	432,325,013	113,997,200	2,223,079,424
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Investments held on short position:									
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	_	-
Derivative liabilities:									
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2,254,690
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	680,350	134,742,700
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2		-	-			-	680,350	136,997,390

 ${\it Please \ refer \ to \ 'Note \ 1.6 \ Financial \ assets \ and \ liabilities \ held \ at \ fair \ value \ ' \ for \ valuation \ methodologies \ used.}$

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8.1 Financial instruments hierarchy

		International G	One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged) (Consolidated Entity)		OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust (Consolidated Entity)		- Colonial First versified Trust lidated Entity)	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Listed securities:	_	Ψ	Ψ.,		Ψ_	Ψ_	Ψ_		¥_
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Debt securities:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 1		_	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Unlisted unit trusts: Level 1									
Level 2		94,844,537	203,726,358	36,215,450	46,792,286	70,127,462	89,528,127	112,781,110	125,932,960
Level 3		J+,O++,JJ7 -	203,720,330	-		70,127,402	-	-	123,332,300
Derivative assets:									
Level 1		-	188,901,934	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		1,704,442	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	96,548,979	392,628,292	36,215,450	46,792,286	70,127,462	89,528,127	112,781,110	125,932,960
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Investments held on short position: Level 1		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Level 2		_	-	-	-	_	-	-	_
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Derivative liabilities:									
Level 1 Level 2		- 12.0E2	186,605,064	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		13,952	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
201013									
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2	13,952	186,605,064	-					-

 $Please\ refer\ to\ 'Note\ 1.6\ Financial\ assets\ and\ liabilities\ held\ at\ fair\ value\ '\ for\ valuation\ methodologies\ used.$

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8.1 Financial instruments hierarchy

		Conservative	er - Perpetual Growth Trust idated Entity)	OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust (Consolidated Entity)			BS Diversified Income Trust lidated Entity)	Balance	er - Vanguard d Index Trust idated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Listed securities:									
Level 1		3,920,355	1,538,745	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Debt securities: Level 1									
Level 2		_	_	_	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		_	_	_	_	_	_	-	_
Unlisted unit trusts:									
Level 1		-	_	-	-	-	-	-	_
Level 2		257,426,161	195,344,870	241,382,338	243,726,782	186,510,083	160,323,086	978,060,671	232,878,355
Level 3		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Derivative assets:		. ===							
Level 1		1,572	275,568	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		58,179	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 5		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	261,406,267	197,159,183	241,382,338	243,726,782	186,510,083	160,323,086	978,060,671	232,878,355
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Investments held on short position:									
Level 1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 2 Level 3		_	_	_	-	-	-	-	-
Derivative liabilities:		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 1		_	104,650	_	-	_	_	-	_
Level 2		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Level 3		_	-	_	_	_	_	_	-
Level 5									

 $Please\ refer\ to\ 'Note\ 1.6\ Financial\ assets\ and\ liabilities\ held\ at\ fair\ value\ '\ for\ valuation\ methodologies\ used.$

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8.1 Financial instruments hierarchy

			nguard Index ed Bond Trust idated Entity)
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
		Ψ	Ψ
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss			
Listed securities:			
Level 1 Level 2		-	-
Level 3		-	-
Debt securities:			
Level 1		_	_
Level 2		-	_
Level 3		-	-
Unlisted unit trusts:			
Level 1		-	-
Level 2		291,204,082	160,257,390
Level 3		-	-
Derivative assets:			
Level 1		-	-
Level 2		-	-
Level 3		-	-
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss	6.1	291,204,082	160,257,390
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Investments held on short position:			
Level 1		-	-
Level 2		-	-
Level 3 Perivative liabilities:		-	-
Level 1			
Level 2		-	-
Level 3		- -	- -
2010/3			
Total financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss	6.2	-	-

Please refer to 'Note 1.6 Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value ' for valuation methodologies used.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Level 3 securities held are securities valued by using inputs not derived from observable market data. Inputs are prices derived from external sources which use various valuation techniques that include unobservable inputs.

A reconciliation of movements of Level 3 assets held at fair value through profit and loss throughout the financial year is disclosed in the subsequent table.

10.8.1.1 Movements of level 3 securities

		ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust (Consolidated Entity)										
		Financial as	ssets & liabilitie	s at fair value thr	ough profit and	loss 2012	Financial a	ssets & liabilitie	s at fair value thr	ough profit and lo	oss 2011	
		Listed	Listed Debt Unlisted unit Trading Listed Debt Unlisted unit Trading									
	Note	equities	securities	trusts	derivatives	Total	equities	securities	trusts	derivatives	Total	
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss												
Opening balance		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Total gains or losses in profit or loss*		(9,193)	-	-	-	(9,193)	-	-	-	-	-	
Purchases		594,585	-	-	-	594,585	-	-	-	-	-	
Sales		(3,118,902)	-	-	-	(3,118,902)	-	-	-	-	-	
Settlements			-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	
Transfers in/(out) of Level 3		2,533,510	-			2,533,510	-			-	-	
Closing balance	10.8.1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets												
held at the end of the reporting period*		110,315				110,315						

^{*} These amounts are included in 'Net change in fair value of investments' within the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.8.1.1 Movements of level 3 securities

			Emerging Companies Trust (Consolidated Entity)										
		Financial as	Financial assets & liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 2012 Financial assets & liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 2011										
		Listed	Debt	Unlisted unit	Trading		Listed	Debt	Unlisted unit	Trading			
	Note	equities	securities	trusts	derivatives	Total	equities	securities	trusts	derivatives	Total		
		. \$	\$	\$	\$	\$. \$	\$	\$	\$	\$		
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss													
Opening balance		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Total gains or losses in profit or loss*		(4,061,061)	-	-	-	(4,061,061)	-	-	-	-	-		
Purchases		1,289,169	-	-	-	1,289,169	-	-	-	-	-		
Sales		(2,485,215)	-	-	-	(2,485,215)	-	-	-	-	-		
Settlements		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Transfers in/(out) of Level 3		5,257,107	-		-	5,257,107	-	-		-	-		
Closing balance	10.8.1	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets													
held at the end of the reporting period*		2,318,837	-			2,318,837							

^{*} These amounts are included in 'Net change in fair value of investments' within the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

For level 3 assets and liabilities the fair value is calculated based on unobservable inputs for which there is no reasonable alternative, as such a sensitivity analysis has not been calculated.

11. Stock lent

Certain Economic Entities are allowed to engage in securities lending agreement whereby the Economic Entities lend securities to a third party on terms which then permit the counterparty to repledge or resell these securities. All security lending is conducted through JP Morgan.

Collateral is obtained from the borrower and held by JP Morgan against securities lent. Collateral levels are maintained between a range of 102% - 110% of the moving market value of securities lent. The Schemes making up the Economic Entities are able to repledge and resell the collateral, however, they are then obliged to return the collateral at the end of the agreed lending term.

Generally, in the event of counterparty default, each Scheme has the right to use collateral to offset losses incurred however JP Morgan has indemnified OnePath Funds Management against losses arising from borrowers' failure to return securities and thus counterparty risk is ultimately against JP Morgan.

Each Scheme bears the risk of loss with respect to the investment of collateral. Engaging in securities lending could have a leveraging effect, which may intensify the credit, market and other risks associated with investing in the Scheme.

Income earned from securities lending is shown in the Statements of Comprehensive Income. The fair value of securities lent by the Schemes and collateral held by JP Morgan is detailed below:

Collateral held can include cash, listed equities and fixed interest securities.

	Fair value of se	curities lent	Fair value of co	llateral held
	2012	2011	2012	2011
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund	161,154,659	242,900,344	163,269,659	249,591,439
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	1,226,068	15,300,078	1,116,748	16,090,922
ANZ Select Leaders Pool	1,006,649	10,779,899	1,056,982	11,178,216
Blue Chip Pool	24,899,633	40,728,554	26,175,638	42,693,028
OnePath Sustainable Investments - Wholesale Australian Share Trust	-	16,118,568	-	16,764,385
Small Companies Pool	4,268,752	6,688,302	4,707,986	7,207,983

12. Custodian

JP Morgan Chase Bank, National Association (JP Morgan) (ABN 43 074 112 011) is the custodian of the following Schemes that make up each of the Economic Entities:

ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund

ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund

ANZ Select Leaders Pool

Blue Chip Pool

International Share Pool

OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool

OnePath Sustainable Investments - Wholesale Australian Share Trust

Small Companies Pool

OnePath Funds Management (ABN 21 003 002 800) is the custodian of the following Schemes that make up each of the Economic Entities:

Active Growth Trust

ANZ Fixed Interest Trust

ANZ International Equities Fund

ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust

ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust

ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust

Emerging Companies Trust

Global Share Trust

ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool

ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust

ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust

ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust

ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust

One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)

OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust

OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust

OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust

OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust

OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust

OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust

OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust

OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust

OneAnswer - Vanquard Balanced Index Trust

OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust

OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool

Pooled Property Fund

13. Commitments and contingencies

There were no commitments or contingencies for the Economic Entities as at the reporting date.

14. Ownership interest

		% Holding
Parent	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Subsidiary	50 34.10 2012	50 54 2011
ANZ Fixed Interest Trust		
ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund	2.70%	96.64%
ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust		
ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool	0.00%	70.24%
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust		
Blue Chip Pool	72.88%	100.00%
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust		
OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool	100.00%	80.96%
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust		
Pooled Property Fund	0.00%	65.42%
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	0.00%	99.69%
ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	72.17%	0.00%
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust		
ANZ Select Leaders Pool	42.08%	70.92%
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust		
OnePath Sustainable Investments – Wholesale Australian Share Trust	27.96%	93.84%
ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust	27.3070	33.01.70
OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust	51.74%	50.73%
OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust	52.7 1.70	50.7570
Vanguard Diversified Bonds Index Fund	62.79%	65.84%
Active Growth Trust	02.7370	00.0170
ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust	76.50%	75.91%
ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust	7 0.00 70	, 5.51 / 0
OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust	65.99%	0.00%
Challenger Professional Property Fund	62.75%	0.00%
ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust	0.00%	65.81%
Challenger Professional Property Fund	0.00%	94.18%
Emerging Companies Trust	0.0070	3 1120 70
Small Companies Pool	100.00%	100.00%
Global Share Trust		
International Share Pool	64.94%	0.00%
ANZ International Equities Fund	0.00%	100.00%
International Share Pool	0.00%	100.00%
One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)	0.0070	200.0070
Capital International Global Equities Fund (Hedged)	89.17%	52.90%
OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust	03.17.70	52.50 70
Bentham Professional Syndicated Loan Fund	93.65%	91.15%
OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust	30.0070	32.2370
OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool	0.00%	100.00%
OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	0.0070	100.0070
ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust	0.00%	62.01%
OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust	0.0070	02.0170
Perpetual Wholesale Conservative Growth Fund	53.10%	73.10%
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust	33.1070	75.1070
ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust	0.00%	56.55%
OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	0.00 /0	30.33 /0
ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust	0.00%	100.00%
OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust	0.00 /0	100.00 /0
Vanquard Balanced Index Fund	58.04%	0.00%
vanguaru balanceu muex runu	30.04%	0.00%

15. Significant events during the financial period

Name changes of Schemes:

During the financial period, the following Schemes making up the Economic Entities, had their name changed as indicated in the following table:

Previous name of Scheme	New name of Scheme						
ANZ OA ING Blue Chip Imputation Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust						
ANZ OA ING Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust						
ANZ OA ING Property Securities Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust						
ANZ OA ING Select Leaders Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust						
ANZ OA ING Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust						

Investment manager/investment strategy changes:

During the year ING Investment Management Australia (INGIM), the company that managed the underlying funds of some of the Schemes was purchased by UBS Global Asset Management who subsequently closed INGIM's operations.

As a result of the sale and closure of INGIM, OnePath Funds Management undertook an extensive review of the investment mandates for the affected Schemes. As a result of the review, the underlying investment manager and/or investment strategy of some Schemes changed. These changes resulted in the underlying assets being transferred from INGIM to the new investment manager. The impact of these transactions is reflected in the Financial Statements of the affected Schemes. The affected Schemes are listed below:

ANZ Fixed Interest Trust
ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust
ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust
ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust
ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust
ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust

Emerging Companies Trust

Global Share Trust

Active Growth Trust

Other than what has been disclosed above, there have been no significant changes in the Schemes' state of affairs for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

16. Financial information of Parent Entities

		Active Growth Trust		ANZ Fixed Interest Trust		ANZ OA Challe	enger Property Trust	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust		
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	
		\$	\$_	\$_	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Financial Position										
Assets										
Current assets (1)		2,309,399	2,959,851	283,490	24,256,855	524,537	803,944	4,210,105	3,901,701	
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss		69,570,226	96,614,185	13,266,411	684,787,251	28,477,287	30,673,364	272,577,414	248,185,816	
Total assets		71,879,625	99,574,036	13,549,901	709,044,106	29,001,824	31,477,308	276,787,519	252,087,517	
Liabilities Current liabilities ⁽²⁾ Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss		1,251,513	1,336,644	10,371	29,855,031 -	327,969 -	426,351 -	1,756,584 -	1,411,581	
Net assets attributable to unitholders (3)		70,628,112	98,237,392	13,539,530	679,189,075	28,673,855	31,050,957	275,030,935	250,675,936	
Total liabilities		71,879,625	99,574,036	13,549,901	709,044,106	29,001,824	31,477,308	276,787,519	252,087,517	
Financial Performance Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	_	(6,816,610)	5,325,219	10,413,792	(15,772,277)	1,108,257	33,084	(31,383,543)	17,354,840	

⁽¹⁾ The amount presented as 'Current assets' does not include 'Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these assets are liquid and could be sold within twelve months, the amount expected to be sold within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽²⁾ The amount presented as "Current liabilities' does not include 'Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these liabilities are liquid and could be recouped within twelve months, the amount expected to be recouped within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽³⁾ Liabilities of the parent entity include 'Net assets attributable to unitholders', which under Australian Accounting Standards, has been classified as a liability of the parent. This amount has been classified separately as the actual amount expected to be settled within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

16. Financial information of Parent Entities (continued)

		ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust		ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust		Path Property ecurities Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust	
N	ote 30 June 2012	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Financial Position								
Assets Current assets (1) Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Total assets	5,015,314 570,641,025 575,656,339	1,552,068,374	2,000,069 113,897,862 115,897,931	3,184,953 190,628,531 193,813,484	5,731,650 196,735,505 202,467,155	9,036,586 527,267,765 536,304,351	704,208 66,765,992 67,470,200	14,463,516 276,955,501 291,419,017
Current liabilities (2) Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Net assets attributable to unitholders (3) Total liabilities	8,673,303 - 566,983,036 575,656,339	1,553,463,800	1,002,948 - 114,894,983 115,897,931	2,752,766 - 191,060,718 193,812,222	5,852,873 - 196,614,282 202,467,155	8,587,351 - 527,717,000 536,304,351	1,807,420 - 65,662,780 67,470,200	14,967,537 - 276,451,480 291,419,017
Financial Performance Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	(184,199,501)	56,375,428	(32,751,637)	(8,660,615)	(35,500,548)	(9,165,638)	(33,203,971)	17,452,049

⁽¹⁾ The amount presented as 'Current assets' does not include 'Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these assets are liquid and could be sold within twelve months, the amount expected to be sold within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽²⁾ The amount presented as "Current liabilities' does not include 'Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these liabilities are liquid and could be recouped within twelve months, the amount expected to be recouped within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽³⁾ Liabilities of the parent entity include 'Net assets attributable to unitholders', which under Australian Accounting Standards, has been classified as a liability of the parent. This amount has been classified separately as the actual amount expected to be settled within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

16. Financial information of Parent Entities (continued)

		ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust		ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust		Emerging Companies Trust		Global Share Trust	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Financial Position									
Assets Current assets (1) Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Total assets	_	70,379 7,902,619 7,972,998	7,547,293 414,540,739 422,088,032	441,985 17,441,826 17,883,811	574,997 22,820,264 23,395,261	2,321,979 265,891,906 268,213,885	5,589,634 427,714,146 433,303,780	737,222 75,354,176 76,091,398	26,175,091 2,088,539,490 2,114,714,581
Current liabilities (2) Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Net assets attributable to unitholders (3) Total liabilities		229,524 - 7,743,474 7,972,998	7,438,332 - 414,649,700 422,088,032	301,825 - 17,581,986 17,883,811	414,887 - 22,980,374 23,395,261	3,346,943 - 264,866,942 268,213,885	8,057,376 - 425,246,404 433,303,780	6,368 - 76,085,030 76,091,398	26,015,855 - 2,088,698,726 2,114,714,283
Financial Performance Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income	_	(42,299,570)	40,661,687	(568,098)	(945,498)	(51,071,578)	58,761,260	(168,950,208)	(7,653,478)

⁽¹⁾ The amount presented as 'Current assets' does not include 'Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these assets are liquid and could be sold within twelve months, the amount expected to be sold within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽²⁾ The amount presented as "Current liabilities' does not include 'Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these liabilities are liquid and could be recouped within twelve months, the amount expected to be recouped within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽³⁾ Liabilities of the parent entity include 'Net assets attributable to unitholders', which under Australian Accounting Standards, has been classified as a liability of the parent. This amount has been classified separately as the actual amount expected to be settled within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

16. Financial information of Parent Entities (continued)

		One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)		OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust		OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust		OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
Financial Position		Ψ.	Ψ.	Ψ_	Ψ	Ψ.	Ψ_	Ψ	Ψ
Assets Current assets (1) Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss Total assets		1,707,309 86,606,190 88,313,499	19,311,123 90,683,118 109,994,241	757,835 34,002,936 34,760,771	2,159,211 42,921,646 45,080,857	1,031,293 70,127,462 71,158,755	2,464,728 90,230,580 92,695,308	112,781,110	4,943,982 77,527,893 82,471,875
Liabilities Current liabilities (2) Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Net assets attributable to unitholders (3) Total liabilities		805,731 - 87,507,768 88,313,499	17,587,678 - 92,406,563 109,994,241	606,489 - 34,154,282 34,760,771	1,781,797 - 43,299,060 45,080,857	193,562 - 70,965,193 71,158,755	1,292,076 - 91,403,232 92,695,308	3,474,940 - 113,913,523 117,388,463	2,676,359 - 79,795,516 82,471,607
Financial Performance Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/ Total comprehensive income		(4,798,202)	(2,130,607)	(1,596,631)	963,570	(3,045,349)	2,920,826	(4,025,659)	6,208,073

⁽¹⁾ The amount presented as 'Current assets' does not include 'Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these assets are liquid and could be sold within twelve months, the amount expected to be sold within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽²⁾ The amount presented as "Current liabilities' does not include 'Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these liabilities are liquid and could be recouped within twelve months, the amount expected to be recouped within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽³⁾ Liabilities of the parent entity include 'Net assets attributable to unitholders', which under Australian Accounting Standards, has been classified as a liability of the parent. This amount has been classified separately as the actual amount expected to be settled within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

16. Financial information of Parent Entities (continued)

			er - Perpetual Growth Trust		ver - Schroder n Equity Trust	OneAnswer - U Fixed	BS Diversified Income Trust		ver - Vanguard ed Index Trust
	Note	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2011
		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$_	\$_	\$_	\$
Financial Position									
Assets									
Current assets (1)		4,155,307	4,567,892	4,527,118	2,824,265	3,919,164	2,564,468	13,462,222	13,021,546
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss		140,369,763	150,831,518	241,382,338	139,192,453	186,510,083	100,132,627	566,710,535	232,878,355
Total assets		144,525,070	155,399,410	245,909,456	142,016,718	190,429,247	102,697,095	580,172,757	245,899,901
Liabilities Current liabilities (2) Eigeneial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss.		3,545,936	3,326,080	2,483,523	1,295,297	8,578,945	1,511,191	4,204,322	7,356,687
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss Net assets attributable to unitholders ⁽³⁾		140,979,134	152,073,330	243,425,933	140,721,421	181,850,302	101,185,904	575,968,435	238,543,214
Total liabilities		144,525,070	155,399,410	245,909,456	142,016,718	190,429,247	102,697,095	580,172,757	245,899,901
Financial Performance Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/		(1.162.022)	2 002 070	(11 401 250)	12.055.060	(4 550 501)	F06 626	2 521 504	(9 0E7 EE1)
Total comprehensive income		(1,162,932)	2,003,970	(11,491,259)	12,965,960	(4,560,601)	596,626	3,521,594	(8,057,55

⁽¹⁾ The amount presented as 'Current assets' does not include 'Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these assets are liquid and could be sold within twelve months, the amount expected to be sold within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽²⁾ The amount presented as "Current liabilities' does not include 'Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these liabilities are liquid and could be recouped within twelve months, the amount expected to be recouped within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽³⁾ Liabilities of the parent entity include 'Net assets attributable to unitholders', which under Australian Accounting Standards, has been classified as a liability of the parent. This amount has been classified separately as the actual amount expected to be settled within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

16. Financial information of Parent Entities (continued)

		OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust	
	Note	30 June 2012 \$	30 June 2011 \$
Financial Position			
Assets			
Current assets (1)		3,584,389	9,053,896
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss		182,534,853	
Total assets	_	186,119,242	113,709,702
Liabilities			
Current liabilities (2)		1,026,480	7,378,055
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss		-	-
Net assets attributable to unitholders (3)		185,092,762	106,331,647
Total liabilities		186,119,242	113,709,702
Financial Performance			
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders/			
Total comprehensive income		12,692,696	(8,721,578)

⁽¹⁾ The amount presented as 'Current assets' does not include 'Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these assets are liquid and could be sold within twelve months, the amount expected to be sold within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽²⁾ The amount presented as "Current liabilities' does not include 'Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss' of the parent entity. While these liabilities are liquid and could be recouped within twelve months, the amount expected to be recouped within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

⁽³⁾ Liabilities of the parent entity include 'Net assets attributable to unitholders', which under Australian Accounting Standards, has been classified as a liability of the parent. This amount has been classified separately as the actual amount expected to be settled within twelve months cannot be reliably determined.

17. Acquisition of subsidiary

During the financial period, the below listed Schemes gained a controlling interest in their subsidiaries:

Parent Subsidiary

ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust

Pooled Property Fund ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund

ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust

OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust Challenger Professional Property Fund ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust Challenger Professional Property Fund

Global Share Trust

International Share Pool ANZ International Equities Fund International Share Pool

OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust

Vanguard Balanced Index Fund

The tables on the subsequent pages details the number of units and the date of the transaction that gave the Parent Entity a controlling interest in the subsidiary, fair value of net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, the contribution of the acquired entity's profit to the results of the Economic Entities for the financial period beginning from the date of acquisition and the consolidated revenue had the acquisition taken place on 1 July 2011.

Consideration paid for units in the acquired subsidiaries was determined by the prevailing unit price on the date of acquisition, which equates to the fair value of the proportion of net assets acquired on that date. No goodwill or discount arose as a result.

17.1 Acquisition of subsidiary - current period

Parent	ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	Global Share Trust	OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust
Subsidiary	OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust	ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund	International Share Pool	Challenger Professional Property Fund
Acquisition				
Date of acquisition Units acquired Additional % acquired to gain control Consideration paid \$	30 June 2012 100,000 5.00 150,000	31 March 2012 100,000 5.00 150,000	30 June 2012 100,000 5.00 150,000	30 June 2012 100,000 5.00 150,000
Assets and liabilities	\$	\$	\$	\$
Cash	(380,864)	6,619,542	1,823,981	39,288
Receivables	1,254,846	54,336	1,262,964	535,768
Investments	38,916,236	269,047,763	114,219,172	41,204,436
Sundry creditors and other accruals	(4,090)	-	(242,769)	(4,935)
Net assets	39,786,128	275,721,641	117,063,348	41,774,557
Profit contribution	-	6,311,495	-	-
Consolidated effect				
Consolidated revenue	578,278	5,126,424	(23,291,191)	178,204

Parent	OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust
Subsidiary	Vanguard Balanced Index Fund
Acquisition	
Date of acquisition	30 September 2011
Units acquired	100,000
Additional % acquired to gain control	5.00
Consideration paid \$	150,000
Assets and liabilities	\$
Cash	1,151
Receivables	4,444,435
Investments	669,525,189
Sundry creditors and other accruals	(3,997)
Net assets	673,966,778
Profit contribution	22,774,904
Consolidated effect	
Consolidated revenue	12,421,347

17.1 Acquisition of subsidiary - prior period

Parent	ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust	ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust	OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust
Subsidiary	OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool	OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust	Vanguard Diversified Bonds Index Fund
Acquisition			
Date of acquisition	28 February 2011	28 February 2011	31 May 2011
Units acquired	146,554,954	25,258,988	1,242,256
Additional % acquired to gain control	45.04	51.12	
Consideration paid \$	117,478,451	25,223,624	1,257,412
Assets and liabilities	\$	\$	\$
Cash	4,279,673	58,677	1,000
Receivables	298,511	1,001	80
Investments	258,374,543	21,850,024	168,069,818
Sundry creditors and other accruals	(2,031,231)	(6,234)	(1,173)
Net assets	260,921,496	21,903,468	168,069,725
Profit contribution	(1,136,313)	(631,786)	158,197
Consolidated effect			
Consolidated revenue	(1,187,177)	(423,232)	636,564

18. Disposal of subsidiaries

During the financial period, some of the Schemes lost control of a previously consolidated subsidiary. Control was lost when units held in the subsidiary were sold thereby reducing control of the subsidiary.

The net assets of the disposees consisting of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, investments, payables at the date of disposal are shown in the following table. Any gain/loss made on disposal of units in the subsidiary is also disclosed.

Effect of disposals

Parent	ANZ Fixed Interest Trust	ANZ International Equities Fund	ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust	ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust
Subsidiary	ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund	International Share Pool	ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust	ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool
Deconsolidation Date of deconsolidation	30 November 2011	30 June 2012	30 June 2012	30 June 2012
Assets and liabilities Cash Receivables Investments Sundry creditors and other accruals Net assets	\$ 1,356,008 10,452,014 1,454,907,200 (169,991) 1,466,545,231	\$ 1,823,981 1,262,964 114,219,172 (242,769) 117,063,348	\$ - - - - -	\$ - - - - -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiary	181,657	(344,543)	-	(2,982)

Parent	ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust	ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust	Global Share Trust
Subsidiary	Pooled Property Fund	ANZ Select Leaders Pool	OnePath Sustainable Investments – Wholesale Australian Share Trust	ANZ International Equities Fund
Deconsolidation Date of deconsolidation	30 November 2011	30 November 2011	30 November 2011	30 June 2012
Assets and liabilities Cash Receivables Investments Sundry creditors and other accruals Net assets	\$ 25,748 - 221,333,180 - 221,358,928	\$ (217,612) 10,570,480 344,048,689 (2,688,862) 351,712,695	\$ 2,476,093 3,034,691 386,591,007 (39) 392,101,752	\$ - - - -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiary	(54,859,122)	(26,316,868)	(45,148,402)	(13,579)

Parent	ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust	OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust	OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust	OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust
Subsidiary	Challenger Professional Property Fund	OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool	ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust	ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust
Deconsolidation Date of deconsolidation	30 June 2012	30 June 2012	30 June 2012	30 June 2012
Assets and liabilities Cash Receivables Investments Sundry creditors and other accruals Net assets	\$ 39,288 535,768 41,204,436 (4,935) 41,774,557	\$ - - - - -	\$ - - - - -	\$ - - - -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiary	(320,553)	(2,982)	-	4,083

Parent	OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust	Pooled Property Fund
Subsidiary	ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust	ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund
Deconsolidation Date of deconsolidation	30 June 2012	30 November 2011
Assets and liabilities Cash	\$	\$ 1,044,026
Receivables Investments	- -	840,262 716,613,085
Sundry creditors and other accruals Net assets	- -	718,497,373
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiary	12,466	(66,779,826)

19. Events subsequent to reporting date

There have been no events subsequent to reporting date which have a material effect on these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Directors' Declaration

OnePath Funds Management Limited (OnePath Funds Management) presents the Directors' Declaration in respect of the the Economic Entities.

Parent Subsidiary

ANZ Fixed Interest Trust

ANZ Australian Fixed Interest Fund

ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust

ING Colonial First State Imputation Pool

ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust

Blue Chip Pool

ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust

OnePath Global Emerging Markets Pool

ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust

Pooled Property Fund

ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund

ANZ Listed Property Trust Fund

ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust

ANZ Select Leaders Pool

ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust

OnePath Sustainable Investments - Wholesale Australian Share Trust

ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust

OneAnswer - Perpetual International Shares Trust

OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust

Vanguard Diversified Bonds Index Fund

Active Growth Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Active Growth Trust

ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust

OneAnswer - Challenger Property Trust

Challenger Professional Property Fund

ING Credit Suisse Property Pooled Trust

Challenger Professional Property Fund

Emerging Companies Trust

Small Companies Pool

Global Share Trust

International Share Pool

ANZ International Equities Fund

International Share Pool

One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)

Capital International Global Equities Fund (Hedged)

OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust

Bentham Professional Syndicated Loan Fund

OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust
OnePath Colonial First State Diversified Pool

OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust

ING Investors Mutual Australian Share Pooled Trust

OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust

Perpetual Wholesale Conservative Growth Fund
OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust

ING Schroder Australian Equity Pooled Trust

OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust

ING UBS Diversified Fixed Income Pooled Trust

OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust

Vanguard Balanced Index Fund

The above table states the consolidated entity structures as at reporting date.

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of OnePath Funds Management we state that:

In the opinion of the Directors:

- 1. The financial statements and notes of the Economic Entities, set out on pages 6 to 114 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
- 1.1 giving a true and fair view of the Economic Entities' financial positions as at 30 June 2012 and their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date
- 1.2 complying with Australian Accounting Standard (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001
- 1.3 complying with International Financial Reporting Standards as indicated in Note 1.1.
- 2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Economic Entities will be able to pay their debts as and when they become due and payable.
- 3. The financial statements and notes of the Economic Entities, set out on pages 6 to 114 are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Schemes' Constitutions.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

OnePath Funds Management Limited

ABN 21 003 002 800 AFSL 238342

Director

Sydney

10 September 2012



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Unitholders of the following Schemes:

Active Growth Trust

ANZ Fixed Interest Trust

ANZ OA Challenger Property Trust

ANZ OA Colonial First State Imputation Trust

ANZ OA OnePath Blue Chip Imputation Trust (formerly, 'ANZ OA ING Blue Chip Imputation Trust')

ANZ OA OnePath Global Emerging Markets Share Trust (formerly, 'ANZ OA ING Global Emerging Markets Share Trust')

ANZ OA OnePath Property Securities Trust (formerly, 'ANZ OA ING Property Securities Trust')

ANZ OA OnePath Select Leaders Trust (formerly, 'ANZ OA ING Select Leaders Trust')

ANZ OA OnePath Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust (formerly, 'ANZ OA ING Sustainable Investments - Australian Share Trust')

ANZ OA Perpetual International Share Trust

Emerging Companies Trust

Global Share Trust

One Answer Capital International Global Equities (Hedged)

OneAnswer - Bentham Syndicated Loan Trust (formerly, 'OneAnswer - Credit Sussie Syndicated Loan Trust')

OneAnswer - Colonial First State Diversified Trust

OneAnswer - Investors Mutual Australian Share Trust

OneAnswer - Perpetual Conservative Growth Trust

OneAnswer - Schroder Australian Equity Trust

OneAnswer - UBS Diversified Fixed Income Trust

OneAnswer - Vanguard Balanced Index Trust

OneAnswer - Vanguard Index Diversified Bond Trust

Report on the Financial Reports

We have audited the accompanying Financial Reports of the Schemes, which comprise the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2012, the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, Notes 1 to 19, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the Directors' Declaration of the Economic Entities comprising the Schemes and the entities they controlled at the 30 June 2012 or from time to time during the financial year.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ('KPMG International'), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Directors' responsibility for the Financial Reports

The directors of OnePath Funds Management Limited (the 'Responsible Entity') are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Reports that give a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the *Corporations Act 2001*, and for such internal controls as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial reports that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors of the Responsible Entity also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 *Presentation of Financial Statements*, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Financial Reports based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial reports are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Reports. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial reports, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation of Financial Reports that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Reports.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial reports present fairly, in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001* and Australian Accounting Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Economic Entities' financial position, and of their performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audits, we have complied with the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*.



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

- (a) the Financial Reports of the Economic Entities are in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001*, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the Economic Entities' financial positions as at 30 June 2012 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the $\it Corporations Regulations 2001$.
- (b) the Financial Reports also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

KPMG

P Ruiz

Partner

Sydney

10 September 2012



Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To the directors of OnePath Funds Management Limited, the Responsible Entity for the Economic Entities:

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2012, there have been:

- (i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- (ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG

P Ruiz

Partner

Sydney

10 September 2012

Contact details for the Schemes

Customer Services



Phone 13 38 63



Email anz.investments@onepath.com.au

Adviser Services



For use by financial advisers only Phone 1800 649 618

Responsible Entity

OnePath Funds Management Limited ABN 21 003 002 800 AFSL 238342

Postal address



GPO Box 4028 Sydney NSW 2001



Website

anz.com

Custodians

JP Morgan Chase Bank, National Association 85 Castlereagh Street Sydney NSW 2000

OnePath Funds Management Limited

347 Kent Street Sydney NSW 2000

Auditor

KPMG 10 Shelley Street Sydney NSW 2000

